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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good morning. The

          3  Committee on Health is now in session. Good morning,

          4  and welcome to today's Mayor's Management Report

          5  hearing for the Health Committee of the Council. As

          6  you all know, the MMR is a comprehensive report on

          7  the past year's activities of the City agencies, and

          8  the Mayoral offices. Regarding health issues, the

          9  1999 MMR listed achievements for the Health and

         10  Hospitals Corporation, the Department of Health, the

         11  Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and

         12  Alcoholism Services, and the Office of the Chief

         13  Medical Examiner, examples of these achievements

         14  have been in the area of tuberculosis treatment,

         15  HIV/AIDS prevention, the asthma initiative, domestic

         16  violence prevention and treatment and violent death

         17  investigations.

         18                 However, despite some progress in

         19  these areas, in the past year this City has seen a

         20  Citywide mosquito-borne health crisis, a surge in

         21  the uninsured population, confusion over mandatory

         22  managed care, proposed municipal hospitals and

         23  nursing homes closing, and the closing of municipal

         24  dental clinics.  These are not the signs of

         25  progress. Therefore, I have decided to take a new
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          2  approach to the MMR hearing this year.

          3                 The Health Committee did not invite

          4  the Health and Hospitals Corporation in this

          5  hearing, or to this hearing. Specific matters

          6  regarding HHC will be dealt with in the coming year

          7  as needed.

          8                 This year we will spend the majority

          9  of time with my dear friend Dr. Neal Cohen, the

         10  Commissioner of Health, and the Commissioner of

         11  Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism

         12  Services.

         13                 I have always maintained and will

         14  continue to maintain that regarding all health

         15  issues in the City of New York, the buck stops with

         16  the Commissioner of Health. In this case we have a

         17  commissioner who is also in charge of mental health

         18  so when serious issues arise regarding mentally ill

         19  citizens, then they are his problem. The Office of

         20  the Chief Medical Examiner is part of the Health

         21  Department, so when there are problems in hiring

         22  medical investigators, it should be his problem and

         23  his priority.

         24                 The Department of Health and the

         25  Health and Hospitals Corporation are involved in a
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          2  number of contracts that turn over the

          3  responsibilities to provide medical services. Dr.

          4  Cohen also sits on the Board of Directors of HHC, so

          5  when dental clinics are closed in minority areas,

          6  clinics that were under contract by the Department

          7  of Health, then they are his problem. Let me be

          8  clear, that is why HHC has not been invited, because

          9  this Committee has analyzed and most, if not all of

         10  the resources within the Health and Hospitals

         11  Corporation, are either contracted out by the

         12  Department of Health, or the Department of Mental

         13  Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism

         14  Services.

         15                 So, I repeat, the buck stops with the

         16  Commissioner of Health, who is the Chief Health

         17  Officer in this town.

         18                 Before I introduce our first witness,

         19  Dr. Charles Hirsch, I would like to state for the

         20  record that this past summer my staff and I visited

         21  the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner. I also

         22  understand that according to Dr. Hirsch, it was the

         23  first time that a Chair of the Health Committee paid

         24  such a visit.

         25                 I was very impressed with the
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          2  operation of his office, and the advanced

          3  technological equipment, technical equipment, bought

          4  with Council funds.

          5                 I want to thank Dr. Hirsch and his

          6  staff for their invitation and hospitality. Let me,

          7  before I call on Dr. Hirsch, and the Chief, the

          8  Office of the Chief Medical Examiner, let me

          9  introduce my colleagues who have joined us and who

         10  will be joining us during the course of the day,

         11  also there are other hearings taking place so that

         12  if you see them come and go you will understand

         13  there are other hearings going on at the same time.

         14                 My colleague who will be sharing a

         15  joint hearing with me when we deal with the

         16  Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and

         17  Alcoholism Services, the Chair of the Subcommittee

         18  on Mental Health and a member of this Committee from

         19  Brooklyn, Council Member Una Clarke. Ranking

         20  minority member of this Committee from Staten

         21  Island, and who happens to be a Republican, in case

         22  you don't know why I said the ranking minority

         23  member, Council Member Jim Oddo. And I see that my

         24  distinguished colleague from the County of Queens is

         25  also joining us, who is a member of this Committee,
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          2  Council Member Julia Harrison.

          3                 I see no other, of course my Counsel

          4  to my Committee, Jose Orengo, and as soon as other

          5  members of the Committee come in, I will introduce

          6  them.

          7                 Dr. Hirsch, please.

          8                 DR. HIRSCH: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Dr. Hirsch, I

         10  welcome you before us once again, and I want to

         11  again personally thank you for your hospitality.

         12  And let me say that, although I have been on this

         13  Committee since the day I came here to the City

         14  Council, I must tell you that I was impressed with

         15  the tour, and I intend to come back. One of the

         16  areas that I hope you would address, of which I

         17  commit myself to work with you, at least for the

         18  next two years that I am chair of this Committee, is

         19  improving the facility at that place. I know there

         20  are major renovations taking place, but I also know

         21  that you have major problems, and if not addressed

         22  accordingly, can disrupt the operations of your

         23  office, particularly since I believe the office

         24  which I visited, which was on First Avenue, happens

         25  to be your principal office where you happen to be
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          2  at.

          3                 So, again, on behalf of my colleagues

          4  who joined me on that tour, let me personally thank

          5  you and commend you once again for what we saw. We

          6  were impressed and we came back impressed with the

          7  operations.

          8                 Having said that, please identify

          9  yourself for the record and those with you, and

         10  please proceed with your prepared remarks.

         11                 DR. HIRSCH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12  Before I do that I would like to say how much we

         13  appreciate the time and trouble you took to come and

         14  visit us and we look forward to your next visit.

         15                 Seated on my left is Mr. Tom

         16  Brondolo, the Deputy Commissioner for

         17  Administration. And seated on my right is Mr. David

         18  Schomberg, the Director of Medical Legal

         19  Investigations.

         20                 Mr. Chairman, members of the Council,

         21  this is my last opportunity in this century to speak

         22  to you, and in that spirit I would like to very

         23  briefly look back over my nearly 11 years of service

         24  to the City of New York. In 1989, confronted by

         25  shoddy death investigations, and the inexcusedly
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          2  slow reporting of medical examiner personnel to

          3  scenes of death, our initial priorities were

          4  re-engineering the process of medical legal

          5  investigations and raising the standards in field

          6  investigations and autopsy work.

          7                 Now our investigators are much more

          8  responsive to the public. They arrive at scenes of

          9  deaths promptly, and they gather invaluable

         10  information previously unavailable to the office.

         11                 The Medical Examiners have the

         12  illumination of a medical history and environmental

         13  circumstances to work with while evaluating

         14  scientific evidence to arrive at conclusions about

         15  the cause and manner of death.

         16                 I couldn't be more proud of these two

         17  teams of people - the medical legal investigators,

         18  and the forensic pathologists. All of the medical

         19  legal investigators have been trained by us and

         20  approximately half of the medical examiners have

         21  received their training in forensic pathology at our

         22  office.

         23                 Our two main laboratories, forensic

         24  toxicology and forensic biology, have been renovated

         25  completely and both have been fully accredited by
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          2  the New York State Commission on forensic sciences.

          3                 When I came to the City in 1989,

          4  there was no DNA testing done by any city agency.

          5  With the generous support of the Administration and

          6  Council, we brought in the scientists and built the

          7  laboratory.

          8                 We have already seen the fruits of

          9  our labor in helping the NYPD apprehend serial

         10  rapists and killers and in excluding innocent

         11  suspects. In the near future we will make a

         12  conspicuously growing and increasingly important

         13  rock solid contribution to the criminal justice

         14  system through our excellent laboratory.

         15                 Also, in ten years we have moved from

         16  operating systems that were entirely manual to

         17  systems that are nearly fully computerized.

         18                 A variety of communications networks

         19  and automated services exist where none existed

         20  before, and these advances have brought the agency

         21  productivity gains.

         22                 We now operate a renovated office in

         23  the Bronx and a new facility in Staten Island,

         24  greatly enhancing our service to both boroughs.

         25                 My top priority now is the new
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          2  borough office for the medical examiner in Kings

          3  County. The existing facility is wholly inadequate

          4  and must be replaced.

          5                 A feasibility study for a site has

          6  been completed, and I am eager to see the project

          7  move forward without interruption.

          8                 Other priorities include the

          9  reduction in turn-around time for autopsy reports

         10  and reducing overtime for the medical legal

         11  investigators to our target level.

         12                 Meeting the goals for autopsy report

         13  turn-around time will require filling difficult to

         14  recruit technical computer vacancies. We are

         15  extremely fortunate to have two dedicated MIS

         16  professionals on our staff, but they alone can't

         17  handle the maintenance and upgrading of the existing

         18  systems which must function every day of the year in

         19  each borough.

         20                 One of these MIS professionals is my

         21  Deputy Commissioner, Mr. Tom Brondolo, leaving only

         22  one full-time person to handle maintenance, service

         23  and upgrade.

         24                 Although, I am very proud that we

         25  have moved to the functional level of
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          2  computerization that we have, we can't stand still.

          3  The technology is moving too fast and offers too

          4  many benefits to the services we provide for us to

          5  allow what we have built to become inadequate or

          6  obsolete.

          7                 Our immediate challenge for Calendar

          8  Year 2000 is to open the forensic biology annex in

          9  Bellevue Hospital, which will house 36 new

         10  scientific personnel working in forensic DNA. The

         11  new facility will allow us double the number of

         12  cases processed by the DNA laboratory, to reduce the

         13  normal turn-around time and to provide an ability to

         14  handle priority cases without disruption of a normal

         15  workflow.

         16                 These goals should be accomplished in

         17  the Year 2000. The facility is scheduled to open on

         18  the first working day of the new year. Almost half

         19  of the new staff have been hired, and will have

         20  completed the mandated year of training by the end

         21  of next year.

         22                 While much has been accomplished over

         23  the past 11 years, there remains much to do. Our

         24  goal remains the same as it was in 1989. The

         25  delivery of technically excellent service in a
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          2  timely fashion by personnel who are compassionate

          3  and sensitive to the needs of those we serve.

          4                 That goal doesn't allow for

          5  complacency and I look forward to working with the

          6  Council on meeting new challenges.

          7                 Mr. Chairman, that concludes my

          8  prepared remarks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also

         10  acknowledge, who has also joined us, not a member of

         11  the Committee, but has joined us, and that is

         12  Council Member Tracy Boyland from Brooklyn.

         13                 Let me begin, Dr. Hirsch, by saying

         14  that I was around when you came, it is 12 years ago,

         15  but you have come a long way, let me tell you. You

         16  know, when you sit here, now as chair, you don't

         17  realize that I was here when you first came before

         18  this Committee.

         19                 DR. HIRSCH: I remember it well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me walk you

         21  through, there is something that I need a handle on,

         22  so we are going to look to the new millennium that

         23  we work together understanding exactly what the

         24  process is.

         25                 While the Chief Medical Examiner's
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          2  Office operates independently, it is still under the

          3  organizational chart under the Department of Health;

          4  is that fair to say?

          5                 DR. HIRSCH: Yes, sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And so that if

          7  there are needs in your office, do you really run it

          8  through the Department of Health?

          9                 DR. HIRSCH: No, sir. We deal

         10  independently with the Office of Management and

         11  Budget.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What role does

         13  the Department of Health play?  Under the

         14  organizational chart, you are still legally under

         15  the Department of Health.

         16                 DR. HIRSCH: We administratively and

         17  legally are part of the Department of Health. Our

         18  capital budget is handled in conjunction with the

         19  Department of Health.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But so is your

         21  Expense Budget, isn't it?

         22                 DR. HIRSCH: I will let Mr. Brondolo

         23  answer that. He is the numbers guy.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am only doing

         25  this because I really want to know exactly so when
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          2  the budget comes around, my experience is, and

          3  correct me if I am wrong, I do not find an

          4  independent line to your office. I find it within

          5  the Department of Health's budget, so you are not so

          6  independent after all. And if I am correct then say

          7  so, so then I will lead to my questions.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BRONDOLO: We are

          9  part of the Department of Health budget.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Good.

         11                 Now, having said that, in the Kings

         12  County, which you said is a priority of yours now,

         13  your Borough Office, is that part of the Kings

         14  County construction of the new Kings County

         15  Hospital, or is that separate?

         16                 DR. HIRSCH: Our new office will be a

         17  free-standing building.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So it has nothing

         19  to do with Kings County.

         20                 DR. HIRSCH: It will be on the Kings

         21  County campus.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But is that part

         23  of the Kings County new complex, or is that

         24  separate?

         25                 DR. HIRSCH: It is financially
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          2  separate.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          4                 Now, is that on track?

          5                 DR. HIRSCH: My understanding is that

          6  we hope to hire an architect in March of 2000.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You mentioned

          8  that you are finding it difficult to recruit

          9  technical computer vacancies. How many of them are

         10  you talking about?

         11                 DR. HIRSCH: We have four vacant

         12  positions, two candidates have been identified and

         13  are in the hiring pipeline. We need to identify two

         14  more candidates.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But what is the

         16  difficulty?

         17                 DR. HIRSCH: They are in great demand.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is it salary?

         19                 DR. HIRSCH: I will defer to Mr.

         20  Brondolo.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BRONDOLO: It is a

         22  combination of salary and conditions at the

         23  building. We need to -- we have a very limited

         24  ability to try to bring people in.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, the one
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          2  that I began with.

          3                 Okay, so one of two reasons why you

          4  are finding it difficult, and I am assuming it is

          5  not just these vacancies, but what I saw. For

          6  example, and I want to be clear, you completed your

          7  renovation at a certain location in your building,

          8  but I remember working through the tour where there

          9  was a flood or some kind of water seepage from above

         10  which then knocked out a whole working area, and you

         11  had to move files and the whole bit, and what I am

         12  leading to, that if we don't deal with the total

         13  structure, the total building, you may renovate one

         14  part but still find yourself having difficulty on

         15  another part of your building; is that fair to say?

         16                 DR. HIRSCH: Yes, sir. The entire

         17  building is inter-connected.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         19                 Now, do we have any idea -- well, let

         20  me say this, because this is really about my

         21  question.

         22                 How do you get to dealing with

         23  vacancies if it is salary, if it is the

         24  infrastructure? Do you deal directly with OMB, or do

         25  you also, is the Department of Health a conduit to
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          2  these issues?

          3                 DR. HIRSCH: We deal directly with

          4  OMB.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. May I

          6  respectfully suggest that you deal with me directly

          7  on the upcoming budget on your need so that when

          8  budget time comes, those are the areas that I like

          9  to address, which is really not about -- because in

         10  the MMR hearing maybe some of these reasons is what

         11  is keeping you from meeting certain of your goals;

         12  is that fair to say?

         13                 DR. HIRSCH: We would be delighted to

         14  have your help. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That was not my

         16  question. That wasn't my question.

         17                 Can these obstacles, whether it is

         18  vacancies, or infrastructure, be reasons for not

         19  meeting your goals?

         20                 DR. HIRSCH: Surely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you do know

         22  there are areas in your agency that you projected to

         23  meet certain goals and you have not?

         24                 DR. HIRSCH: Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I want to be
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          2  clear again for the record. You are saying to me

          3  that possibly the distraction, the displacement,

          4  could be a reason why you have not met your target

          5  goal.

          6                 DR. HIRSCH: That might be part of it,

          7  yes, sir.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: We have been

          9  joined by Council Member Phil Reed from

         10  Manhattan/Bronx.

         11                 Council Member Clarke.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 You already asked a question about

         15  Kings County, I just wanted to know where you are in

         16  that process, whether architectural drawings have

         17  been finished, the site itself has been located;

         18  where are we in that process?

         19                 And I have asked you that question

         20  each time we come, because I want to see how the

         21  Council can move that forward, even as we do capital

         22  budget, so that we don't keep talking about a

         23  facility that is needed and on this side we can do

         24  something about it because it is so essential and

         25  then we don't get the feedback as to what happened.
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          2  We would like to know where you are in the process,

          3  if there are actual drawings, whether it will be

          4  done by the Dormitory Authority, whether bonds are

          5  going to be floated for it, how will it be done and

          6  when will it be done, so that the needs can be met?

          7                 DR. HIRSCH: The site has been

          8  identified.  A functional set of drawings has been

          9  completed and approved. It is my understanding that

         10  the money is there for the 2000 budget and that we

         11  hope to hire an architect. In March of this year the

         12  construction will be done by the Dormitory

         13  Authority.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me ask you,

         17  so I understand on the staffing, and what have you;

         18  according to our staff analysis of the MMR, it

         19  states the following: According to the '99 MMR, in

         20  Fiscal Year '99 over 14,400 hours of medical legal

         21  investigators, MLI overtime, was used to support

         22  investigative operations, an increase of 2,800 plus

         23  hours over Fiscal Year '98. Thirteen-hundred plus

         24  hours of these hours were used to support a

         25  state-funded program. The question is, if you are
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          2  using personnel or you hire personnel for a certain

          3  kind of investigation, now you are using overtime to

          4  be used for another kind, and it says mandated by

          5  the state, do you get reimbursed for that?

          6                 DR. HIRSCH: Yes, sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And so why would

          8  you be using overtime when you can hire additional

          9  -- in other words, is the number of investigators

         10  to do the overall, as you testified, do you have

         11  enough currently that would meet the demand and

         12  properly do the proper investigations across the

         13  board?

         14                 DR. HIRSCH: You are really into two

         15  areas, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 First, the work that was done for the

         17  state involved drawing blood samples from parolees

         18  who owed a blood sample to the state DNA databank.

         19  All of our investigators are physician assistants

         20  and qualified to do that work, and so on a contract

         21  with the Department of Criminal Justice Services, we

         22  obtain the blood samples from the parolees to meet

         23  that state mandate, and we were reimbursed by the

         24  state for that work.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You did not take
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          2  them away from what they were hired to do?

          3                 DR. HIRSCH: No, sir.

          4                 Now, as far as the overtime and the

          5  staffing for the investigators, Mr. Schomberg is the

          6  one who is directly responsible for that and he has

          7  those numbers at his fingertips and I have asked him

          8  to respond to that question.

          9                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Good morning.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good morning.

         11                 MR. SCHOMBERG: At the beginning of

         12  Fiscal Year '99, the score, we were basically given

         13  new authorization to have a total of 24 lines for

         14  medical legal investigators. We began with 16, we

         15  had lost two full-time investigators just prior to

         16  the beginning of the Fiscal Year.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You are saying

         18  that in Fiscal Year 2000, you were authorized --

         19                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Fiscal Year '99.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: In Fiscal

         21  Year'99, which means that the fiscal year ended

         22  already.

         23                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, you were

         25  authorized 24 and you had 16 currently, correct?
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          2                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Had 16 at the

          3  beginning of the Fiscal Year, right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So the beginning

          5  of the Fiscal Year '99, you had 16.

          6                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: They authorized

          8  24. To bring it up to 24. Or you had 24 new bodies

          9  that you could fill; is that what you are saying to

         10  me?

         11                 MR. SCHOMBERG: I would be authorized

         12  a total of 24.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: A total of 24.

         14                 MR. SCHOMBERG: A total of 24, so that

         15  gave us eight new hires to identify.

         16                 We have an investigational need of

         17  approximately 43, 44,000 hours of time needed by

         18  investigators. With the 16 that were on board, plus

         19  the eight new hires that we accomplished during the

         20  fiscal year in their training period, we were able

         21  to provide 37,519 hours of regular time. That left

         22  us a staff shortage of 12,401 hours which made up a

         23  large portio of our 14,400 hours of overtime.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, if you are

         25  saying that, then you are telling me that although

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  you had 24 authorized, based upon what you just told

          3  me, and mind you, I need professional guidance in

          4  this area, but if you are still 12,000 short, that

          5  means you will need additional personnel to meet

          6  that, no? That overtime? Won't overtime cost more

          7  than if you hire somebody?

          8                 MR. SCHOMBERG: That's true.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         10                 MR. SCHOMBERG: However, it is not

         11  necessary to believe that, you have to realize we

         12  didn't have the benefit of the full 24 people the

         13  entire year. The new eight that we hired, we only

         14  had them for approximately 24 percent of the new

         15  year. So, we did not get to fully utilize them, plus

         16  their first two months on the job as training and

         17  they are not fully productive. So that problem will

         18  go away as we move into the fiscal year that we are

         19  in now.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES:  But you are

         21  already in this fiscal year --

         22                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Which you are

         24  already half the fiscal year, as of Wednesday you

         25  will be already half.
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          2                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Are you up to 24

          4  currently in this Fiscal Year that you carried over

          5  from last year?

          6                 MR. SCHOMBERG: I just lost one, so I

          7  am at 23 and the new hire is in the pipeline, so our

          8  overtime reduction will be marked.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And in this

         10  Fiscal Year 2000, which is the one we are in now,

         11  did you get any additional authorization to hire?

         12  Since you lost one?

         13                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Oh, I can replace the

         14  loss, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I understand

         16  that, but that is from last year. But, again, if you

         17  say to me that now that you have all 24 up and

         18  running, I am temporarily ignoring next year's

         19  problems, and now into the first half of the fiscal

         20  year, how are you meeting this 12,000 plus, which

         21  you incurred last year and you said to me, well,

         22  that is because we were not up and running, training

         23  -- now you are, aren't you?

         24                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Yes, we are.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: How are you
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          2  meeting that?

          3                 MR. SCHOMBERG: Well, a couple of

          4  ways. One is that we have the advantage of these

          5  people full time, the new hires. Plus we have been

          6  able to take, and with the new staff gaining the

          7  experience over this time period, allow them to take

          8  and work more independently, so we have been able to

          9  cover more territory with less staff than we had to

         10  previously when we were in more of a training phase.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         12                 Council Member Boyland.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

         14  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 I just have a few questions. When you

         16  are talking about staffing for your facility, in

         17  your statement you said that in 2000 you are going

         18  to be obeying a new forensic biology annex, which is

         19  excellent. In terms of dollars, the first question

         20  is, what is the dollar amount in terms of opening

         21  that up? And secondly, in Brooklyn, I was with a

         22  group of medical experts and they were talking about

         23  the"silicone valley", the biotech piece, that would

         24  probably bring lots of dollars and probably bring

         25  lots of new talent into the community, into the
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          2  district and it would bring in federal dollars,

          3  state dollars, city and also from outside dollars,

          4  as we have seen with the state facility, SUNY

          5  Downstate, how they have been able to pull those

          6  dollars in from everywhere and also those medical

          7  experts into the community. Have you considered

          8  doing some sort of biotech kind of outreach within

          9  Kings County or within some of the City facilities?

         10  And if so, what kind of outlay are you looking

         11  forward to in terms of bringing the new talent in

         12  terms of medical facilities and you said computer

         13  technicians and those kinds of qualified persons to

         14  help you with the problems that you are having right

         15  now?

         16                 I know it is a loaded question.

         17                 DR. HIRSCH: It is several questions,

         18  and I will try to answer them.

         19                 First of all, regarding the DNA

         20  laboratory, the cost of the annex, the new facility

         21  at Bellevue, which is in the neighborhood of 6,000

         22  square feet, the capital cost for renovating that is

         23  ballpark three-quarters of a million dollars.

         24                 The operating cost for personnel and

         25  supplies for the new people who are coming on board
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          2  is roughly two and a half million dollars ballpark.

          3  The new hires, in order to work as scientists in the

          4  DNA laboratory, have to have an educational

          5  background that includes biochemistry, genetics,

          6  things of that nature --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Exactly.

          8                 DR. HIRSCH: And we have not

          9  encountered difficulty in recruiting entry level

         10  scientists for our forensic biology laboratory. It

         11  is the largest public laboratory of its type in the

         12  United States of America, it is staffed by superb

         13  people and it is a magnet for entry level scientists

         14  getting out of school and looking to gain the

         15  training and experience.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That's good.

         17                 DR. HIRSCH: Oh, you bet it is. It is

         18  great.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. I was

         20  just trying to lead in terms of looking at the

         21  surrounding campus of Kings County, we know they are

         22  going through a metamorphosis now, they are in the

         23  forefront of changing in the new millennium, but we

         24  wanted to try to try to plant some seeds in terms of

         25  bringing a whole development of sort of a smaller
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          2  Silicone Valley within Brooklyn. I know the concept

          3  is huge, but I am sure you are the expert and you

          4  will figure out ways to --

          5                 DR. HIRSCH: We would be delighted to

          6  participate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I would like

          8  to talk to you and also the Chairman on something of

          9  that nature happening in Brooklyn.

         10                 DR. HIRSCH: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: We have been

         12  joined by Council Member Pedro Espada from the

         13  Bronx.

         14                 Any other questions of my colleagues?

         15                 Seeing none, Dr. Hirsch, thank you so

         16  much.

         17                 DR. HIRSCH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: As I said in my

         20  opening remarks, my dear friend Dr. Neal Cohen,

         21  Commissioner of the Department of Health.

         22                 You are going to wear your right hat,

         23  right? There is no merger yet, it is the Department

         24  of Health.

         25                 Commissioner, first, welcome again
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          2  before this Committee. Let me perhaps, for my

          3  colleagues who have joined us, and perhaps after I

          4  opened the hearing with my statement, let me again

          5  for the record set the record straight, Commissioner

          6  Neal Cohen.

          7                 Since the day I met you and since I

          8  assumed the chairmanship of this Committee, I am a

          9  believer that the Commissioner of Health is the

         10  chief health officer, he or she sets the tone of

         11  health services in this City. It also is the chief

         12  advocate for health services in this city.

         13                 Having said that, as you know, one of

         14  the things that I have done is perhaps deal with you

         15  as the Commissioner, and so this morning before you

         16  testify, not only will you be testifying on your own

         17  agency, the Department of Health, but I have also

         18  asked not only with you, but I have also shared with

         19  my colleague that I expect you also to be prepared

         20  to answer questions of the contractual agreements

         21  between you and the Health and Hospital Corporation.

         22                 Commissioner, you are prepared to

         23  also address those questions, correct?

         24                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.
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          2                 Having said that, welcome,

          3  Commissioner Cohen. I hope that I fulfilled my

          4  commitment to not only provide you with comfortable

          5  chairs, but make your stay with me and this

          6  Committee one of pleasant times.

          7                 Would you identify yourself for the

          8  record and those with you, sir?

          9                 DR. COHEN: Yes, thank you. I am Dr.

         10  Neal Cohen, the Commissioner of the New York City

         11  Department of Health. To my left is Mr. Dan Still,

         12  Deputy Commissioner for Health Support Services, and

         13  to my right is Dr. Benjamin Mojica, Deputy

         14  Commissioner for the Division of Health.

         15                 Good morning, Chairman Robles, and

         16  members of the Health Committee.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good morning.

         18                 DR. COHEN: I thank you for the

         19  opportunity to appear before you today to discuss

         20  the Department of Health sections of the Mayor's

         21  Management Report.

         22                 I have kept my prepared statement

         23  brief today to allow time for your questions. As you

         24  know, since the Mayor's Management Report was

         25  published, the need for a strong public health
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          2  department was clearly demonstrated by our work to

          3  address the West Nile Virus outbreak.

          4                 The Department in conjunction with

          5  other City, State and Federal Agencies put forth an

          6  intensive effort to identify cases, control the

          7  spread of the disease, educate the public and

          8  analyze the cause.

          9                 While the response to the outbreak

         10  illustrates the capability of the Department in a

         11  crisis, the Mayor's Management Report documents the

         12  critical activities that we carry on every day to

         13  protect the public health.

         14                 In Fiscal Year '99, the Department

         15  launched an internal strategic initiative to improve

         16  the integration and effectiveness of our core

         17  functions. Our plan for the new organizational

         18  design will not affect any of the services currently

         19  provided by the Department. The reorganization will

         20  improve the Department's ability to monitor health

         21  status and respond to public health issues by

         22  consolidating disease registries, implementing

         23  cross-cutting initiatives among bureaus, conducting

         24  medical education and provider training and building

         25  a stronger community presence through community
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          2  partnerships.

          3                 One of the many ways the Department

          4  is strengthening our community presence is through

          5  the turning point initiative.

          6                 An innovative community partnership

          7  building initiative that brings together more than

          8  25 community groups and health care-related agencies

          9  Citywide, to identify public health priorities and

         10  develop a multi-year plan to address these

         11  priorities.

         12                 In Fiscal Year '99 community health

         13  forums were conducted in Manhattan, Queens and

         14  Brooklyn. Health profiles presenting selected health

         15  and demographic information for these areas were

         16  distributed. Similar forums and profiles have been

         17  planned for the remaining boroughs in Fiscal Year

         18  2000.

         19                 The rapidly changing health care

         20  environment is another reason we must find ways to

         21  continuously improve our effectiveness and

         22  efficiency. Since the transfer of the City's

         23  Medicaid Managed Care Program more than one year ago

         24  from the Mayor's Office, the Department has been

         25  fulfilling its mission of administering the
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          2  mandatory managed care program, executing contracts

          3  with Medicaid Managed Care providers, monitoring

          4  plan providers' performance and enforcing the terms

          5  and conditions of planned contracts.

          6                 The mandatory Medicare Managed Care

          7  program is in its first phase of operation. A total

          8  of 19,048 enrollments have been processed since the

          9  start of the mandatory program in August 1999.

         10                 The Department's Division of Health

         11  Care Access has also been working with the Mayor's

         12  Office of Health Services on a series of insurance

         13  initiatives. One of these initiatives is the

         14  creation of a Citywide health purchasing alliance,

         15  with one million dollars in seed money received from

         16  the City of New York, the New York business group on

         17  health was selected to develop and administer Health

         18  Pass, a new health insurance program that enables

         19  small business owners with two to 50 employees to

         20  offer a choice of health insurance plans and benefit

         21  options.

         22                 Health Pass was launched this past

         23  November and has an anticipated coverage effective

         24  date of December 1.

         25                 I am pleased to report there have
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          2  been several significant accomplishments in the

          3  Department's disease prevention and control efforts.

          4  For the sixth year in a row, the number of

          5  tuberculosis cases has declined. Between calendar

          6  years 1992 and 1998, the Department's diligent

          7  efforts have contributed to a 59 percent reduction

          8  in new tuberculosis cases and an 80 percent decrease

          9  in multiple drug resistant TB cases.

         10                 Most significantly, for the third

         11  time since AIDS became a reportable condition, there

         12  has been a substantial decrease in the number of

         13  deaths from that disease.

         14                 In calendar year 1996 there were

         15  4,998 deaths from AIDS in New York City, while in

         16  calendar year 1998 there were 1,978 deaths, a

         17  decreased of 60 percent.

         18                 Further, a comparison of calendar

         19  years '95 and '98 data shows a 72 percent decrease

         20  in the number of deaths from AIDS.

         21                 Much of the decrease in deaths has

         22  been attributed to an enhanced array of direct

         23  services to people living with HIV/AIDS, such as

         24  those provided through the Ryan White Care Act.

         25                 The decrease in AIDS mortality has
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          2  been across the board, with declines in deaths in

          3  every age group, both men and women, and among all

          4  major ethnic and racial groups.

          5                 A dramatic reduction in the City's

          6  infant mortality rate to an all-time low represents

          7  another significant improvement.

          8                 As you know, infant mortality is

          9  widely regarded as a key societal health indicator.

         10  In calendar 1998, the City's infant mortality rate

         11  fell to 6.8 infant deaths per 1,000 live births. A

         12  decline of 13 percent from the 1996 rate of 7.8. The

         13  City's rate is now below the healthy people 2000

         14  target of 7.0 per 1,000 live births. Some of the

         15  most notable rate reductions have occurred in City

         16  neighborhoods where infant mortality has

         17  historically been very high. The infant mortality

         18  rate in Central Harlem, which in 1996 had the

         19  highest rate of any City neighborhood, fell by 25

         20  percent.

         21                 In East Harlem, the rate declined 32

         22  percent, placing that neighborhood just above the

         23  Citywide average.

         24                 In Jamaica, which in 1996 had the

         25  second highest infant mortality rate of any City
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          2  neighborhoods, infant mortality has fallen by 36

          3  percent.

          4                 Mott Haven's rate fell by 53 percent,

          5  to a rate even lower than the Citywide average. And

          6  the Department is committed to working towards

          7  further reductions in infant mortality.

          8                 The Health Department continued its

          9  efforts to ensure that children with blood lead

         10  levels greater than or equal to 20 micrograms per

         11  deciliter received case management and that their

         12  homes receive environmental investigations.

         13                 There has been a 53 percent decrease

         14  in the number of new childhood lead poisoning cases

         15  since Fiscal Year 1995, down to 954 cases in Fiscal

         16  Year '99.

         17                 Furthermore, in Fiscal Year '99, 90

         18  percent of initial lead inspections were completed

         19  within three days.

         20                 In Fiscal Year 2000 we have lowered

         21  the action threshold from 15 micrograms per

         22  deciliter, to provide expanded environmental

         23  investigations in case management, which will

         24  strengthen our lead poisoning prevention efforts

         25  Citywide.
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          2                 To ensure the health of children, the

          3  Department began operating the immunization registry

          4  in January 1997. The registry is a centralized

          5  electronic record-keeping system, when fully

          6  operational will enable public health officials to

          7  monitor Citywide and neighborhood immunization

          8  rates. The system also allows parents and physicians

          9  to obtain a complete record of their child's

         10  immunization history.

         11                 Through June 30th of 1999, more than

         12  1.75 million children and eight and a half million

         13  immunizations have been entered into the registry.

         14                 One-hundred percent of medical

         15  institutions and 87 percent of private physicians

         16  are now linked to the registry.

         17                 In the fight against asthma, I am

         18  proud of the Department's lead role in developing a

         19  comprehensive multi-pronged community-focused

         20  initiative to reduce the impact of asthma in the

         21  City.

         22                 The New York City childhood asthma

         23  initiative launched in Fiscal Year '98 through a

         24  partnership involving several City agencies, and

         25  other partners, comprises four major components, a
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          2  Citywide educational campaign, community-based

          3  interventions, school health activities and

          4  surveillance and evaluation activities.

          5                 The education component includes

          6  developing and disseminating multilingual asthma

          7  educational materials and a medical provider

          8  training program.

          9                 In addition, the Childhood asthma

         10  initiative has continued to inform the public

         11  through a media campaign focused on asthma

         12  prevention.

         13                 Phase I of this campaign began in

         14  Fiscal Year '98 with the Department's poster series,

         15  "I Have Asthma, But Asthma Doesn't Have Me",

         16  displayed in English and Spanish in subway cars and

         17  bus shelters.

         18                 Phase II, including the development

         19  of radio and new subway print advertisements, was

         20  launched in September of this year, and will

         21  continue through May of 2000.

         22                 The community-based programs are

         23  mobilizing local asthma partnerships to develop

         24  community capacity around asthma and provide asthma

         25  education and case management in the five boroughs.
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          2                 Activities took place throughout the

          3  City during Fiscal Year '99, including medical

          4  provider education and training, conferences and

          5  community educational activities.

          6                 In the school setting, as part of the

          7  Department's Hunt's Point childhood promotion

          8  initiative, the Department performed asthma

          9  committees at three public elementary schools.

         10                 In Fiscal Year '99, community

         11  outreach and education activities reached 2,500

         12  children, 500 parents and 200 teachers and school

         13  personnel.

         14                 And Citywide, the Open Airways for

         15  Schools Program, continue to provide asthma

         16  education for children aged eight to 11. During the

         17  spring of 1999, the School Health Program, in

         18  collaboration with the Board of Ed, the American

         19  Lung Association, and with local support from

         20  community organizations and local elected officials,

         21  held family asthma days for children with asthma and

         22  their parents and guardians in every community

         23  school district throughout the City.

         24                 Families of children with asthma and

         25  children themselves were invited to these festive
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          2  programs. Educational programs and activities were

          3  offered to the children and families by community

          4  physicians and health providers from local health

          5  organizations.

          6                 More than 3,250 parents and guardians

          7  attended and in addition to 1,269 children who

          8  attended who are asthmatic.

          9                 Further, the childhood asthma

         10  initiative has expanded to add a two-year pilot

         11  program in East Harlem and will focus on the

         12  development of a tracking and response system for

         13  children with asthma symptoms.

         14                 This initiative, the critical event

         15  response system, is designed to provide linkages

         16  among health care providers, school nurses and

         17  families to address the needs of children who have

         18  uncontrolled asthma and thereby reduce the need for

         19  hospitalizations or emergency room care.

         20                 In the area of environmental and

         21  regulatory health services, the number of initial

         22  inspections of food service establishments performed

         23  in Fiscal Year '99 increased from 17,726 in Fiscal

         24  Year '98, to 22,266 in Fiscal Year '99. The

         25  inspections covered 94.3 percent of all restaurants
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          2  requiring an initial inspection.

          3                 The Department plans to conduct

          4  inspections of every permitted food service

          5  establishment in the City by the end of calendar

          6  year 1999.

          7                 The Department continued the Mayor's

          8  comprehensive pest control initiative, which was

          9  begun in August 1997. In Fiscal Year '99, Phase II

         10  inspections and clean-ups and exterminations were

         11  completed. Phase III inspections were completed and

         12  clean-ups and exterminations will continue through

         13  the end of this calendar year.

         14                 In the area of veterinary public

         15  health, in Fiscal Year 1999, the Department

         16  developed a campaign to inform the public of state

         17  and city laws that require all dogs to be licensed,

         18  vaccinated against rabies and leashed in public

         19  areas. Posters were displayed in subway cars and

         20  smaller versions of the posters, along with dog

         21  license applications, were sent to community board

         22  veterinarians and all animal facility owners.

         23                 The success of the campaign has been

         24  evident. In a comparison of the number of dog

         25  license applications received by the Department
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          2  during the month of August and September 1998,

          3  compared to the same two months of 1999, we have

          4  observed a 52 and 58 percent increase respectively.

          5                 Also the Center for Animal Care and

          6  Control, we opened its Brooklyn shelter, full

          7  capacity, following renovation.

          8                 In June 1999, the Board of Health

          9  adopted amendments to section 161.01 of the City's

         10  Health Code, which promulgated the City's first list

         11  of wild animals that may not be sold or possessed

         12  within the City because they are considered fierce,

         13  dangerous or naturally inclined to do harm.

         14                 This codification serves as an

         15  advisory for pet shops and animal organizations

         16  engaged in the sale or adoption of animals, and

         17  eliminates the need for the Department to litigate

         18  on a case-by-case basis the issue of whether animals

         19  should be considered wild.

         20                 And finally, I would also like to

         21  update you on the progress made in the Department's

         22  customer service initiative.

         23                 While the Department's target average

         24  waiting time for customers who apply in person for

         25  copies of birth certificates is 15 minutes, in
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          2  Fiscal Year '99 the average waiting time was only

          3  seven minutes.

          4                 Also, as part of the Mayor's customer

          5  service initiative, the Department is exploring the

          6  possibility of the public allowing to purchase birth

          7  certificates for themselves or family members over a

          8  secure system on the City's Internet Web Site New

          9  York City Link.

         10                 As you know, the Department produces

         11  about 250,000 copies of birth and death certificates

         12  annually and this new service will add to our

         13  existing walk-in mail telephone and fax services.

         14                 The Mayor's Management Report

         15  outlines many more of the Health Department's goals

         16  and objectives and I know there are a number of

         17  specific areas that you would like to discuss, so we

         18  will stop and I will allow you the opportunity for

         19  your many questions. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         21  Commissioner. Let me, before I begin the questions

         22  and open it up to my colleagues, let me make some

         23  announcements for my colleagues who are with me and

         24  also for the public.

         25                 As you know, the Governor signed into
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          2  law a law called Kendra's law and this Committee is

          3  having an oversight hearing on that law so that the

          4  Commissioner sits here but a different hat, the

          5  Commissioner of Mental Health, can address not only

          6  the plan jointly with the Subcommittee and this

          7  Committee on this law, where are we getting the

          8  resources, the money to implement this law, and that

          9  will be done on December 2nd at 1:00 p.m. here in

         10  the Council Chambers. So that is for the public

         11  information.

         12                 I notice in your testimony, sir, you

         13  elaborated on restaurants inspections, let me say

         14  that this Committee will also have a hearing on a

         15  pending law, Intro. 350-A, referred to as the

         16  restaurant bill on December 15th at 1:00 p.m. here

         17  in the Chambers also, and that is based upon

         18  regulations of all food service establishments, so I

         19  just wanted to ask my colleagues, while the

         20  questions may be related to the MMR of last year in

         21  those areas, in this case the Commissioner of Health

         22  and the restaurants, we will be having hearings on

         23  those areas.

         24                 Commissioner Cohen, let me perhaps

         25  again understand and let me set the tone so that I
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          2  understand it. And then I am going to back away with

          3  perhaps one question and then open it up to my

          4  colleagues and based upon the questions they ask, I

          5  will come back.

          6                 Somewhere along this hearing, I will

          7  be addressing or my colleague will be addressing the

          8  relationship between your agency that for the most

          9  part contracts out most, if not all of your

         10  services; is that fair to say, sir? I mean, you for

         11  the most part really contract out most of your

         12  services?

         13                 DR. COHEN: The clinical services,

         14  direct care to patients and people.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, for example,

         16  you may have contracts with community-based

         17  organizations for the Department of Health area that

         18  perhaps you don't provide directly but you contract

         19  out, correct?

         20                 DR. COHEN: That's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And then you have

         22  another area that you directly implement; is that

         23  fair?

         24                 DR. COHEN: That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: In that area,
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          2  what is the percentage of those that you directly

          3  implement and those that contract out, just your

          4  agency with community-based organizations? Let's

          5  start with the area of, what is the percentage of

          6  that budget, or your operation goes to your direct

          7  services that your agency provides?

          8                 DR. COHEN: With regard to the

          9  clinical services that are maintained at the

         10  Department of Health, those are limited to specialty

         11  care services such as those tuberculosis clinics

         12  that are still operating and renovated for the most

         13  part, as well as sexually-transmitted disease,

         14  sexually-transmitted illness services, and a smaller

         15  portion of the services that are provided for

         16  HIV/AIDS patients because of the large Ryan White

         17  Program that we contract out to community

         18  organizations and local health providers. We also

         19  have a program that we maintain for immunizations

         20  and new admission examination for children who need

         21  to meet the requirements of health code on entrance

         22  into elementary school. So, it is relatively small

         23  in relation to the larger contracts for family and

         24  child health that we maintain with Health and

         25  Hospitals Corporation, as well as the large contract
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          2  with HHC for the correctional health services.

          3                 I couldn't give you a percentage at

          4  this moment.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is it fair to say

          6  that what ever operational services you provide,

          7  since I have been around for a long time, is it fair

          8  to say that those are being carried out within what

          9  used to be called the

         10  Department of Health clinics, which are your

         11  building; is that fair to say?

         12                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Any of those

         14  services outside of your building?

         15                 DR. COHEN: There are child health

         16  services that are provided at the City Housing

         17  Authority facilities that are not Department of

         18  Health buildings. There are those that are operating

         19  from the schools. As you know, we have a public

         20  health presence in schools, those are Board of

         21  Education facilities. So it is not inclusive to the

         22  Department of Health.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, let me make

         24  sure.

         25                 Can you provide this Committee with
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          2  all of the direct services that you provide and at

          3  least give us all of the Department of Health

          4  clinics operation that you still provide within your

          5  own buildings.

          6                 And second, in the NYCHA facilities

          7  can you also provide and identify which housing

          8  developments you have these operationals. And I am

          9  assuming that while they are in NYCHA, but you are

         10  the overseer, which you run it, it is your personnel

         11  or is that one of those contracted out with some

         12  other agency?

         13                 DR. COHEN: Those are contracted with

         14  Health and Hospitals Corporation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         16                 So that you do not then provide

         17  direct services within NYCHA, but rather you

         18  contract out with HHC and they provide it in NYCHA.

         19                 DR. COHEN: That's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So you are not

         21  providing direct service.

         22                 DR. COHEN: No, we are not.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. So that you

         24  can't include that to my question, correct? That

         25  will fall into the contracted out by other agencies.
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          2                 DR. COHEN: That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          4                 In the Board of Education, let me

          5  make sure I understand, in the Board of Education,

          6  you do have a nurse in each elementary school,

          7  correct?

          8                 DR. COHEN: That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I am assuming

         10  that in those elementary schools, because of your

         11  presence, you do have a handle on the health areas

         12  in those schools; is that fair to say?

         13                 DR. COHEN: That's correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, you do not

         15  have a full-time person in the, what I call junior

         16  high school middle school, correct?

         17                 DR. COHEN: Correct. We don't have a

         18  full-time nurse in every school. Although we have

         19  public health advisors so that we have a regular

         20  presence. We don't have nurses on site daily.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am sorry, go

         22  back a little bit. I am a little slow right now.

         23                 DR. COHEN: Public health advisor.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Are those

         25  Department of Health personnel?
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          2                 DR. COHEN: Yes, they are.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And they are

          4  located where?

          5                 DR. COHEN: They operate, they work in

          6  conjunction with the nurse at the school facility.

          7  And they are --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Wait, wait. I

          9  want to make sure, again. Bear with me,

         10  Commissioner.

         11                 At elementary school we know we have

         12  a nurse all over the place. In junior high school

         13  you are saying you may have what I would call a

         14  part-time, and what I am looking for is, one, I want

         15  you to identify in those junior high schools, middle

         16  schools, where do you have the nurse personnel, even

         17  though it is part-time, and when you say about this

         18  consultant coordinator, whatever you call it, where

         19  do they operate from? How do they oversee these

         20  schools? Do they operate from 40 Worth?

         21                 DR. COHEN: No, they are in the

         22  schools working under the supervision of the public

         23  health nurse, and in the absence of the public

         24  health nurse they are continuing to collect

         25  information about the health issues that you
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          2  referred to.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: How many of those

          4  do you have in the junior high school, middle-age

          5  schools, since I am not aware that we have a nurse

          6  in every one of those schools, although that is a

          7  goal that you and I have been trying to achieve in

          8  the budget process. How many of those, when the

          9  absence of a nurse or now this aid, and if you would

         10  be so kind to provide this Committee with where are

         11  they and how often are they there? What is the time?

         12  Just to have an idea.

         13                 And while you are getting some kind

         14  of information, let me break in, because whenever

         15  there are young people I stop the world, because

         16  hopefully we have a group of future leaders from

         17  Richmond Hill New York, and let's see, they happened

         18  to come out of Council Member Koslowitz' district,

         19  and it is Our Lady of Cansel School (phonetic). I

         20  think I pronounced it wrong, because I got such a

         21  respond (sic), so I apologize.

         22                 Let me just say that before you --

         23  first, welcome to City Hall and the Council Chamber.

         24  This Committee is the Committee on Health and I am

         25  the Chair. I am Council Member Robles from Brooklyn,
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          2  my colleagues representing, Julia Harrison is from

          3  Queens, Council Member Oddo is from Staten Island,

          4  Council Member Phil Reed is from Manhattan and the

          5  Bronx, Council Member Clarke is from Brooklyn,

          6  Council Member Pedro Espada is from the Bronx, and

          7  Council Member Tracy Boyland is from Brooklyn. And

          8  this Committee, and the gentleman who is getting

          9  briefed over there is the Commissioner of the New

         10  York City Department of Health, Commissioner Dr.

         11  Neal Cohen, and these hearings are on what is called

         12  the Mayor's Management Report, which we try to

         13  monitor and oversee this agency.

         14                 And having said that on behalf of my

         15  colleague, Council Member Koslowitz, welcome to City

         16  Hall, and let me, I always like to challenge young

         17  people particularly.

         18                 You are up there in the balcony. I am

         19  sure you are impressed with this building, correct?

         20  This Chamber. You are also impressed to see us over

         21  here talking to the Commissioner, correct? Well, in

         22  this City now there is called "term limits", meaning

         23  that in the Year 2001, some of us won't be around to

         24  sit here.

         25                 However, I hope your visit does one

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  thing, if nothing else, we welcome you to understand

          3  that we did not get here because we are special, we

          4  got here because we also sat up there in the balcony

          5  and we come from all of the communities that I

          6  mentioned in the five boroughs that makes this City

          7  the great City that it is.

          8                 I hope that your visit not only

          9  challenges you, and you challenge yourself to be

         10  properly educated, I hope one day that you can be

         11  the public servants to lead the City. That is

         12  possible. That is how we did it. I hope you do it,

         13  too. Welcome to City Hall.

         14                 Ms. Laude, thank you for joining us.

         15  I understand you are leading the group, correct?

         16                 MS. LAUDE: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.

         18                 All right, Commissioner.

         19                 DR. COHEN: You were asking about the

         20  staffing of the elementary and the intermediate

         21  schools.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Not so much

         23  elementary, because I know that in elementary you

         24  have a nurse in every school.

         25                 DR. COHEN: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: My understanding,

          3  if I am correct, in the junior high school, middle

          4  school, you do not have full-time nurses in every

          5  school. You have what we will call part-time. So,

          6  not every school has a nurse, correct?

          7                 DR. COHEN: Every school is assigned a

          8  nurse, but they don't have a daily presence in the

          9  school.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

         11                 DR. COHEN: So, we have approximately

         12  140 public health advisors who are in those schools

         13  regularly and under the supervision of the public

         14  health nurse are collecting medical information,

         15  keeping records up-to-date and reaching out to

         16  family members and health providers when indicated

         17  to make sure that the necessary physical examination

         18  information and immunization record is being

         19  updated.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, do they do

         21  that, or that is the burden of the Board of

         22  Education when it comes to the updating of the

         23  records for the immunization?

         24                 DR. COHEN: No, we do that as part of

         25  our mandate to address the public health issues.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I will come back

          3  on the immunization because as you know the

          4  Comptroller has been very critical of the

          5  immunization law and that is that I believe the last

          6  number was something like -- in terms of the

          7  percentage was in the high eighties, about 90, and

          8  one of the things that in hearings that we had

          9  before is because people are not documenting when a

         10  child gets immunized.

         11                 Second, please understand that the

         12  law clearly says that a child entering a public

         13  school system or the parochial school system,

         14  private schools, must have an immunization chart and

         15  one of the things that I find is that we have

         16  students today in schools that do not have a

         17  complete immunization chart.

         18                 Now, the law says that child is kept

         19  out of school up to the 14th day. After that that

         20  child must be denied access to the school. And I am

         21  telling you that my previous hearing shows that we

         22  have students in our schools that do not have the

         23  proper immunization, and if I remember correctly,

         24  since I was the sponsor and the author of that bill

         25  when I first went to Albany, it calls for $1,000
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          2  fine each day that a child is not properly

          3  immunized, and so there is an area that we will be

          4  addressing.

          5                 Let me be quick on this asthma,

          6  because I notice how all of a sudden the Council was

          7  completely ignored and somehow it was our initiative

          8  when we first put into the budget and somehow in

          9  your testimony. But is it fair to say that the

         10  Council did play a key role on the creation of the

         11  asthma initiative?

         12                 DR. COHEN: Yes, it is. Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And was it the

         14  Council that actually put the money in the budget

         15  after consultation and negotiations with the

         16  Administration?

         17                 DR. COHEN: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         19                 Now, in this portion of the MMR, it

         20  contains a section of the childhood asthma program.

         21  The section provides steps and actions that are

         22  being taken to implement this program, however there

         23  is no discussion of results that had been achieved

         24  by the program.

         25                 Do you have in your agency any data
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          2  to support the success of this program, sir?

          3                 DR. COHEN: We are certainly

          4  monitoring the deliverables of our contractors to

          5  make sure they are in keeping with what is expected.

          6                 We are going forward contracting with

          7  an evaluator of the New York City Childhood

          8  Initiative so that every component of the initiative

          9  will be assessed and that includes the provider

         10  education, the critical event response system and

         11  the effectiveness of our community-based

         12  partnerships.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So you are saying

         14  you will now have someone that will actually

         15  evaluate those programs?

         16                 DR. COHEN: Yes, we will.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But you will not,

         18  prior to this person coming on board; is that fair

         19  to say?

         20                 DR. COHEN: We are evaluating the

         21  performance based upon deliverables that are part of

         22  the contractual relationship. And we do have some

         23  data that suggests that we are beginning to see some

         24  declines in asthma hospitalizations throughout the

         25  City in the past year.
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          2                 I don't want to overstate that

          3  because at this point we need to determine whether

          4  that is a fluctuation that is related to perhaps a

          5  milder winter than usual and we are going to look at

          6  this over the coming year to see whether this trend

          7  is continuing in the right direction.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So hopefully as

          9  we begin to move into the Fiscal Year 2001 and we

         10  start dealing with a budget of the Year 2001, this

         11  Committee and members of the Committee and the

         12  Council can see evaluations of these programs?

         13                 DR. COHEN: Of course.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         15  Reed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair.

         18                 Good morning, Commissioner. And this

         19  is a continuation, one of my concerns I think we all

         20  know is asthma. You talked about programs in part of

         21  the community that I represent, and the criteria

         22  that the chair has requested I think is useful and I

         23  think we would like to see if New York is

         24  unfortunately the capital or has the worst case of

         25  asthma in the country and East Harlem then therefore
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          2  has the worst case in New York City, I think it

          3  would be useful if we looked at some of these

          4  criteria for putting in the management report as to

          5  what reduction we have had. It seems that

          6  hospitalization at this moment is the only criteria

          7  we can measure the incidence or when people have an

          8  asthma attack. But I would certainly like to see

          9  that in this management report.

         10                 A lot of the work that was done by

         11  the Council and by your office I think was generated

         12  based on information that came out of the Department

         13  of Health, was picked up by the newspapers and made

         14  a great deal of headlines, and we had hearings just

         15  shortly after I came here, and initiatives were put

         16  into place. Those statistics about hospitalizations,

         17  if I recall, were from 1996. So, I would think,

         18  perhaps the first question is, is there new data

         19  that we can look at about the hospitalization rates

         20  by neighborhood presently?

         21                 DR. COHEN: We have data from 1997

         22  now, that is the SPARCs database that the State

         23  System on Hospitalization and there is obviously

         24  more than a six-month lag between the completion of

         25  the calendar year and the availability of that data,
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          2  but we do have now the '97 database.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I am not

          4  going to spar with you this morning about this,

          5  Commissioner, but if it is a six-month lag in FY

          6  '97, we have already passed through Fiscal '98 and

          7  '99, we are in 2000, so it would seem to me we

          8  would have more recent data, and given that

          9  everybody has acknowledged that there is an epidemic

         10  here, and I think, as I have said publicly, that

         11  some of your programs have been terrific,

         12  particularly I think the public service information,

         13  but we need some data to measure the success. We are

         14  going to continue to put money into these programs,

         15  I would imagine in this next round of funding we are

         16  going to see more money, but I don't think it is

         17  responsible to continue to put money in something

         18  when we are not looking at the hard data about what

         19  the hospitalization rates are.

         20                 DR. COHEN: Okay, let me clarify that.

         21  The SPARCs database is not a City system, it is at

         22  the State Department of Health, and we don't have

         23  any influence over the availability over that data.

         24  So if it were a matter of the City's monitoring of

         25  hospitalization rates, I would work closely with the
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          2  Council to speed that up, but we don't have that

          3  capacity. We do have the '97 data and we are

          4  analyzing that in relation to '96 trends, which as I

          5  said before is very promising, because we are seeing

          6  Citywide significant reductions. But I don't want to

          7  attribute that to the effectiveness of our New York

          8  City Asthma Initiative at this moment. I think we

          9  are impacting favorably and positively, but I agree

         10  with you that we need to do more to make sure that

         11  the interventions that we are making are

         12  accomplishing what our goals are.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I would request

         14  that we look at finding ways to put barometers in

         15  the MMR, Mr. Chair, and recognizing that you may

         16  have a state system that you have to use, given what

         17  we are dealing with in the City we could probably

         18  come up with some resources to update these

         19  statistics, because '97 isn't going to help us.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is someone here

         21  from the Mayor's Office on Operations who does this

         22  MMR? Hello? Matt, is anybody here from the Mayor's

         23  Office of Operations?

         24                 Why don't we do this, Matt, since we

         25  are going to be here all day why don't you get
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          2  somebody from the Mayor's Office on Operations who

          3  does both this agency and the next one, which is

          4  mental health, and then we are going to ask that

          5  question. Because really I think that question has

          6  to be asked of the Mayor's Office on Operation who

          7  prepares this MMR, not the commissioner. And if you

          8  follow the scenario, I have been to other hearings

          9  where the Commissioners have said, including the

         10  Police Commissioner, well why don't you ask the

         11  Mayor's Office on Operations that.

         12                 So, rather than going to that back

         13  and forth, Matt, why don't we get somebody who

         14  worked on this part of this hearing, both in the

         15  Department of Health and Mental Health when it comes

         16  so that Council Member Reed and I am sure all of us

         17  can ask that question and see whether in next year's

         18  MMR those kind of questions can be answered.

         19                 DR. COHEN: If I may, not in the

         20  nature of sparring, Council Member Reed, just in

         21  terms of giving you information, we are concerned

         22  about getting data as close to the season

         23  so-to-speak as possible. So there are two

         24  initiatives that we have taken. One, as you may

         25  recall, is the 211 S Form, which is the form that is
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          2  required of all new entrants into public school. We

          3  have modified that form in collaboration with the

          4  Board of Ed, so that it has several questions that

          5  are now asthma specific, and this past year we have

          6  collected these forms and we are currently analyzing

          7  that to look at whether some of the surveillance

          8  information that that provides appears to be

          9  valuable to us, and whether it correlates with the

         10  other surveillance data that we have so that we can

         11  get a handle on how valuable the 211 S will be in

         12  the Board of Ed in order to determine community

         13  levels of asthma.

         14                 Another action we are taking is that

         15  we are attempting to look at emergency room visits

         16  through billing tapes that we are getting from HHC,

         17  so that we would like to determine whether the

         18  billing tape itself provides us with another way of

         19  approximating rates of emergency room visits and

         20  hospitalizations and in order to know that we have

         21  to compare that with SPARCs data, and if it turns

         22  out that that analysis is productive, we will have a

         23  quicker way to get those, to monitor and track the

         24  performance of the initiative than we do by waiting

         25  six months to a year later.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That would be

          3  appreciated. I would just comment also, since we are

          4  not going to be sparring today, a lot of this

          5  initiative that was in Fiscal '98, I know personally

          6  that we are still, we may have finally gotten to the

          7  end of the contract process, but we have a contract

          8  in East Harlem that is now two years out from doing

          9  any work because we haven't finalized the contract.

         10  If it had been finalized, it had been finalized

         11  within the last ten days.

         12                 So, it is hard for us to applaud each

         13  other, it is money out of the Fiscal '98 budget that

         14  we still sign in paper, but let's not get into a

         15  sparring match over that.

         16                 The infant mortality, you talked

         17  about the rate dropping and that is terrific,

         18  unfortunately I see my community all too often in

         19  all of these barometers of poor health, East Harlem

         20  and Mott Haven, but I don't understand in your

         21  testimony on page three why. I mean, it is good

         22  news, but what is your reasoning or what do you

         23  think are the reasons why we have seen such a

         24  precipitous drop in the infant mortality rate? I am

         25  just not picking it up out of your testimony.
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          2                 DR. COHEN: Well, we have been

          3  supporting an initiative to increase the amount of

          4  prenatal care in the City and working closely with

          5  all of the hospitals and very closely with Health

          6  and Hospitals Corporation we are seeing more women

          7  enter into prenatal care and early prenatal care and

          8  consistently there is a very significant

          9  relationship between failure to receive prenatal

         10  care and high infant mortality.

         11                 We have also seen declines in the

         12  teenage pregnancy rate and teenagers tend to have a

         13  significantly higher infant mortality because they

         14  often don't receive prenatal care and they conceal

         15  and don't seek out health providers.

         16                 The care of neonates, newborns, is

         17  certainly more advanced today than it was a decade

         18  ago, so that you know newborns are surviving even in

         19  the face of compromised health, and there is more

         20  comprehensive approaches that suggest, and this is

         21  on a national level, the infant mortality rates are

         22  declining.

         23                 What I think is very positive in New

         24  York is that some of the disparity, the range of

         25  disparity that is seen throughout the country, while
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          2  it is present in New York is not as great as it is

          3  in other parts of the country, and we reached our

          4  federal healthy people 2000 targets, not only

          5  Citywide, but also for all the ethnic and racial

          6  groups that are identified by the CDC.

          7                 Now we do consider it to be an

          8  important priority now moving forward at this

          9  millennium to develop a concerted effort to work

         10  with communities so that those communities that are

         11  still in double digits, that are lagging behind even

         12  some of the improvements in other sections of the

         13  City will see improvement, and it is not a surprise

         14  that those are the communities that have many public

         15  health issues.

         16                 So, we think that rather than

         17  addressing this in a categorical way, whether it is

         18  immunizations for young children, inspections of

         19  homes for possible asthma allergens and other needs

         20  for comprehensive pediatric health care and for

         21  pregnant women to receive prenatal care, that is a

         22  model that we think over time will have to have a

         23  significant impact on the infant mortality rate in

         24  New York City.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I think we
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          2  ought to take credit, if it is due, and the numbers

          3  are falling and if we have reached these rates of

          4  healthy people 2000, that is terrific.

          5                 The staff is showing me, I think part

          6  of what you were saying, that the rates, however,

          7  have increased in Manhattan.  There is a 26.5

          8  percent increase in Manhattan?

          9                 DR. COHEN: That is only from one year

         10  to the next. And what we find with infant mortality

         11  rates is that they jump around a lot from one year

         12  to the next and to do justice to really determining

         13  what is going on, you need to trend this data over a

         14  three to five-year period. So, what I read to you

         15  before were declines in infant mortality in the

         16  magnitude of 50 percent in those communities that

         17  bounce up in one year but are still way below where

         18  they had been just a few years ago. So we don't

         19  think that this one-year bounce in Manhattan, you

         20  know, reflects upon some turn-around that is going

         21  to be very concerning. In fact, we do see Brooklyn,

         22  for example, had a decline of I think 12.8 percent

         23  and we saw a 20 percent decline in the Bronx. So

         24  these have a tendency -- last year East Harlem and

         25  Central Harlem declined very dramatically and some
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          2  statisticians would probably have predicted that

          3  given the relatively small numbers that it would

          4  sort of bounce back as it did.

          5                 But the trend is clearly ongoing as

          6  there are significant declines in those communities.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you. Thank

          8  you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But let me make

         10  sure we follow up on something.

         11                 The fact is that there are still

         12  certain areas we need to continue to monitor, and I

         13  suggest that you provide this Committee with what

         14  are those areas and what are the steps that the

         15  Department could be doing in order to aggressively

         16  try to work with those communities and elected

         17  officials so that those numbers can be reduced. Is

         18  that a fair request?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         20                 Let me just pick up on something and

         21  then I will call on Council Member Clarke. Because

         22  one of the problems that I have, and I hope to deal

         23  with, is the number of contracts and how they get

         24  evaluated.

         25                 Now, for example, Commissioner, in
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          2  Fiscal Year '99, in your Department, you had a goal,

          3  a total of contract performances evaluated which was

          4  required by the completed -- completed by Fiscal

          5  Year '99, and that number was 171. That was your

          6  target, correct?

          7                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yet, in reality,

          9  in the end of the Fiscal Year you did 126 or those

         10  171, of which that is a 74 percent number, and I

         11  commend you for that, but here is my, and maybe you

         12  can help me out not only as we keep discussing not

         13  only your contracts within this agency, but when the

         14  next agency comes, which you are the Commissioner

         15  too.

         16                 There were five of those 126 that

         17  were found by your agency as unsatisfactory, yet I

         18  have no way of knowing whether those five in '99 may

         19  have not been in the '98, and we are now into the

         20  2000, and since I don't know how to monitor that to

         21  see whether any of these five have current contracts

         22  with your agency. Can you help me to identify that

         23  dilemma, sir?

         24                 And let me say that in '98, at least

         25  I will tell you that, I want to show you, your
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          2  target was 177 then in '98, and you completed 147

          3  and in '98 you were 83 percent. I must tell you that

          4  I find no contract unsatisfactory but in '99 you

          5  have targeted less contracts. Is that saying that

          6  you had less contracts that you contracted out

          7  because in '98 you had 177 as your target, in '99

          8  you had 171. In '98 you completed 147, you had no

          9  unsatisfactories, and in '99 you completed 126, but

         10  you were at 74 and of course there is five contracts

         11  which you have as unsatisfactory.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: I am going

         13  to respond to this, Council member. My name is Dan

         14  Still, Deputy Commissioner for Health Support

         15  Services.

         16                 There are some anomalies in this data

         17  that are reflected because the management reports

         18  the fiscal year, and many of the Department of

         19  Health, unlike the Department of Mental Health

         20  contracts don't follow the fiscal year. So, our

         21  goal, and it doesn't show up and we will have to get

         22  you the information, is still to evaluate every

         23  contract during its contract year, which may not

         24  coincide with the fiscal year.

         25                 So that is the reason why you show a
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          2  number of contracts not being evaluated in that

          3  period.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Here is my

          5  dilemma, and maybe we need to work on perhaps

          6  outstanding issues, and then when we deal with it

          7  later on in other hearings -- you may be correct,

          8  but I deal in fiscal years. The City budget is

          9  adopted in fiscal years. And even though the federal

         10  government's budget doesn't get active until

         11  sometime in October or November, we project what we

         12  are anticipating from the federal government and the

         13  state for that matter because the state doesn't pass

         14  its budget on April 1 neither, but that doesn't stop

         15  us from passing our budget. And you have come back

         16  to us on more than one occasion to amend the current

         17  budget, the budget that we passed in June. As a

         18  matter of fact, we just had one recently. Your

         19  Kendra's law, if we ever get to that budget mod

         20  calls for us to provide I believe $5.7 million that

         21  was not in the current budget. How do we know, like

         22  Councilman Reed's question, how do we know that the

         23  money that we are spending in contracting out which

         24  clearly defines what we expect to get back from

         25  those contracts are being done properly?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: I think

          3  the discrepancy of the management plan going by a

          4  fiscal year, whereas the Department of Health's

          5  contracts go by many different periods, it could be

          6  a calendar year, it could be the federal fiscal year

          7  in the case of the HIV contracts, does lead to that

          8  confusion. We will have to try to clarify that in

          9  future reports. I think your point is well taken.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, what you

         11  are doing then, since you volunteered, I suggest you

         12  also add Council Member Reed's question on the MMR

         13  indicators, and then if you want me to, I will be

         14  more than happy on behalf of the Council and now

         15  this Committee, to follow up with the same

         16  recommendations.

         17                 I was told that I needed to put in

         18  writing an order to the OMB and then I will get back

         19  a response, but if you are willing to also work with

         20  us, I welcome it. And maybe you should give me a

         21  copy of whatever you communicated and then I will

         22  use my letter based upon the same thing rather than

         23  duplicating; how's that?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: Okay,

         25  fine. One further thing, there is another area that
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          2  you brought up, the five unsatisfactory. That was

          3  reported and it just got recorded wrong, it really

          4  should be needs improvement not unsatisfactory.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What do you mean

          6  it was recorded wrong? The reputation of a CBO is on

          7  the line if you did it wrong.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: No, we

          9  didn't do it wrong, it shows up in the management

         10  plan in the wrong column. It should be "needs

         11  improvement", not "unsatisfactory".

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Needs

         13  improvement?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: And that

         17  is for both departments.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         19                 Council Member Clarke?

         20                 Okay, Council Member Harrison.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Thank you.

         22                 Dr. Cohen, I live in Queens and

         23  Queens is where we had a very exciting summer with

         24  mosquitoes and an awful lot of people were uptight

         25  and very concerned for their children's welfare.
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          2                 I would like to discuss that issue

          3  with you now, and basically ask several questions. I

          4  have four different areas.

          5                 Do you have or have you ever had to

          6  collect the information as to the number of persons

          7  who were reportedly made ill by the use of the

          8  malathion that is sprayed over the borough or over

          9  the city even for that matter?

         10                 Do you have any information about the

         11  net health effect that spraying had on the

         12  population of this City?

         13                 DR. COHEN: Councilwoman, we have

         14  collected aggregate data from the emergency rooms,

         15  from the 911 system, as opposed to individual data,

         16  which we have asked for, as we testified previously,

         17  through our public health alerts. We asked community

         18  physicians to report to us on any cases that they

         19  felt had significant adverse impacts.

         20                 I am only in a position to share with

         21  you that at this point we did not see a statistical

         22  trend towards increased numbers of 911 calls or

         23  asthma visits. There were some increases in one

         24  population and not in another population, and our

         25  best analysis at this point is that it just didn't
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          2  have significant health impacts.

          3                 That is not to say that among

          4  individuals who might be sensitive to chemicals that

          5  they didn't experience some aggravation of some

          6  underlying health condition, whether it is asthma or

          7  other respiratory condition, or skin sensitivity if

          8  in fact they had direct exposure to the pesticide.

          9                 We do, however, are comfortable in

         10  stating that it does not appear that it had

         11  significant adverse impact based upon our knowledge

         12  of the hospital systems and the reporting to us.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Is there any

         14  other kind of spray material that you might consider

         15  using should ever anything like this occur again

         16  next year, or at any other time, other than

         17  malathion? Is there anything that would be more

         18  acceptable, less dangerous perhaps?

         19                 DR. COHEN: Malathion wasn't the only

         20  pesticide that we used in the City. It was one of

         21  the two that we used for aerial application, as

         22  opposed to on the ground. On the ground we did not

         23  use malathion and we used pyrethroid derivatives

         24  that for some people don't contribute to the same

         25  potential for adverse health impact and for other
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          2  people who might be sensitive on an allergic basis

          3  to the pyrethroid, they would in turn be more

          4  sensitive to those chemicals than they would be to

          5  malathion. And both of those families of mediations,

          6  the organophosphate, which is the malathion and the

          7  pyrethroid derived pesticides are approved by the

          8  EPA, and I believe as you know we were very closely

          9  monitored by federal and state authorities and that

         10  our applications were done in close consultation

         11  with federal CDC and State Department of Health

         12  officials.

         13                 But we did do that under emergency

         14  conditions. And going forward for next spring, we

         15  will have a number of surveillance systems in place.

         16  Never having experienced this before in the western

         17  hemisphere, I am proud that our Department of Health

         18  was very quick to identify a mosquito borne

         19  encephalitis that was later identified to be West

         20  Nile virus and was such a close cousin to the St.

         21  Louis encephalitis that we thought we were dealing

         22  with initially, but as you know, the response which

         23  the Office of Emergency Management oversaw was very

         24  effective because when we look at the number of

         25  cases that were contracted, there were no new cases
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          2  that we are aware of now that were acquired from the

          3  initial launch of the spray applications in New York

          4  City.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member,

          6  let me remind you and the Committee that we had a

          7  hearing and both then, and still is, the director of

          8  the Mayor's Office of Emergency Management and

          9  Commissioner Neal Cohen are to come back to this

         10  Committee to address where do we go before the

         11  season starts, which I believe you said was about

         12  April. And I believe that we are still waiting for

         13  you to return to this Committee and I think these

         14  questions should be addressed in that oversight

         15  because it will deal exclusively of where are we and

         16  where are we going in terms of the implementation

         17  for the season; is that correct, Commissioner?

         18                 DR. COHEN: That is correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I must tell

         20  you that at the hearing in two weeks, it is over two

         21  weeks, when do you expect to come with whoever is

         22  now the Director of the Mayor's Office of Emergency

         23  Management?

         24                 DR. COHEN: Well, since that hearing

         25  we have recently attended a national conference that
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          2  was held by the CDC to look at all of the aspects of

          3  the West Nile outbreak. There is another meeting

          4  taking place in two weeks that is being conducted by

          5  the State Department of Health for more regional

          6  planning, and clearly at this point we have pretty

          7  much a sense of where we want to go with respect to

          8  the surveillance programs and the control activity,

          9  so I would think that by the end of December we will

         10  have a firm package to present to you with

         11  certainty.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: And if I

         13  may, Mr. Chairman?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member,

         15  one second.

         16                 Because I see they are walking out,

         17  the same school but this is the second group. Again,

         18  I want to welcome the students of Our Lady of

         19  Carniselle School (phonetic), from Richmond Hill.

         20                 Council Member.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Yes, I just

         22  want to abbreviate my question then, but to indicate

         23  that I have had personal experience and I think Dr.

         24  Mojica, or someone prior to Dr. Mojica, was with me

         25  in Douglaston at the salt water marshes where the
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          2  mosquitoes proliferated and   caused some children I

          3  heard to be in a coma-like condition for an entire

          4  summer.

          5                 My question, therefore, is that I

          6  would hope you are planning to take action to kill

          7  these larva while it is still in the larve stage

          8  before it actually hatches and takes over and that

          9  you will therefore be in a position to regulate it

         10  to a certain degree, and just my question would

         11  ultimately be, do you have enough money to do a

         12  function like that? Do you have enough manpower?

         13  Because we never really got sufficient manpower when

         14  we were asking for help for the control of the

         15  outbreak of mosquitoes at that Alley Pond Douglaston

         16  end of the world, which produced some very viscous

         17  mosquitoes, I must tell you. And so, I would worry

         18  that we have enough money in the budget and enough

         19  manpower, and I just want to make that comment.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me be clear,

         22  Council Member. If you remember, this Committee,

         23  this chair and this Committee is waiting upon this

         24  agency and the Mayor's Office on Emergency

         25  Management to, one, tell us whether they had enough
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          2  money of which I must tell you that we had to and we

          3  will have to put money into the budget because we

          4  did not appropriate any new dollars.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: The pest

          6  control is part of the Health Department's

          7  responsibility, is it not?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, the key

          9  here is what the Commissioner said. When it is a

         10  declared emergency, while the --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: I don't want

         12  to wait until it gets to a declared emergency.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member, I

         14  don't either, but let's be clear. What we need to do

         15  is make sure that the Mayor's Office on Emergency

         16  Management and this agency comes to this Committee

         17  before the season starts, before the budget starts,

         18  before budget mods, to address your concern. But it

         19  is not only your concern, it is every member of the

         20  Council, and I am saying the problem is now when it

         21  is an emergency, while Commissioner Cohen is the

         22  Commissioner of Health, there is a coordinator that

         23  oversees them and all the agencies that participated

         24  and that is Jerry Hauer. And, again, that was my

         25  question: When do you intend to come back to this

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Committee before, you know, the fiscal year ends and

          3  before the seasons starts so that we can address in

          4  terms of dollars what is it that we need in the

          5  budget?

          6                 DR. COHEN: Realistically I would like

          7  to come back to the Committee at the end of

          8  December, because we have scheduled the State

          9  Department of Health a planning meeting that is

         10  regional and we will make presentation of our plans

         11  and we will have a better understanding of the

         12  capacity of the state systems as well to address the

         13  City's needs.

         14                 For example, the testing of

         15  individuals, the testing of birds, the testing of

         16  mosquitoes for virus, we have to be absolutely sure

         17  that there is sufficient capacity at the level of

         18  the state and federally before we embark on --

         19  before we make our decision with respect to what the

         20  City will be doing and what we will expect that the

         21  state and federal agencies will do to support our

         22  efforts.

         23                 And with regard to the Councilman's

         24  question about larvacide, I agree with you, there is

         25  no question that applying larvacide to breeding
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          2  areas for mosquitoes is a major part of our

          3  initiative, and we will be doing that, we will be

          4  having a significant public education campaign so

          5  that home owners and community boards can address

          6  those issues in their own backyards, but we

          7  certainly see that as a prime way of addressing the

          8  problem so that we are not approaching mosquitoes

          9  once the density has gotten way out of control, and

         10  potentially can amplify the outbreak.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         13  Clarke.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman.

         16                 Commissioner, I just have a couple of

         17  quick questions, and the first is on your testimony

         18  on page two, about managed care, having been

         19  transferred to your Department, and then you gave us

         20  a figure of 19,000 enrollments since August 1999.

         21  Can you tell me what is the estimated numbers of

         22  persons, families, that you think that the agency

         23  will enroll? And then I would like for you to tell

         24  me, how many of the providers you have, how many

         25  providers you have and then how do you measure their
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          2  effectiveness in giving the kind of service for

          3  those who are enrolled in managed care?

          4                 DR. COHEN: Councilwoman, we have

          5  anticipated that there are approximately 1.2 million

          6  individuals in New York City who will fall under the

          7  purview of the Medicaid, the mandatory Medicaid

          8  Managed Care Program, and I will ask James

          9  Capazello, who is Deputy Commissioner for the Health

         10  Care Access Division, to clarify for you the

         11  oversight and monitoring plan that we have.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: First,

         14  let me state that as of the most recent numbers, as

         15  of November 19 --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Would you put

         17  your name on record?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: James

         19  Capazello, Deputy Commissioner, Health Care Access.

         20                 That the most recent enrollment

         21  numbers, which we received only late last week,

         22  accumulated through November 19th, are now 43,516.

         23                 In answer to your question as to how

         24  many providers, I can answer in terms of how many

         25  contracts we hold with managed care organizations,
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          2  and those we have 18 contractors, what I cannot give

          3  you off the top of my head are how many individual

          4  medical providers those 18 contractors have under

          5  their networks.

          6                 We can get that to you, but I don't

          7  have that off the top of my head.

          8                 In terms of monitoring of the

          9  contracts, that monitoring occurs on several levels.

         10  One is mainly the purview of the State Department of

         11  Health and that has to do with quality measurements

         12  in the clinical side of operations, and they publish

         13  a yearly report called QUAR Report (phonetic), which

         14  rates managed care performance on a variety of

         15  factors.

         16                 In addition to that, we, ourselves,

         17  in the City Health Department, we monitor planned

         18  performance around several issues such as the access

         19  and availability of appointments for enrollees, the

         20  provision of enrollment materials by plans to

         21  enrollees on a timely basis. We look at complaints

         22  data and the response time of complaints data and

         23  things of that nature.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Is there any

         25  provision in there made for disenrollment?
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          2                 If I were not satisfied with a

          3  provider, how do I change to another provider if I

          4  thought I was not getting proper service? Is there

          5  anything?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: With

          7  an initial enrollment there is a time period of 90

          8  days subsequent to the enrollment in which you can

          9  change to another provider to another plan at your

         10  discretion.

         11                 Beyond that you can change your plan

         12  if you can demonstrate good cause.

         13                 With regard to your individual

         14  provider, you can change your provider without

         15  changing your plan, and you can do so twice in any

         16  12-month period without cause and more frequently if

         17  there is cause.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Then my

         19  follow-up question is, how are the enrollees

         20  informed of this criteria, and if they justify?

         21  Because bottom line is justifying that I am unhappy

         22  with a provider, how does that take place?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: Well,

         24  again, if it is within the 90-day initial window,

         25  they don't have to justify anything, they just have
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          2  to say that they wish to change plans.

          3                 If it is beyond that it is really

          4  very liberal criterion. I am not aware of many

          5  instances in which it has been denied, in fact I

          6  can't cite you one off of the top of my head. It is

          7  neither in the plan's interest, the provider's

          8  interest or the enrollee's interest to continue in a

          9  relationship for medical care that is not a happy

         10  one.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You see, we

         12  only have 43,000 of the 1.2 million right now so it

         13  is easy to manage that when we get closer to what we

         14  think the max is, it may become even more difficult.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: That

         16  is 43,000 that have been enrolled since the

         17  beginning of August.

         18                 We actually have almost 380,000

         19  enrolled Citywide.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, then my

         21  next question is for --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before you go off

         23  of that, I want to make sure that I understand the

         24  question and the answer.

         25                 And in some boroughs, now it is
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          2  mandated and if someone does not enroll, there is a

          3  certain period that they automatically get enrolled,

          4  even though they may not like the group; is that

          5  correct?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: That's

          7  correct. It is all of Staten Island and parts of

          8  Brooklyn and Manhattan at this point.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I just

         10  wanted to make sure.

         11                 And most of this comes from mandates

         12  not created by us but by federal and state, correct?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: It is

         14  a waiver that was negotiated between the state and

         15  federal government.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right. But it

         17  allows them in the City to move forward based upon

         18  that waiver?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: That's

         20  correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So the criteria

         22  is and the options, and it really doesn't rest with

         23  us, it rests within a waiver which was mutually

         24  agreed upon by both the federal and state

         25  government; is that fair?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: That's

          3  fair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I just want to

          5  make sure that we put the burden where it belongs.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

          7                 And then my final question, and this

          8  is going to be, in what languages are the materials

          9  in so that if I were not English-speaking and I

         10  needed to enroll my family, how do I get that

         11  information, and where is the information housed so

         12  that I would? How many languages do you have at the

         13  moment?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: Other

         15  than English materials but not all materials, I must

         16  be clear, are produced also in Russian, Spanish,

         17  Haitian, Creole, and I believe it is Mandarin

         18  Chinese.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

         20                 What materials have you translated,

         21  and what materials have not yet been translated?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: I know

         23  that much of the enrollment material has been

         24  translated but into Spanish. For example, I know we

         25  are in the process now of creating translations for
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          2  what we call the Health Plan chart, which lists all

          3  of the providers in a particular, all of the managed

          4  care organizations in a particular borough, and

          5  gives certain other information.

          6                 We are now looking at translating

          7  some of the letters that go to enrollees into other

          8  languages, but the forms themselves are either

          9  English -- I believe just English and Spanish.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I would think

         11  that, yes, English and Spanish is good, but in a

         12  City as diverse as this is, in terms of languages,

         13  and I will not only just say Creole, there are many

         14  other languages, and I think in order for everybody

         15  to have the same head start, as far as I am

         16  concerned and access, that I think it would have

         17  been more appropriate to have the translations and

         18  the material done so that when things go out, no

         19  community could feel disenfranchised in terms of

         20  their enrollment, and I am talking about the

         21  disenfranchisement of some groups over others.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CAPAZELLO: Well,

         23  in addition to materials, I must point out that the

         24  staff at the enrollment broker, Maximus, has direct

         25  language capability, for I believe 15 different
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          2  languages.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, let me

          4  just leave that for the moment and I am sure we will

          5  get back to that question.

          6                 But I did want to ask a question

          7  about AIDS and HIV, because I was part of a

          8  conference this summer that said, and I am pleased,

          9  I am not saying I am not pleased with the numbers

         10  that are going down, and I know that better

         11  medication and better management of AIDS/HIV could

         12  lead to the results that we have, but I also know,

         13  because I was in a conference that in the black

         14  community, in particular, that we have not beaten

         15  this, including the fact that it is increasing.

         16                 Can you tell me what is the marshal

         17  plan then to target those communities, to make sure

         18  that both education, prevention, all of what needs

         19  to be done is being done?

         20                 DR. COHEN: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Or was the

         22  conference just an exercise?

         23                 DR. COHEN: No. In fact, as you know,

         24  the Congressional Black Caucus has exercised

         25  influence with federal government to see that the
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          2  emerging trends of HIV inspection are being

          3  addressed, given the increased incidence in the

          4  minority communities.

          5                 So, as you know, Councilwoman, the

          6  Department works very closely with both the HIV

          7  Planning Council, as well as the Prevention Planning

          8  Group, and those are the advisory bodies in New York

          9  City that play a significant role in seeing to it

         10  that our efforts both prevention and treatment

         11  services are targeting the latest trends with

         12  respect to those communities and populations that

         13  are impacted most profoundly by the HIV infection.

         14                 In terms of on the prevention side,

         15  we have, working closely with the Prevention

         16  Planning Group, have supported an initiative that we

         17  call prevention case management that is targeting

         18  individuals who are injecting drug users, as well as

         19  their sexual partners who are at risk for

         20  transmission.

         21                 This recognizes a change in the

         22  demographics and the populations that are most being

         23  impacted in the last several years. That allowed us

         24  to fund a number of community-based organizations in

         25  minority communities and going forward with
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          2  additional funding that was received from the City

          3  Council in this current fiscal year we are going to

          4  be able to expand on those program models by funding

          5  an additional four community-based organizations for

          6  that program model, which is we feel clearly

          7  focusing the kinds of case management services and

          8  educational outreach needed in those communities.

          9                 There is also an HIV prevention

         10  initiative to address high-risk sexual behaviors

         11  among black and Latino populations, that is a CDC

         12  initiative, without any City tax levy funds there is

         13  currently a procurement process for this initiative

         14  and this will also be addressing those communities

         15  that you are referencing.

         16                 As well as in the area of Ryan White

         17  services we are very attentive to the issue of those

         18  communities most at risk, and as you know, the

         19  Congressional Black Caucus did advocate and we

         20  sought new funding that allowed us to enhance the

         21  number of Ryan White services in those communities

         22  as well. So, both on the service side and on the

         23  prevention side we have had opportunity to redirect

         24  our resources and with some new funding target those

         25  communities that are now at highest risk.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Is there a way

          3  that -- we are 23, 24 members of the City Council

          4  who come from those areas or who represent those

          5  communities, is there any plan to at least reach out

          6  to us so that we can help to prepare our communities

          7  concerning your effort on behalf of AIDS/HIV, if we

          8  are to at least beat this thing?

          9                 And can you send us names of

         10  organizations that would be funded so that we can

         11  disseminate information among our constituents?

         12                 DR. COHEN: Absolutely. And I know

         13  that the Chair represents the Council, as well as

         14  his home district, both on the HIV Planning Council,

         15  as well as the Prevention Planning Group, and I

         16  believe that Councilman Reed, as well, is on the

         17  Prevention Planning Group.

         18                 Nevertheless, this is just a small

         19  number in relation to the Council members who we

         20  would like to engage, because we certainly recognize

         21  that Council leadership in those communities have a

         22  very positive impact, so --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But let me just

         24  say, and then you can answer the rest, since the 23

         25  members of the Black and Hispanic Caucus was
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          2  mentioned: This Chair, every time there is a

          3  meeting, whether I physically attend or not, it is

          4  attended by my counsel, and after every meeting and

          5  every Council Member of the City of New York

          6  receives not only the agenda, but when decisions are

          7  being made and recommendations, every single Council

          8  member gets it.

          9                 Having said that, let's move on to

         10  the other areas of communications.

         11                 DR. COHEN: We will certainly share

         12  with those Council members those community

         13  organizations that are in their districts and help

         14  them recognize the efforts that we are targeting in

         15  those communities.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you,

         17  Commissioner.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         20  Oddo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 Dr. Cohen and staff, welcome.

         24                 When you are one of the last Council

         25  Members to ask --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just

          3  acknowledge, like I said to you there are members

          4  who come and go. We have been joined by Council

          5  Member Chris Quinn and Council Member Jose Rivera

          6  from the Bronx.

          7                 Sorry, Council member.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That is quite

          9  all right.

         10                 As I was saying, when you are one of

         11  the last Council Members to go and you don't want to

         12  repeat the issues discussed by your colleagues, it

         13  leaves you with rats. So, let's talk about rats.

         14                 On page six of your testimony

         15  referred to the Mayor's Comprehensive Pest Control

         16  Initiative. I vividly recall some time in the past

         17  year or so a headline on one of the daily tabloids

         18  saying that the rat population outnumbers us.

         19                 Would you characterize the Mayor's

         20  initiative as a successful one, and if so, why?

         21                 DR. COHEN: The rat population is,

         22  while there is a wide variance in the estimation of

         23  what the population is, it is probably not -- it

         24  probably underestimates to suggest that it is

         25  equivalent to the human population and perhaps --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Would you be

          3  adventurous enough to offer us an estimate?

          4                 DR. COHEN: In urban environments we

          5  have been told that it could be certainly equivalent

          6  to the population, but I really wouldn't put a

          7  number on it. We really have no way of knowing,

          8  other than the fact that, you know, ecologists and

          9  biologists and others can tell us that rats have

         10  tremendous survival instincts and capacity. So, many

         11  efforts, if not properly coordinated and not

         12  maintained can easily lead to a proliferation of

         13  rats anywhere.

         14                 Our sense of the positive outcome of

         15  the initiative is that we certainly think that we

         16  are seeing improvement in communities that we have

         17  been targeting, those are communities that are, you

         18  know, in 15 square block neighborhoods. Now we have

         19  moved on to a phase III where we look more to

         20  community boards to provide us with a priority

         21  focus, and while we continue to respond to

         22  complaints, we wanted this initiative to be far more

         23  comprehensive than episodically addressing

         24  complaints throughout the City, recognizing that in

         25  some instances you might only be moving the problem
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          2  from one building to another problem if you take

          3  such a short-sighted perspective.

          4                 The number of rat complaints is, the

          5  number of rat bites is down, and we have, working

          6  closely with community boards, sensed that the

          7  infestation has significantly improved in a number

          8  of areas, both in the areas that we have addressed,

          9  as well as those that are under the purview of

         10  Departments of Sanitation and Department of Parks as

         11  well.

         12                 So, it is very difficult to know

         13  that, and I am sure that any of the Councilpersons

         14  could tell me now of an infestation in your

         15  district. We will continue this program. We are

         16  recognizing further that this needs to be closely

         17  coordinated, and I think that is the ingredient that

         18  sets this initiative apart from the episodic

         19  complaint-driven program that the City held in

         20  previous years, where we really pulled together

         21  those City agencies that will allow us to address

         22  the underlying root causes of infestation, and this

         23  has to be an interagency effort.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Outside of the

         25  targeted area, are the staffing levels the same as
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          2  they have been in previous years?

          3                 DR. COHEN: This was a significant

          4  enhancement.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, I am

          6  saying, outside of those areas that you focused the

          7  initiatives on, do we still have the same staffing

          8  levels outside in the Bronx and on Staten Island and

          9  Brooklyn?

         10                 DR. COHEN: Yes, that continues. If

         11  anything, we have had enhancements as well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But let me just

         15  pick on this before I call on Council Member

         16  Boyland.

         17                 Do you have, whether in this

         18  initiative there are areas that you have targeted

         19  and you have gone into, correct?

         20                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do you have

         22  something that any one of us can see, for example,

         23  if you are in the Bronx let's say in October, that

         24  we can see that you were in there?

         25                 The complaint, for example, in
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          2  Harlem, I got Bill Perkins constantly telling me of

          3  his problem. Now, that is an area that was targeted,

          4  so maybe what you should do, and if you don't, may I

          5  suggest since this is ongoing, a check and balance,

          6  otherwise maybe either on a monthly basis so that

          7  the world knows what borough you have been into,

          8  what community you have been into, what did you do,

          9  when did you do it, and I think this question would

         10  be answered. Because even though it may be in his

         11  particular area, it is not a targeted area, he would

         12  have an idea of where were you in Staten Island, and

         13  if you were at all in Staten Island for the last six

         14  months.

         15                 So, I suggest that is the problem. We

         16  keep hearing about this great initiative, but I must

         17  tell you as Chairman of this Committee I am not

         18  comfortable that I can say to my colleagues I know

         19  what you have done.

         20                 So, is there some way that you can

         21  let us know what you have done, where you have done

         22  it, when you did it?

         23                 DR. COHEN: We certainly can notify

         24  the Council of those neighborhoods we are responding

         25  in the comprehensive program on an ongoing fashion,
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          2  we will be pleased to do that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good. And that I

          4  guess will begin as of now, correct?

          5                 DR. COHEN: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          7                 So, now, just do me a favor, I don't

          8  want to go passed, but let's start, since this is

          9  already November, can we start from January to at

         10  least this year and we will have an idea of where we

         11  were, when we were, what did we find? And if you are

         12  going to revisit, like a little note saying we have

         13  intentions of coming back and I think if you keep

         14  doing that, in terms of communication, like my

         15  colleague's question that I serve on the City

         16  Planning -- I mean on the HIV Planning Council, when

         17  I get the information, I give it to all the Council

         18  members. And this way, I think if we did that we

         19  could keep track of that, okay?

         20                 Council Member Boyland.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman.

         23                 Welcome, Commissioner. I think the

         24  last time we met we were dealing with -- we had the

         25  luxury of sitting down, dealing with the issue of
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          2  mental health and homelessness. This question kind

          3  of moves in that direction.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Hold it until he

          5  comes back and takes off this hat as Commissioner of

          6  Health and puts on his Commissioner of Mental

          7  Health.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: This is

          9  dealing with health.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: The question

         12  is, how are you dealing with the child health issue

         13  in terms of homeless, children that are homeless and

         14  the asthma. How are you reaching out with the

         15  Department of Homelessness and the Department of

         16  Health, what is the collaboration that you have

         17  right now?

         18                 DR. COHEN: We are aware, of course,

         19  that there have been reports of high rates of asthma

         20  among children living in shelters.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Exactly.

         22                 DR. COHEN: Our close analysis of

         23  that, however, suggests to us that those are not

         24  rates that are out of line with other communities

         25  that are at very high risk for asthma.
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          2                 So, to the extent that people and

          3  families in those shelters are coming from

          4  communities where asthma is very prevalent, it is

          5  not surprising to see these very high rates.

          6                 Nevertheless, we do want to respond

          7  and seize the opportunity for public health.

          8                 Over the past several months we have

          9  had planning meetings with the Department of

         10  Homeless Services around setting up an initiative to

         11  address asthma in the shelters and we are going in

         12  the next few months to launch two initiatives that

         13  are shelter-based, one is in Manhattan and the other

         14  will be in Brooklyn, I believe it is in the East New

         15  York section.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, so

         17  there is something on the agenda on the forefront of

         18  dealing with these issue in the shelters and

         19  homeless?

         20                 DR. COHEN: Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         22                 My second question is, and I know you

         23  covered a lot and you couldn't possibly cover

         24  everything in your statement, in dealing with the

         25  low birth rate you, I just need to get some feedback
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          2  on the prenatal, the education piece. You didn't

          3  give us in terms of how are you reaching out to

          4  communities that have low, the infant mortality rate

          5  is extremely high. The numbers that you quoted were

          6  obviously very impressive, but of course if we can

          7  eliminate the problem all together it would be

          8  better. But how are you reaching out in terms of

          9  education? Are you doing community-based

         10  intervention? Give me some ideas in terms of how you

         11  are reaching out.

         12                 DR. COHEN: I am going to ask Dr.

         13  Fabian Laroc, Assistant Commissioner, to respond to

         14  that.

         15                 DR. LAROC: Good morning. For the

         16  record, Dr. Fabian Laroc, from the Department of

         17  Health.

         18                 In our office we have sites that

         19  offer free pregnancy testing in case management, for

         20  women at high risk for poor pregnancy outcome. The

         21  case management includes nursing strategies,

         22  assessments and nutrition services and social

         23  support. The ultimate goal is to get these women at

         24  high risk for poor pregnancy outcome, including low

         25  birth weight, into care early and to receive
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          2  comprehensive prenatal care.

          3                 In addition, Citywide we have the

          4  Women Health Line that offers referral information

          5  and also makes clinical care appointments for

          6  anybody who calls, and thirdly, we have an

          7  educational training unit, also parenting

          8  information and courses such as child abuse, smoking

          9  cessation, that is very important.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Are they

         11  coming to you or are you going to them?

         12                 DR. LAROC: Both.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         14                 And my last line of questions, thank

         15  you very much for that is --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Don't go too far

         17  because you raised the question that I have, so I

         18  don't want you to go musical chairs, so stick

         19  around.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: My last and

         21  final question is, Commissioner, where are we on, of

         22  course the Chairman knows, on prostate and breast

         23  cancer in this new fiscal year and the old fiscal

         24  year?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That question
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          2  will be answered after I sit down with the

          3  Commissioner, and we have not sat down yet. It is a

          4  Council initiative that was put into the budget.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: But I would

          6  like to know, have they moved forward in their

          7  department on anything in terms of prostate cancer,

          8  looking at it? I know there was a large issue with

          9  breast cancer in the last fiscal budget, I just want

         10  to know in terms of where their foresight is, Mr.

         11  Chairman. Thank you.

         12                 DR. COHEN: There were $250,000 in

         13  Council funds that were allocated to prostate

         14  screening and education, and we have recently signed

         15  a contract with the American Cancer Society to

         16  address those services and educational outreach. So,

         17  I look forward to seeing the program launched for

         18  the coming calendar year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, thank

         20  you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner, you

         22  mentioned five locations. I think the question was

         23  that there are areas throughout the City where the

         24  number is still high, although generally you said

         25  that the numbers were low. These five locations, are
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          2  there in those communities where you have still a

          3  high concentration in terms of those numbers? You

          4  mentioned five locations, where are those five

          5  locations, and if those locations were there before

          6  the question, did you reassess to now relocate them

          7  into those communities where you need to address so

          8  that people do not call you but rather they can

          9  visit you, I think that is the point that raised

         10  when you said five locations.

         11                 DR. LAROC: Yes, that's correct. Those

         12  locations have been chosen based on high rates of

         13  infant mortality and poor pregnancy outcome. We used

         14  to have much more locations and now unfortunately

         15  because of budget cuts we are reduced to five. We

         16  are in Central Harlem, Mott Haven, Bedford

         17  Stuyvesant, Ft. Green and Jamaica East. And they are

         18  working, they are open five days a week and anybody

         19  can walk in for the services.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, there used

         21  to be ten at one time, now you are down to five.

         22  Again, those communities that you -- see, those are

         23  the questions I think we need to follow and not just

         24  simply ask the question, unless we do our homework,

         25  and that is, how many communities, based upon your
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          2  data, still have a high level and we should be

          3  concentrating? Are you saying there are only five

          4  communities or are there possibly ten communities?

          5                 If there are ten communities and you

          6  had ten locations, why are you down to five?

          7                 DR. LAROC: In 1992, budget cuts were

          8  made across the board and office staff was cut from

          9  300 staff members to about 100, and at that point we

         10  had to choose the locations where the numbers were

         11  highest. Currently no more than five locations where

         12  we could have services.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right. And we are

         14  in a surplus and we have money coming out our ears

         15  like crazy, and the point I am trying to raise is

         16  you can't ask a question and not follow up.

         17                 Let's start again. You said the cuts

         18  came in when we were in bad times, because I was

         19  around, and we had to, many of us voted upon things

         20  that we weren't happy, but we had no choice.

         21                 We are now in the last three fiscal

         22  budgets that I am aware of have a surplus. As a

         23  matter of fact, if I remember correctly, we haven't

         24  even dealt with our surplus for this fiscal year

         25  yet, because we were worried about what the state
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          2  action was in the commuter tax. So, we haven't dealt

          3  with our surplus.

          4                 Question: If you have and you concede

          5  that there are ten locations, or the number is that

          6  we should be looking at where the highest

          7  concentration where we need to provide the services,

          8  and even though we, mind what I said because all of

          9  us who were around helped vote to cut, so let's be

         10  clear on that one. But I am still around.

         11                 If there is a need to address it and

         12  go back to what was before the cut, which was ten

         13  locations, and we only have five, then what are we

         14  doing to in a good year, in a fiscal year that we

         15  are doing budget mods and we will have one pretty

         16  soon on the Yankee parade to give to the Police

         17  Department for what they did, then why are we not

         18  addressing the need of health services in this

         19  budget? That is the question that I think should be

         20  asked.

         21                 And are you going to make any

         22  requests to move or go back to ten locations rather

         23  than five? Since we are in good times.

         24                 DR. LAROC: There are some other

         25  initiatives that are working to reduce infant
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          2  mortality and low birth weight - the March of Dimes,

          3  the Healthy Start Initiative where the perinatal

          4  network got allocated, also in South Bronx, Northern

          5  Manhattan, Queens and Brooklyn are also working in

          6  some extended areas of the City.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner

          8  Cohen, let me ask you a question, because again I go

          9  back to what I believe, and I will until someone

         10  shows me I am wrong.

         11                 Our Charter clearly says that the

         12  Commissioner on Health is the Chief Health Officer,

         13  and the Chief Health Officer sets the tone of health

         14  services in the City, and even though you are the

         15  Commissioner of Health, whether it is in HHC,

         16  whether it is DOH, whether it is Mental Health,

         17  whether it is Chief Medical Examiner, anything that

         18  relates to health services, and we need to address

         19  it, rather than just what we normally do, is the

         20  band-aid approach, whenever there is a crisis, like

         21  mosquitoes, like rats. So every so often we have the

         22  band-aid approach, we put money all over the place

         23  and then after the media and the smoke settles, it

         24  is back to doing business as usual.

         25                 Am I wrong in saying that as the
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          2  Commissioner of Health your principle responsibility

          3  is to be the advocate for health services and to

          4  move City agencies in addressing health needs, even

          5  though it may not be in your agency; is that fair to

          6  say, Commissioner?

          7                 DR. COHEN: That is fair to say.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.

          9                 Now, as Commissioner of Health,

         10  Council Member Boyland asked a question, and I

         11  happen to have good people, don't think I am so

         12  smart, I got good people that keeps me in tune.

         13  There was a time where you had ten locations to

         14  address this area which Council Member Boyland

         15  raised. I accept and I say for those of us who have

         16  been around, I was part as guilty as you, if you

         17  were around, that there was a time in our budget

         18  process where we had no choice but we had to cut

         19  services and in doing so, in this area where we had

         20  ten locations, we had to bring it down to five.

         21                 However, and I commend you for the

         22  reduction, but there are communities of color and

         23  other communities that we need to continue to be

         24  just as concerned in addressing to eradicate so that

         25  this way instead of saying we are down, my hope is
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          2  one thing to say we have all together eliminated it.

          3                 There is, and you admit in testimony,

          4  that there are still locations that we need to be

          5  addressing; is that fair to say?

          6                 DR. COHEN: Yes, there is.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, are there

          8  any attempt to bring back in those communities that

          9  we are not addressing, and let me be honest, I am

         10  not for privatization, the private sector could do a

         11  hell of a job but my obligation as chairman of the

         12  Health Committee and every member here is to make

         13  sure that the agencies that we oversee, not the

         14  state agencies, not the federal agencies, and all

         15  this nonsense, but where we had input on the budget

         16  that we appropriate whatever needs to be

         17  appropriated, which we are not going to wait upon

         18  Commissioner Neal Cohen to do that, and we have to,

         19  and every year have to set our priorities. And if

         20  this priority is that we should go back to reopening

         21  those five locations, then that should be our

         22  priority.

         23                 But unless the Commissioner sets the

         24  tone, it becomes hard for us to try to move forward,

         25  and the only time we can do that is when budget time
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          2  comes around when we are not happy, then we put our

          3  money where our mouth is, although we don't get

          4  credit for what we do.

          5                 So, having said that, can you perhaps

          6  enlighten me on that?

          7                 DR. COHEN: Yes. In fact, as you

          8  recall in my testimony, I referred to a new

          9  initiative at the Department of Health with regard

         10  to a reorganization of our program offices and

         11  bureaus so that we can be more effective and we can

         12  better meet some of the community needs.

         13                 One of the goals that I saw when I

         14  came to the Department of Health was the need for

         15  this Department of Health to have a stronger

         16  community presence not to be perceived as a distant

         17  bureaucracy that would have a band-aid approach to

         18  public health problems, and while we have been

         19  extremely successful in addressing a number of

         20  public health crises and public health problems, for

         21  the most part we have followed what is called a

         22  categorical approach; that is, we have

         23  infrastructure in the agency to address a variety of

         24  public health issues that co-exist in the very same

         25  communities, and that often have cofactors that
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          2  contribute to a variety of public health problems so

          3  that addressing the root causes of those problems

          4  can allow you to make improvements in a number of

          5  public health areas.

          6                 In saying that we have launched a new

          7  entity within the agency, our own planning council,

          8  in order to set up a set of projects that we would

          9  carry out with more across the board collaboration,

         10  both within the Department and with other agencies

         11  in the City and health providers to address the

         12  issue of infant mortality. We recognize that infant

         13  mortality was probably the number one public health

         14  concern that cut across so many different programs

         15  that were already operating in communities now that

         16  we needed to have more integration of these efforts,

         17  and in the past couple of months we have had experts

         18  coming to the Department of Health and speaking to

         19  us around the kinds of programs we feel we would

         20  need to put in place in order to have a more

         21  effective way of addressing the infant mortality

         22  problem. And as you can see, there are any number of

         23  ways that issues in public health that have

         24  potential impact on infant mortality, from getting

         25  teenagers to be more attentive to the issue of
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          2  pregnancy, and to having mothers seek prenatal care

          3  in the first trimester, to linking families and

          4  young children to make sure that they have primary

          5  care and a medical home to early intervention

          6  efforts to make sure that children that are showing

          7  lags in their development are hooked up with

          8  rehabilitation specialists, a variety of programs

          9  that we in the Health Department oversee that are

         10  impacting on this issue.

         11                 So, I want to share with you that we

         12  are anticipating that in the next six weeks we will

         13  actually be launching a set of projects to look at

         14  the question of where do we best put our resources,

         15  what kinds of funding initiatives do we need to

         16  prioritize. So that would address your issue of

         17  whether it makes the most sense to go from five of

         18  these programs back to ten, or whether we think

         19  there are other ways that we can leverage public

         20  health resources to have a more positive outcome

         21  than we have seen in the past several years.

         22                 So, it is something that we take

         23  seriously, and I don't want to just say short, it

         24  would be good to have ten, where we now have five,

         25  it always feels like having more public health
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          2  programs certainly will allow you to make more

          3  advances, but we need to make sure we are making the

          4  investments in those programs that we think are

          5  going to be most effective and give us collectively

          6  what we are trying to accomplish.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner, I

          8  commend you. I am not being critical, but let me see

          9  what my problem is with this whole scenario is, if

         10  you have initiatives in these communities and I have

         11  Council members who either are members of this

         12  Committee or are not and are asking because they are

         13  not aware or they are not aware because someone has

         14  not reached out to educate them, especially when you

         15  are in their own back yard. I suggest that you look

         16  at where you are, identify who are the elected

         17  officials, and if you have not done so, sit down

         18  with them and walk through what are these programs

         19  so that the questions at hearings are not raised,

         20  particularly in those areas where you doing so much.

         21  And if you are, then there is something missing.

         22  That is my frustration.

         23                 Now, for example, I look at that list

         24  and while I am happy to hear that Bushwick is not

         25  number one, it is still up there. Well, I must tell
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          2  you then you got to sit with me and Council Member

          3  Dilan who are the two Council Members who represent

          4  Bushwick and maybe walk us through about what other

          5  services are in that community, and I am the

          6  chairman of the Committee.

          7                 Now, I say this because there has to

          8  be better communication, and not wait upon press

          9  conferences. I am reminding you that sometimes with

         10  the Administration when they have these press

         11  conferences and announce these programs, I must tell

         12  you that we don't get those press releases. We have

         13  to read about it in the newspaper or on television.

         14                 So, if we are an equal partner and

         15  you need us come budget time, then I suggest that

         16  you communicate a little better so that my

         17  colleagues won't ask these questions.

         18                 DR. COHEN: Council Member, in my

         19  testimony I referenced our turning point initiative,

         20  and identified that we have held community health

         21  forums in three boroughs, in Queens, in Manhattan

         22  and in Brooklyn and we will have these health forums

         23  in the other two boroughs over the coming months.

         24  And those forums were intended to bring a variety of

         25  stakeholders together to identify priority public

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            119

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  health issues in those neighborhoods and

          3  communities. In fact, we broke down the borough by

          4  four or five regions, we had breakout groups and had

          5  individuals setting agendas and looking at the

          6  assets in those communities and the resources, as

          7  well as the problems in those communities. So, it is

          8  our goal to set public health agendas that are more

          9  community focused and more align ourselves so that

         10  we can have more of a community presence, as you

         11  know from our child health initiative, which we

         12  discussed the other day with respect to the lead

         13  program, we would seek to have the opportunity

         14  through the additional funding that the Mayor and

         15  the Council brought to us, a way to address a

         16  variety of public health issues so we are not just

         17  categorically looking at lead screening, but at the

         18  same time we have the opportunity to look at

         19  immunizations as well as health care delivery and

         20  prenatal care, as well as a variety of issues around

         21  the home environment and sharing information with

         22  the schools. So, this is an important public health

         23  opportunity we face to be able to pull together and

         24  integrate activities that historically have been too

         25  isolated from each other so that it appeared we were
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          2  putting band-aids on problems, rather than

          3  addressing more underlying root causes, and I think

          4  this direction that we are addressing calls in a

          5  significant way for good communication between

          6  government, as well as community leaders and people

          7  from the public, so that they have the education and

          8  information they need to enhance their health and

          9  safety.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am going to

         11  move on, because one of the areas, and my colleagues

         12  both of this Committee and for this agency and the

         13  next agency, you know, we get so wrapped up and we

         14  are leaving being an important area that we all like

         15  to talk about, and that is HHC and the contracts.

         16  And let me remind you that we have not even touched

         17  the $283 million that this agency contracts out with

         18  HHC, and I intend to do that before 1:00.

         19                 Having said that I am not going to

         20  deny a member of this Committee, and an active

         21  member who has not asked a question, so keeping that

         22  in mind, Council Member Quinn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. I

         24  will try to be brief.

         25                 The first of second Health Committee
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          2  hearing that I was at, which I also think we do an

          3  MMR hearing in the winter too, right? I think it was

          4  an MMR hearing. I asked some questions about women's

          5  health issues and particularly about PAP smears and

          6  what type of -- if the Department had made a

          7  decision as it related to these new type of PAP

          8  smears, if there was an internal research going on,

          9  was cost going to be factor, et cetera. That is one

         10  of my two questions, so I am just wondering, since I

         11  didn't see it in your testimony, where the status of

         12  that review is at?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOJICA: I am Ben

         14  Mojica, Deputy Commissioner for Division of Health.

         15                 Thank you very much for your

         16  question. We did look at the issue of PAP smear to

         17  be offered in our STD clinics, and since then have

         18  been studying the cost implication in addition to

         19  the other things that we need to do, particularly

         20  the choice laboratories who are going to do this for

         21  us.

         22                 As you know, the PAP smear is the

         23  traditional PAP smear and we use our commercial

         24  laboratory to do that for us and it does not cost us

         25  too much to do that. In reviewing what will be the
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          2  cost for the new PAP smear it is significantly

          3  increased in cost, but that is not to say that we

          4  are not going to be use that smear to be what is

          5  more useful.

          6                 In our study we are also looking at

          7  the efficacy of doing this and the effectiveness, in

          8  terms of specificity and sensitivity of the test,

          9  and we do indeed see some advantage in doing that,

         10  so we are looking at actually shifting what we

         11  currently do in our sexually-transmitted disease

         12  clinic to a new PAP smear test.

         13                 Having said that, we have not

         14  completed our plan, we are still in the process of

         15  working on all of these things, including a

         16  projection for how many cases we are going to see

         17  and what kinds of referral services are going to be

         18  included in that.

         19                 So, indeed we are reviewing that and

         20  we are going to get back to you and will probably do

         21  something within the next fiscal year.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh, great. So

         23  that was going to be my next question, if that

         24  research will be done in time for the budget

         25  process, great.
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          2                 My other question is about family

          3  planning, and at DOH clinics what type of birth

          4  control is provided, in specific I was interested

          5  about Previn?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOJICA: Again, I

          7  have to make clear what we provide in our Sexually

          8  Transmitted Disease Clinic. The STD clinic is

          9  primarily designed to promote health and assess the

         10  health of those individuals who go there for

         11  sexually transmitted disease.

         12                 While we consider the kinds of things

         13  that we should do, to advise a person who comes in

         14  there to the clinic, in the total sexuality or the

         15  health of that particular individual, we cannot at

         16  the moment really offer family planning services.

         17  The only thing that we do is to provide condom,

         18  contraceptive devices, that is something that they

         19  would use that is also for the purposes of

         20  preventing sexually transmitted diseases.

         21                 In one of our clinics we had some

         22  collaboration that we currently have with the

         23  medical health and research association of New York

         24  City to actually provide family planning services

         25  for those who attend our clinic, we can refer to
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          2  them directly.

          3                 We have those kinds of linkages in

          4  all the other clinics, but we do not and cannot

          5  really provide family planning services in the STD

          6  clinics that we currently have.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If I can just

          8  ask another question, if you don't mind? Just

          9  indulge me for a second.

         10                 Did we ever do that? Was that

         11  something we used to do and that was cut, or that is

         12  something we have never done?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOJICA: No, we

         14  never did that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And which

         16  clinic is that, that you have the thing with MHRA?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MOJICA:

         18  Morrisania in the Bronx.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 I just want to say thank you for

         21  looking into that PAP smear question, I appreciate

         22  that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner, let

         24  me move into an area that I really am trying to

         25  understand and get a handle on, and that is the
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          2  whole question of contracting out between your

          3  agency and HHC. And let me be clear, because I am

          4  troubled. In certain things that have happened and

          5  since it started in your agency with the contract

          6  with HHC, certain scenarios have taken place.

          7                 For example, with respect to the --

          8  well, let me make sure that the numbers that I have

          9  are correct. Is it fair to say that currently your

         10  agency, through contracting out with the Health and

         11  Hospitals Corporation, right now contracts out close

         12  to $283 million; is that number correct?

         13                 DR. COHEN: That is over a two-year

         14  period of time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What does that

         16  mean, over a two-year period?

         17                 DR. COHEN: That is a two-year

         18  contract.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And so in the

         20  fiscal year, you are talking about half this amount?

         21                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. Of which

         23  the largest contract, and correct me if I am wrong,

         24  happens to be in what is defined as correctional and

         25  family health programs, is that correct?
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          2                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Of which that is

          4  close to 259,305,827 dollars, that is also the

          5  two-year cycle?

          6                 DR. COHEN: That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, so if you

          8  add all of this together, let me tell you where I

          9  have a problem. Let's take the correctional, which

         10  is the largest amount. You contract out with HHC to

         11  provide these services, of which already HHC does

         12  provide similar services, because at Kings County I

         13  know, at Bellevue I know, Elmhurst I know, who in

         14  the Bronx, is either who? Who is in the Bronx that

         15  takes care of personal services? Anybody?

         16                 Well, anyway, so I know that they

         17  have -- Lincoln. I know that they have similar or

         18  they provide that same, maybe not 100 percent but

         19  they do somewhat, yet you contracted out to them,

         20  then they go and contract out to first Montefiore,

         21  now St. Barnabas - let me tell you what my problem

         22  is: You are the Commissioner of Health, you contract

         23  out with HHC, you sit on the Board of Directors of

         24  HHC Corporation, but you are also the chairman of

         25  the Quality Assurance Committee of that Corporation.
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          2  Now, my question is: When you contracted out to HHC,

          3  and then they went and contracted out to a voluntary

          4  sector, or the private sector, did they have to come

          5  back to you and get a waiver from you or a clearance

          6  from you?

          7                 DR. COHEN: I don't believe so.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You don't believe

          9  so?

         10                 DR. COHEN: Councilman, I am not aware

         11  that there are any waivers required --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, not a

         13  waiver. Let me go back to try to set the tone,

         14  because I use waiver because the state uses a lot

         15  the terminology "waiver".

         16                 You contract out with HHC, and in

         17  that contract you clearly define the services that

         18  HHC had to provide, that is money that was put from

         19  your budget agency, and HHC then through this

         20  contract either vouchers to you, and then you

         21  reimburse them. Where in the contract does it say

         22  that then they can contract out to the private

         23  sector? Is that in the contract?

         24                 DR. COHEN: As you recall,

         25  correctional health services originally were through
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          2  a contract with Montefiore Medical Center, and that

          3  contract was terminated, it had a parallel

          4  relationship as we have here and St. Barnabas,

          5  through an interagency procurement and evaluation

          6  committee was selected to be the contractor that

          7  would be subcontracting with the Health and

          8  Hospitals Corporation for correctional health and

          9  mental health.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am not

         11  questioning the process. Let me go back to the

         12  original question:

         13                 Did you contract out with HHC to

         14  provide for what is called correctional and family

         15  health services?

         16                 DR. COHEN: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And in that

         18  contracting out you clearly spelled out the

         19  services, correct?

         20                 DR. COHEN: That's correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So when HHC,

         22  whether Montefiore or St. Barnabas, that is not even

         23  the issue. What I need to know, if you are the

         24  Commissioner of Health and you sit on the Board of

         25  Directors of HHC, and you are the Chairman of the
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          2  Quality Assurance Committee of that Corporation, and

          3  I know that we have had hearings because there has

          4  been tragedies or complaints of lack of services,

          5  being given to correctional services, who, one,

          6  monitors, evaluates whether the contract that

          7  started from your agency to HHC has been carried

          8  out.

          9                 DR. COHEN: There is an extensive

         10  monitoring evaluation that is taking place at the

         11  level of the Department of Corrections, as well as

         12  Department of Health and the Department of Mental

         13  Health, and there are a number of interagency work

         14  groups that meet regularly with HHC and St. Barnabas

         15  to iron out issues of delivery of care in those

         16  correctional facilities, both on a biweekly basis, a

         17  monthly basis, as well as on a quarterly basis.

         18                 So there is quite a network of ways

         19  that the City, through the Department of Health and

         20  Department of Mental Health are overseeing the way

         21  that the services are being rendered in those

         22  facilities.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me perhaps

         24  try some other way.

         25                 Do you evaluate them on an annual
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          2  basis, although the contract is for two years? And I

          3  go back to Council Member Reed's question, are we

          4  getting our money's worth? Do you evaluate that

          5  contract? And mind you, that is not the only

          6  contract, you have to have one, two, three, four,

          7  five, six, seven, eight, nine, ten, eleven, twelve

          8  -- do you have 13 contracts that you contract out

          9  with HHC, and you provide services like

         10  tuberculosis, policy and planning, family health

         11  services, early intervention programs, refugee help?

         12  Do they sound correct?

         13                 DR. COHEN: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So you have 13

         15  contracts with HHC, correct?

         16                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do you evaluate

         18  at the end of the fiscal year whether or not that

         19  agency has properly carried out what you contracted

         20  out?

         21                 DR. COHEN: Yes, we do.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Can we get copies

         23  of those evaluations? And let me say I want 96, 97,

         24  98 and I guess you are not yet -- well, yes, '99

         25  because we are in the year 2000.
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          2                 Now, let me ask you something. On the

          3  closing of the dental clinics, are they in the

          4  correctional and family health services programs?

          5                 DR. COHEN: Yes, they are.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good. You are the

          7  Commissioner of Health, you ran those clinics, you

          8  still run those health clinics, in terms of what you

          9  directly, through, and I have to say for the record,

         10  it was David Dinkins when he was Mayor, and with a

         11  good intention because he wanted to make a one-stop

         12  shop, whatever it is called, and he referred to them

         13  as Communicare facilities, which you could do

         14  everything in one place. The fact is, there is part

         15  of those clinics that now were transferred over to

         16  HHC, but they are still under your jurisdiction,

         17  correct? You contract out with HHC?

         18                 DR. COHEN: Yes, that's correct. We do

         19  contract out.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When HHC decided

         21  to close those ten clinics, was that in consultation

         22  with you since you contracted out to provide dental

         23  and actually really not only dental, there are a

         24  whole host of services, but did you allow and

         25  approve the closing of those ten dental clinics?
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          2                 DR. COHEN: Yes, we did.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you believe

          4  that the closing of those dental clinics, let me

          5  point out that those clinics were free, where they

          6  now have been located are based upon a scaling fee,

          7  or a scale. Question: In making the decision of

          8  closing those dental clinics which were free to the

          9  poor, the uninsured, you name it, what did you do to

         10  put into place the safety net so that nobody will be

         11  denied services simply because it is no longer free?

         12                 DR. COHEN: Those services are still

         13  provided for free if people cannot afford payment,

         14  either without Medicaid or if they are unable to

         15  meet a sliding scale, no individual, no family, no

         16  child can be denied services. We are very clear on

         17  that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Are you getting

         19  monthly or are you waiting until the end of Fiscal

         20  Year in your evaluation to guarantee or to show that

         21  that guarantee has been carried out by HHC?

         22                 DR. COHEN: We are conducting a very

         23  significant monitoring plan on the transfer of those

         24  dental clinics to these new sites so that at the end

         25  of six months, as you recall it occurred on October
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          2  15th, and what we would like to do is very closely

          3  monitor the utilization of dental services from

          4  those communities when those dental clinics were

          5  located where they were before in comparison to

          6  where they now are located. So, we will be looking

          7  very carefully at zip codes of utilizers of dental

          8  services in these programs and look at the issue of

          9  whether those communities are now not being served

         10  as they were when they were located in their prior

         11  location, as well as the issue of access and what

         12  you mention with respect to fee scales and payment

         13  and people not being denied services, so we don't

         14  believe that there will be significant information

         15  for us before April 15th which would be six months,

         16  which we will do that very closely and on a

         17  quarterly basis have this data so that if we gain

         18  the impression that there is adverse health impact

         19  on those communities where the classes were taken

         20  place, we will take another look at that and look

         21  for ways that we can address that problem.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me ask you

         23  another question, because I am serving notice on

         24  you, Commissioner, and the Administration, that

         25  after that six months if I am not and this Committee
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          2  is not satisfied with the fact that we believe that

          3  those dental clinics were closed and that the

          4  protection that it had and the information that

          5  everyone knew, including myself when I was a kid

          6  growing up in Williamsburg, because one of those

          7  clinics happened to be in my district, and I

          8  couldn't believe two cocamamie excuses, one was the

          9  fiscal location, which I couldn't understand after

         10  four years of renovation of the 151 Morgas Street,

         11  how can that be? And the second was the equipment.

         12  But let me, before I get to that, let me make it

         13  clear.

         14                 I want you to know, because this is

         15  something that I want you to know, and I want people

         16  to think that we are not friends, I am serving

         17  notice on you. Either we are satisfied that the

         18  closing of those clinics is not preventing anyone

         19  the right to services that they got before, then I

         20  have every intention of legislatively bringing back

         21  those clinics back to your agency. And I will tell

         22  you why I am saying that, sir.

         23                 Do we have a good working

         24  relationship, you and I, despite what you see on

         25  camera?
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          2                 DR. COHEN: Despite what we see on

          3  camera, we have a good working relationship.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do you and I

          5  share with each other constantly information good,

          6  bad and indifferent?

          7                 DR. COHEN: Constantly is an

          8  overstatement but we have an appropriate line of

          9  communication.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And so that

         11  whatever happens, it doesn't catch many of us off

         12  guard because there has been a dialogue.

         13                 For example, even preparing for this

         14  hearing, I do something that no one else does,

         15  right? I mean, I do share with you some information

         16  that maybe some other committees don't.

         17                 DR. COHEN: You do things other people

         18  don't.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. Now, there

         20  was a budget process and we had hearings and we had

         21  a preliminary hearing and then we had a budget

         22  hearing in May/June, when did HHC serve notice on

         23  you that they were going to close those ten dental

         24  clinics? Or did they?

         25                 DR. COHEN: No, we had conversations
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          2  about it going back to the summer. Late June/July.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let's start

          4  again. Let's start again.

          5                 DR. COHEN: I don't keep a diary.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Did you know of

          7  the closing of those clinics before we adopted the

          8  budget on June 5th?

          9                 DR. COHEN: The discussions that we

         10  had were regarding transfer, not closing, not

         11  curtailment, not reduction, not layoffs, but

         12  redirection of location of services that they would

         13  be well integrated into those networks of HHC.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me ask you

         15  this then, Commissioner.

         16                 DR. COHEN: As I recall, I don't think

         17  there was ever a question asked of me at that

         18  hearing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no, listen to

         20  what I am saying. I can't ask you a question when I

         21  wasn't aware that you were moving to close those ten

         22  dental clinics.

         23                 On the contrary, I will tell you

         24  where I have my problem, and that is where I am

         25  really upset because when we started out with no
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          2  money for health services in the tobacco settlement

          3  money, that everybody talked about schools, schools,

          4  schools, and we started with zero dollar, I must say

          5  that because collectively, during the preliminary

          6  budget, $15 million was put into the budget, which

          7  was zero. From the time we adopted the budget, $30

          8  million was put into the budget, of which $17

          9  million was the money that this Council in

         10  negotiation with the Administration used for either

         11  restoring or enhancing programs like Council Member

         12  Boyland's question and others. And there is $13

         13  million which is still out there which we are

         14  supposed to be negotiating, where we as the City and

         15  the Council and the Administration is going to do

         16  something that the federal and state government has

         17  not done and that money is being explored for usage

         18  for the uninsured of those in the City. But if doing

         19  negotiations and budget, I was made aware or any

         20  Council Member, that in their districts where you

         21  have a dental clinic that we have not addressed

         22  equipment to bring them up to modern, don't you

         23  think that this Committee and this chair would have

         24  used some of that money, not used some, I would have

         25  taken $6 million which is what they told me after

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            138

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  they closed it, how much they will need. You see,

          3  there is my problem.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I just want to

          6  make sure I get the point. Because at no time did

          7  you or HHC who used to come to this Committee and

          8  will not come to this Committee any longer, since

          9  they think they are primadonnas, they are a

         10  corporation, they don't need to come anywhere, you

         11  know what? I will deal with those of you who

         12  contract out with HHC, and the question I have is

         13  why at any time during the budget process we did not

         14  address the equipment problem at your Department of

         15  Health clinics which now were transferred out to

         16  HHC.

         17                 DR. COHEN: Those facilities that were

         18  for the most part constructed in the 1930s had many,

         19  many issues that were, the result of which was that

         20  the standard of dental care was not what we needed

         21  it to be.

         22                 Certainly one option is total

         23  renovation of each and every clinic, and I think the

         24  bill for that is $7 million. If total renovation is

         25  carried out, those facilities would need to be
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          2  vacated and those children would not receive

          3  services at those sites but they would have been

          4  transferred to these other sites.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But,

          6  Commissioner, with all due respect, and I can only

          7  speak for the one that I represent at 151 Morges

          8  Street -- I also represent the one at 335 Central

          9  Avenue, which both were your health clinics before

         10  the transferring out. Are you aware that both

         11  facilities were closed for four years, and Woodhull

         12  Hospital, who was at 151 Morges Street, the

         13  community board that was 151 Morges Street, and all

         14  of the services were relocated out because of

         15  asbestos and major renovation. The 335 Central

         16  Avenue in Bushwick, which I commend because after

         17  four years it also was closed for four years. So, if

         18  we needed to renovate your dental clinic, why did

         19  you not make it part of the overall renovation when

         20  they were closed for four years? Then at a meeting,

         21  unbeknownst to me I was told by HHC when I asked

         22  that question and he is sitting right next to you,

         23  he was in the meeting, I said: Excuse me, how did

         24  you operate when there was asbestos abatement? And

         25  they are going to tell me that they stayed in the
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          2  place even though they had asbestos abatement.

          3                 Now, do you understand when you tell

          4  me this, Commissioner, again, where was the dialogue

          5  during the budget process? For example, you had been

          6  the Commissioner before the transfer or after?

          7                 DR. COHEN: Oh, much later.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me?

          9                 DR. COHEN: The transfer was in 1994.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, then

         11  Giuliani came in, and he wanted to close them and we

         12  kept opening them. Were you the Commissioner?

         13                 DR. COHEN: No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You were the

         15  Commissioner as of when?

         16                 DR. COHEN: I came on board in the

         17  Department of Health in March 1998.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good. In 1998 I

         19  was here. I was on this Committee.

         20                 Why did we not every year when we

         21  dealt with the budget dealt with the equipment so

         22  that we do not let it become so old and outdated?

         23                 And let me say this to you, and we

         24  are doing our own investigation, are you aware that

         25  a lot of the equipment which HHC says are outdated,
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          2  can't be used, throw them out, is now brought

          3  upstairs to the third floor at 151 Morges Street,

          4  and now somebody else is using it?

          5                 Are you aware of that, sir?

          6                 DR. COHEN: I share the position that

          7  if we don't feel that the equipment is up to the

          8  standard of quality care, we should not pass

          9  equipment along to other facilities.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, then I

         11  suggest that you start investigating, because I am

         12  telling you, and again, I need to document and I

         13  will, I am hearing that a lot of our equipment has

         14  been given to other agencies and somehow it is not

         15  old for them and they are using it. So, it was not

         16  good for HHC, it was not good for DOH, then why are

         17  we using it?

         18                 DR. COHEN: I am told that this was

         19  conditional upon a completion of some patients who

         20  were going to be seen only up until January, so we

         21  went from October 15th to an extension to January,

         22  but there is no plan to allow that physical plant to

         23  operate.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: See, there is the

         25  doubletalk, Commissioner. Someone is not giving you
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          2  the right information. Let me tell you what HHC told

          3  me, and I spoke to Laray Brown, when I was told one

          4  thing that we will not be closed until it was the

          5  15th of October, and nobody turned away, and then I

          6  was getting a lot of Council people telling me that

          7  two weeks before the date they were routing

          8  appointments somewhere else and only emergencies,

          9  and that after the 15th, there will be no more usage

         10  there will be in the new location, and now you are

         11  telling me you got until January? Someone is not

         12  telling me all the truth.

         13                 DR. COHEN: At that particular site,

         14  that wasn't HHC that was allowed to use that

         15  equipment but instead the maternal infants

         16  children's program that is administered by the MHRA.

         17  So, that was a separate arrangement and it is not

         18  part of an extension of HHC operations.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That is at 151

         20  Morges? Well, it is in my district, and you know

         21  something? My constituency deserves nothing but the

         22  best and if you can't use it for DOH programs or

         23  HHC, why would you have some kind of a relationship

         24  with another agency, and here, it is like some

         25  people say you got a bed, be grateful. Well, I am
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          2  not grateful, and that is the problem I have. Now,

          3  you either are going to tell me the truth from now

          4  on, or I am going to tell you right now I am going

          5  to have hearings every single week like we did with

          6  the Department of Youth Services, because you are a

          7  Mayoral agency.

          8                 And I am really upset, not with you,

          9  sir, I want, even though when it hurts I want to the

         10  truth. And if I don't like it, I will swallow it. I

         11  will tell my colleagues, with all due respect, he

         12  gave you an answer, you don't like it? Meet him in

         13  budget time. But I am not going to sit here giving

         14  the impression that we have this munchie-munchie

         15  relationship, and I am not taking anything away from

         16  you, where someone else, and mind you, what I still

         17  have a question mark is, you are the Commissioner,

         18  you sit on HHC board, you are supposed to monitor

         19  quality and assurance programs, and yet, this

         20  Committee had to go to Rikers Island because of some

         21  death at Rikers Island, and complaints by prison

         22  inmates about the lack of services. Something is

         23  wrong.

         24                 Now, Commissioner, you are the

         25  Commissioner, and I repeat, I want to see those
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          2  evaluations, '96, '97, '98, '99. Six months from now

          3  before the budget, I want to know before the budget

          4  what you found as the evaluation of these clinics.

          5  Because if you don't open them, I haven't discussed

          6  it with anybody, I have every intention of moving

          7  forward to reopen them. But I am going to reopen

          8  them under your leadership, not HHC. I have no

          9  confidence in HHC. They go around boasting about how

         10  surpluses and all of that stuff, but in the

         11  meantime, as I said in my opening statement,

         12  mosquito problem, closing of dental clinics, moving

         13  homeless families into North Central Bronx, or the

         14  closing of the nursing home in Queens -- excuse me.

         15                 And many of these, thank God for the

         16  court system, we have been successful. And even when

         17  we win, we still have the question mark of whether

         18  it can go forward.

         19                 So, I have made my point.

         20                 Council Member Harrison. And then if

         21  any other member, if not, then we will move on to

         22  Mental Health.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: At the point

         24  when you were discussing the closing of dental

         25  clinics, I merely wanted to bring to the attention
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          2  of Dr. Owen, that Dr. Roystocker, who was the head

          3  of the dental clinic for Queens General Hospital,

          4  was appealing to me in desperation and he was

          5  crying, literally physically crying about the

          6  frustrations he was facing because his budget was

          7  being cut to such a point where he could no longer

          8  operate effectively.

          9                 All of his support staff, his

         10  clerical staff, his appointment secretaries, et

         11  cetera, were being reduced and eliminated and then I

         12  had brought the issue to the chair's attention and

         13  at one point or another Dr. Roystocker left the

         14  hysterical message for me to receive, saying please

         15  don't say anything because then you will rock the

         16  boat, but in the meantime I understand the clinic is

         17  closed, so somebody rocked the boat.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, the problem

         19  I have with that, Council member is, unfortunately

         20  either you rock the boat or you pay the

         21  consequences, because you can't have it both ways.

         22                 Second of all, my problem, when you

         23  brought it to my attention, which is it comes in

         24  with Neal Cohen, why I am now dealing with

         25  contracts. I know this Council, this City,
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          2  appropriated funds into these clinics when there

          3  were cuts in the clinics.

          4                 When you came to me about the

          5  question about that, my question was first find out

          6  how much money was given.

          7                 For example, Commissioner, in this

          8  budget there was appropriation of funds for debt at

          9  these clinics. And I remember correctly it is about

         10  $3 million.

         11                 Well, if I knew when I put the money

         12  in the budget when we did, you think I would put the

         13  $3 million in the budget if you are going to close

         14  down those ten dental clinics? That is what

         15  negotiation is all about.

         16                 And the reason I can't hold you

         17  accountable is because that was not negotiated with

         18  you, it was negotiated with HHC.

         19                 DR. COHEN: That particular

         20  initiative, that $3 million, Councilman, was to

         21  address, as I recall deficits of the diagnostic and

         22  treatment --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, sir. That is

         24  additional money. As a matter of fact, it is $3

         25  million to the diagnostic treatment centers of which
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          2  HHC gave me a formula. Let me go back, I think it is

          3  called Child Health, or that program -- we actually

          4  put money into programs which also allow for young

          5  people and the dental clinic, which is different

          6  from the diagnostic and treatment centers -- you

          7  know, the one thing I do keep track of is where I

          8  put my money.

          9                 Let me ask you this, Commissioner,

         10  and then I will -- I am sorry, Council Member. One

         11  more question.

         12                 In all of the 13 contracts you have

         13  right now with HHC, are there any hidden things that

         14  I should know before I blow up again?

         15                 Are there any other plans to close

         16  things, or you are evaluating? And let me say,

         17  before you do, would you talk to me?

         18                 DR. COHEN: I will be pleased to talk

         19  to you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.

         21                 DR. COHEN: There are no discussions

         22  that are taking place on any of these contracts that

         23  regard closing down services, no.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you will

         25  provide this Committee with the evaluation of HHC's
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          2  13 contracts from 1996 to the present, and the only

          3  one you can't give me is because you are going to

          4  evaluate yourself over the next six months, or at

          5  least the first six months, since the closure. But

          6  that does not preclude you from giving me all 13

          7  contracts, your evaluation, that is what I am

          8  requesting.

          9                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         11  Quinn and -- I am sorry, Council Member Rivera.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 Very quickly, I just want to pick up

         15  where he just ended.  There are 13 contracts, and I

         16  don't recall -- I do recall you mentioning the total

         17  amount dollar figure, but I don't recall you saying

         18  that out of the $283 million, mostly all of it is

         19  going into approximately about $260 million is going

         20  into correctional and family health program.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That is correct.

         22  About $17 million of the overall goes into HHC,

         23  which has nothing to do with the correctional.

         24                 You are right, the bulk of the money

         25  goes into correctional and --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: What is left,

          3  and I would like at some point, if not now, when you

          4  get this evaluation or report from the Commissioner,

          5  I would like to know what is the difference between

          6  a model clinic, and a combined chest clinic?

          7                 And the reason why I am asking this

          8  question is because both of them deal with the issue

          9  of the high reported cases of tuberculosis in some

         10  of the boroughs that we come from. Not necessarily

         11  the hospitals that we represent, because I do not

         12  have a municipal hospital in my district. But

         13  tuberculosis came first to the attention of this

         14  Committee during the last administration, and I

         15  believe that, yes, this Commissioner was not

         16  Commissioner until recently, it was Commissioner

         17  Hamburg, I believe that was the name.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, Margaret.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: And she was

         20  Commissioner during the David Dinkins

         21  Administration. Then for a group portion of the

         22  beginning of this present administration. And

         23  tuberculosis, if I recall it, really makes the New

         24  York Times and other papers, the high cases are

         25  coming out of the Bronx. I don't want to compete
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          2  with any other borough, I don't want to compete with

          3  another hospital, but I like to know why, what is

          4  the difference between a modern clinic in Harlem

          5  Hospital, and a combined chest clinic where we spent

          6  a little bit over a million dollars in the Bronx,

          7  and over close to $4 million in Harlem Hospital. Let

          8  alone highlight the other hospitals, the amount of

          9  money they are getting in the other boroughs seem to

         10  be dealing with the issue of tuberculosis. So, I

         11  would like to at some point, if not now at some

         12  point for us to get some answers. Is there something

         13  that we are not doing in the Bronx? I mean, we bring

         14  the issue in the last two administrations and why is

         15  this, why the difference in the dollar amount being

         16  spent? Is it that you have done such a great job in

         17  the Bronx, that that is the reason why --

         18                 DR. COHEN: Okay, I can clarify to you

         19  that the model program is a federal CDC funded

         20  program, so that is not City tax levy dollars. And

         21  it is at Harlem Hospital --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: The money is

         23  here on this slip. But yet the money is part of the

         24  $283 million. It is right here.

         25                 Am I right, Mr. Chairman?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            151

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 DR. COHEN: Yes, it is part of our

          3  contract, but the dollars are received from the

          4  federal government for an enhanced teaching center

          5  that provides intensive training for health

          6  practitioners in addressing tuberculosis. So, the

          7  services have a Citywide value, although the main

          8  training site is at Harlem Hospital, and they are

          9  not City tax levy dollars.

         10                 I should add also that you are right

         11  in pointing out that in 1992 we had a very large

         12  number of TB cases, some of the public health

         13  infrastructure was let down with respect to

         14  addressing TB, and we emerged particularly in New

         15  York City. At that time there were 3,800 new cases

         16  that year, and in this last year there were about

         17  1,500. So we have seen a reduction of about 59

         18  percent in cases since 1992. The case rates are more

         19  than half. The number of drug-resistant cases are

         20  down in the last fiscal year to only 64, which is a

         21  very small number, compared to where it had been

         22  several years ago, and the DOT program has been very

         23  successful in maintaining a good success rate with

         24  regard to completing treatment throughout the City.

         25                 We are reevaluating now where we go

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            152

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  from here because we see that in the last couple of

          3  years the majority of new cases of TB are people who

          4  are foreign-born, so that the immigrant population

          5  is at greater risk because of their exposure to TB

          6  and their countries of origin, and they may come

          7  here without necessarily being actively infected,

          8  but they may have dormant TB that could be activated

          9  at any time.

         10                 So, we want to take a close look, and

         11  with regard to some of these contracts with

         12  tuberculosis, we often are able, because of funds

         13  that are not spent to provide carry-over services

         14  with these contracted services, but no data as we

         15  assess the changing sociodemographics of the

         16  populations that are greatest risk, it is likely

         17  that we might move services to other areas and other

         18  communities where we feel the need might be greater.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The last

         20  question, Council Member Quinn.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It is not so

         22  much a question, but it is a statement. Back to the

         23  dental clinics. You know the clinic in my district

         24  on Ninth Avenue and 27th, 28th Street was closed. In

         25  the communication that I got from DOH, four places
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          2  were listed where people who used to go to the

          3  Chelsea Clinic could go instead. It didn't mention

          4  in the letter whether they were going to be free or

          5  not free. When my office called those clinics,

          6  calling both as my office and then called just

          7  pretending we were someone who wanted to make a

          8  dental appointment, three of them, and I can get

          9  back to you on which three, told us there would be a

         10  charge. And at no point in the discussions, even

         11  when they knew it was my office and not just a

         12  consumer did those three tell us that there was the

         13  option that you referred to.

         14                 I also just want to say that those

         15  four, none of them are in community board 4 where

         16  the health clinic was, only one is in my district in

         17  like the southern most tip of my district, which

         18  obviously I think is an issue for people who are

         19  using it, particularly since it is right next to a

         20  housing project, et cetera. But the most important

         21  thing is, literally, and we even pushed on the phone

         22  to try to get, you know what I mean, to try to get

         23  the people on the phone to say there was a free

         24  option, and I can let you know it was three, but it

         25  was three out of the four. So, I would hope that
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          2  even before the six month review, you could go

          3  perhaps and check not just my four, but all of them

          4  to make sure that they really are free, operating in

          5  a free manner and making that information clear.

          6                 DR. COHEN: I appreciate your concern

          7  that you raised and I certainly will do that. We

          8  won't wait six months and then find out -- because

          9  sometimes it is a matter of education of operators

         10  or clerical staff, so they know how best to

         11  communicate to clients with respect to the policies

         12  and procedures and these things that can be

         13  corrected but might be left mistakingly that could

         14  contribute to the outcome.

         15                 So, we will certainly do that and I

         16  will bring that issue to the attention of the board

         17  at HHC, where I sit to make sure that when we look

         18  April 15th, we will actually be getting results that

         19  speak to the impact of that transfer but aren't

         20  confounded by this kind of perhaps poor

         21  communication.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         23  say that I am glad you are going to look into it,

         24  and I will follow up, obviously, with the agency

         25  before you all are back. I am concerned, though,
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          2  that it may be something more than just poor

          3  communication. Because as I said, the second round

          4  of calls, my staff said I am calling from the

          5  Council Member's Office, we were told these would be

          6  free. So, I am concerned that there may be in some a

          7  real miscommunication let's say not on the part of

          8  the receptionist and the client, but perhaps on the

          9  part of DOH, HHC and the clinic when the agreement

         10  was made. Because those folks were really pushed,

         11  you know and it was made clear it was government

         12  office calling.

         13                 DR. COHEN: We do anticipate that the

         14  enrollment for Medicaid and/or Child Health Plus

         15  will take place at those sites in HHC.

         16                 We believe it is important that

         17  children and their families receive dental care in

         18  the context of comprehensive health services, and

         19  hopefully not just episodic band-aid approach to,

         20  you know, when there are obvious acute problems that

         21  emerge.

         22                 So, we recognize that HHC is going to

         23  try to engage people who are uninsured who would be

         24  eligible for Medicaid or Child Health Plus, become

         25  enrolled in those programs and more easily access
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          2  and have more choices with respect to their health

          3  care needs; do you understand?

          4                 What I am saying, therefore, is yet

          5  there are questions. I don't mean to say there are

          6  no questions that are asked of people with respect

          7  to their insurance, whether they have insurance,

          8  whether they are eligible for third-party insurance

          9  and to actively try to engage them.  We think that

         10  Child Health Plus, for example, has a very positive

         11  role to play to make sure that people are insured

         12  and then able to access and have many more choices.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That is a very

         14  different issue, though. I don't think anybody is

         15  saying if there is a way to get reimbursed for

         16  services, so-to-speak, or enroll people in programs,

         17  where there will be reimbursement or more

         18  comprehensive care. Of course, we are for that.

         19                 What I am saying is that when we

         20  called this office and said there was a free clinic

         21  in our district, DOH told me that my constituents

         22  should go here. Can they come here if they have no

         23  insurance and they have no money? Will they receive

         24  free dental care?

         25                 The response to my staff wasn't,
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          2  well, the first thing we will try to do is get them

          3  to do X, Y and Z and then if they can't, yes, they

          4  will. I wouldn't be raising that at this level, I

          5  might say, you know, I think they should ask those

          6  questions differently, but I would understand that

          7  as a process.

          8                 But the answer was no, unless they

          9  have insurance or are willing to pay they should not

         10  come here at three of the four clinics. And my staff

         11  documented the date, the time, and wrote down what

         12  they said because I see some DOH staff are shaking

         13  their heads, out of three of four, and we called,

         14  you know, back twice, and we have also been making

         15  calls to the other clinics outside of my district

         16  and I can share with you those results too.

         17                 So, this wasn't a mistake and it

         18  wasn't that. I understand what you are saying, and

         19  we had actually met with advocates to prepare

         20  ourselves for the calls in case that happened so we

         21  wouldn't get confused. So it is a different problem,

         22  and I really want to stress that and I really want

         23  to urge that you go immediately and look at that

         24  because that is a very, very different problem.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But if I may, all
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          2  of my colleagues, not only in this Committee, but on

          3  the Council, I think we better stop waiting or

          4  depending upon them to do that, because you are

          5  never going to see them open.

          6                 If you are having these problems, I

          7  challenge every single one of you in this Council to

          8  document whatever has happened since the closing of

          9  those dental clinics, and who is not, or who is

         10  being turned back because someone failed to educate

         11  personnel on what the policy is, and I welcome

         12  Commissioner Neal Cohen's six-month evaluation.

         13                 And like I said, if I and this

         14  Committee and this Council feels that we are not

         15  fulfilling our obligation under the charter, then we

         16  should seriously consider legislatively bringing

         17  back the function to where it started and where it

         18  could be and that is the Department of Health. They

         19  did it since the day I came to Puerto Rico, to

         20  Williamsburg, I grew up, I was educated and like you

         21  I was fortunate to be elected, and I don't see any

         22  complaints about how the Department of Health did

         23  not provide the services.

         24                 I was satisfied with the services

         25  that DOH provided. I am not satisfied with the way
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          2  HHC is operating.

          3                 So, if we evaluate it for ourselves,

          4  then it only helps me in the leadership to then

          5  seriously consider legislatively bringing back the

          6  transfer to where it belongs. And I think to try to

          7  get an answer from Commissioner Neal Cohen, who

          8  happens to be appointed by the Administration, sets

          9  the tone, I think is really unfair.

         10                 Any other questions?

         11                 Commissioner, what I am going to do

         12  first is let you, like always, have the last word.

         13                 I am going to then have a ten-minute

         14  recess so that the Commissioner and others can do

         15  whatever they need to do and then we will come back

         16  into the other portion of the Department of Mental

         17  Health, Mental Retardation. Unless you want five

         18  minutes, sir? I mean, I will work with you.

         19                 So, Commissioner Neal Cohen, thank

         20  you for staying with us and answering our questions.

         21  I will follow through with questions that perhaps we

         22  did not address and maybe we can have you follow

         23  through.

         24                 Having said that, you have the last

         25  word, sir.
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          2                 DR. COHEN: I just want to follow up

          3  on what the Councilman said. I am concerned by that

          4  report, and I will not wait six months and I will

          5  ask my staff to work with HHC and clarify how

          6  information is being shared with callers or anyone

          7  who comes to the clinic, and try to maintain and

          8  clarify that when people cannot afford services they

          9  will be able to receive services as before.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: We will take a

         11  ten-minute recess.

         12                 (Recess taken.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: This portion of

         14  this hearing is a joint hearing between the

         15  Committee on Health and the Subcommittee on Mental

         16  Health, Mental Retardation.

         17                 Council Member, do you want to sit

         18  here?

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And let me,

         21  before calling upon now with the new hat, the

         22  Commissioner of the Department of Mental Health,

         23  Mental Retardation and Alcoholism Services, let me

         24  call upon Council Member Clarke for any opening

         25  statements. And of course, with myself,
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          2  Commissioner, I take the same position that I took

          3  when DOH came. We will go through the questions of

          4  your agency as Commissioner of Mental Health, which

          5  the Chair's questions are, and then we are going to

          6  wrap it up with the contract with HHC.

          7                 Having said that, Council Member

          8  Clarke.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chairman. I don't have a prepared statement, except

         11  to welcome the Commissioner and his staff. In recent

         12  months mental health has come forward in the

         13  forefront because of unfortunate incidents that have

         14  occurred and I recognize how far we have come in the

         15  field of mental health, in terms of making sure that

         16  the mentally ill receive the kind of services that

         17  they need to have and that certainly these headline

         18  catching incidents put us back from where we were

         19  and certainly as we try to do a stigma campaign and

         20  these things happen and people are hurt, it means

         21  that we need to redouble our efforts on behalf of

         22  the mental health community.

         23                 As you know, the Chair will be doing

         24  a hearing on Kendra's Law, the accompanying money,

         25  the state's plan for it and I hope that at that
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          2  point in time you will come prepared to tell us what

          3  the City will be doing to match what the state may

          4  be doing and that there is a master plan in terms of

          5  how we will move forward in terms of mental health

          6  services.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner,

          8  would you identify yourself for the record, and

          9  those with you.

         10                 DR. COHEN: Yes, I am Dr. Neal Cohen,

         11  Commissioner of the Department of Mental Health,

         12  Mental Retardation and Alcoholism Services. To my

         13  left is Mr. Dan Still, First Deputy Commissioner. To

         14  my right is Elsie DelCampo, Deputy Commissioner for

         15  Program Services, and to her right is Mr. Carlos

         16  Diaz, Deputy Commissioner for Child and Adolescent

         17  Services.

         18                 I would like to review the

         19  Department's Fiscal Year 1999 performance, as

         20  summarized in the Mayor's Management Report.

         21                 First, I would like to express my

         22  appreciation for the City Council for its continuing

         23  support of the Department's efforts to enhance the

         24  City's Mental Hygiene system, and I look forward to

         25  continuing this productive collaboration.
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          2                 The Department's section of the MMR

          3  present's an overview of the community-based mental

          4  hygiene programs, as well as new initiatives that

          5  the Department is undertaking. It also highlights

          6  essential elements of our strategic direction for

          7  Fiscal Year 2000.

          8                 This morning I will focus on several

          9  of the new initiatives outlined in the report,

         10  ongoing initiatives.

         11                 From the mental health sector, I

         12  would like to provide an update to the Council on

         13  the areas of employment, housing, forensic services,

         14  reinvestment, the assisted outpatient treatment

         15  program and managed care.

         16                 In my testimony to you a year ago I

         17  noticed that employment is one of the key components

         18  for psychiatric recovery. I will now outline for you

         19  two innovative and complimentary employment

         20  initiatives that the Department laid the groundwork

         21  for in Fiscal Year '99, which we expect to have

         22  lasting impacts.

         23                 The first launched this past summer

         24  is the Treatment is Working Campaign, which aims to

         25  promote a perspective among employers and the
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          2  general public that people with mental illness want

          3  to work, can work and do work. The Department is

          4  working with consumers and their families,

          5  employers, job developers and the City's business

          6  community to develop public education and other

          7  resource materials to promote the employment of

          8  persons with mental illness. A highly visible poster

          9  campaign throughout the transit system, which I hope

         10  you have all seen, has already stimulated an

         11  increase in employment-related calls to

         12  1-800-Lifenet, the Department's and the Mental

         13  Health Association's public/private partnership, as

         14  an information and referral line.

         15                 The second initiative is the Work

         16  Center Program the Department will launch this year

         17  in cooperation with the State Office of Mental

         18  Health. Operated by a contract agency, the program's

         19  goals will be to help individuals with mental

         20  illness enter and remain in a competitive job market

         21  by offering support and technical assistance to

         22  mental health providers.

         23                 The program's services will include

         24  creating a job bank that will enable providers to

         25  access job information for their clients, establish
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          2  a clearing house of information on successful

          3  employment strategies, and training mental health

          4  providers to be more successful at finding

          5  competitive jobs for their clients.

          6                 I am pleased to report that there

          7  were significant advances in the City's efforts to

          8  provide more housing for people with mental illness

          9  during Fiscal Year '99. I know that the Council is

         10  aware that the need to develop new housing

         11  opportunities for people with mental illness is

         12  critical.

         13                 Through the efforts of a special

         14  committee, a second New York New York Program has

         15  been negotiated with the State to house homeless

         16  mentally ill individuals. The new five-year

         17  agreement commits the state and the City to a

         18  development of 1,500 new supported housing units in

         19  the City. The State has issued a request for

         20  proposals to solicit agencies interested in

         21  developing properties and providing mental health

         22  services for the 690 units that it will be

         23  sponsoring.

         24                 The City is committed to developing

         25  100 units and HPD continues to work with non-profit
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          2  developers to fulfill that commitment, 285 units are

          3  planned for occupancy by the end of this fiscal

          4  year.

          5                 The State has also solicited the

          6  development of an additional 366 units of supported

          7  housing for mentally ill City residents. The

          8  Department reviewed the proposals and recommended

          9  service providers. Contracts are now in place with

         10  the state.

         11                 The Department continues to expand

         12  its forensic mental health services, in order to

         13  reduce the number of mentally ill individuals who

         14  were cycling through the criminal justice system.

         15                 In Fiscal Year '99, the New York City

         16  Link Program, which provides discharge planning and

         17  transitional or case management served over 1,000

         18  adults who were released from correctional

         19  institutions. In the preliminary MMR for Fiscal '99,

         20  the Department reported its objective to expand this

         21  program from Manhattan to the Bronx and Brooklyn in

         22  Fiscal Year 2000, and I am pleased to report that in

         23  fact the program will be expanded in all five

         24  boroughs this year.

         25                 Additionally a forensic Assertive
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          2  Community Treatment team or ACT team, will begin

          3  operating in Manhattan in Fiscal Year 2000. It is

          4  designed to provide intensive mobile clinical

          5  treatment to mentally ill individuals who were

          6  recently discharged from the criminal justice

          7  system.

          8                 In Fiscal Year '99, the Department

          9  also introduced the Juvenile-LINK Program which

         10  served 84 adolescents in the custody of the

         11  Department of Juvenile Justice.

         12                 This number is expected to increase

         13  to 125 in Fiscal Year 2000.

         14                 And as the Council is aware, our

         15  community mental health reinvestment funding

         16  continues to be the most significant infusion of new

         17  dollars into the City's Mental Health system.  This

         18  was especially true in Fiscal Year '99. In the

         19  spring of '99, the State approved of the

         20  Department's spending plans for the fifth year of

         21  reinvestment, which will allow the Department to

         22  spend an additional $4.2 million on child and

         23  adolescent services, compared to $1.9 million that

         24  was spent in Reinvestment IV, and to create or

         25  enhance 101 programs throughout the City, compared
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          2  to the 66 that we expanded or created in

          3  Reinvestment IV.

          4                 Over the past five years of this

          5  program, $41 million in regular reinvestment funding

          6  has enabled the Department to create or enhance 268

          7  community-based programs for New Yorkers with mental

          8  illnesses.

          9                 Broad categories of core services

         10  developed include emergency and crisis services,

         11  outpatient programs and community support and

         12  housing programs.

         13                 The Department has also received

         14  approximately $22 million for services to mentally

         15  ill homeless individuals and mentally ill chemical

         16  abusers, that when combined with regular

         17  reinvestment-funded programs, has resulted in the

         18  creation of 839 beds from mentally ill persons in

         19  the City.

         20                 And in addition, the State

         21  Commissioner's performance pool has allocated $7

         22  million to New York City for innovative mental

         23  health programs, resulting in 28 new or enhanced

         24  programs.

         25                 The state legislature's recent
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          2  extension of the Community Reinvestment Program has

          3  enabled the City to continue the program's momentum.

          4  Earlier this year borough-specific public hearings

          5  and regional focus groups were held to solicit

          6  community input on mental health population and

          7  service needs.

          8                 The Department uses this input from

          9  consumers, consumer family members, advocates and

         10  providers to develop its next plan for reinvestment.

         11                 In late October, the Department

         12  received the state's allocation and guidelines for

         13  this funding cycle and service planning is well

         14  underway for year six. And the new assisted

         15  outpatient treatment legislation known as Kendra's

         16  Law went into effect November 8th. I look forward to

         17  Thursday when we will have a chance to review that

         18  in detail.

         19                 Now, in collaboration with other City

         20  agencies and the State, the Department continues to

         21  prepare for mental health special needs plans for

         22  adults who need more intensive mental health

         23  services than those offered in basic managed care

         24  packages.

         25                 Last summer the State released a
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          2  request for proposal to implement special needs

          3  plans for adults. The Department worked to ensure

          4  that the scope of services adequately addressed the

          5  needs of the City's mentally ill individuals, as

          6  they relate to homelessness, substance abuse,

          7  criminal justice and other areas of concern.

          8  Proposals are due before the end of the year, after

          9  which the State will select providers and the City

         10  will negotiate and hold the contract.

         11                 The City will work with the state to

         12  assess the provider's readiness, enrollment is

         13  expected to begin in July 2001.

         14                 Through 160 contracted programs, the

         15  Department provides a wide range of services to New

         16  Yorkers with mental retardation and developmental

         17  disabilities, including diagnostic evaluation and

         18  treatment, vocational training and supported

         19  employment counseling, recreation and respite

         20  programs.

         21                 In the preliminary MMR for Fiscal

         22  Year '99, the Department reported the receipt of

         23  City funds to support five new work readiness

         24  programs for developmentally disabled adults, ten

         25  new weekend respite programs for caregivers and five
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          2  after school programs for MRDD children, and I can

          3  now report that these programs are in operation.

          4                 This year new funding allows us to

          5  expand existing work readiness programs and add five

          6  new weekend respite programs, one in each borough.

          7  In Fiscal Year '99, the Department sponsored two

          8  commissioners' forums, one focused on educating

          9  mental hygiene professionals in intervening and

         10  situations involving domestic violence and substance

         11  abuse, among persons with mental retardation and

         12  developmental disabilities.

         13                 The second focused on medical and

         14  mental health treatment for individuals with MRDD. A

         15  third forum is being planned for June of this coming

         16  year.

         17                 As you know, the New York State Cares

         18  Program launched by the Governor provides for a

         19  five-year 4,900 bed statewide expansion of

         20  residential services for people with developmental

         21  disabilities. The Department worked with consumers

         22  and providers to assess the needs and priorities in

         23  each borough, and presented recommendations to the

         24  state.

         25                 In Phase I 3,000 beds are scheduled
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          2  statewide with 1,500 plans for the City. The program

          3  to date has yielded 167 beds for City consumers, and

          4  an additional 107 sites are in development.

          5                 One of the greatest limitations of

          6  the current drug treatment system is the highly

          7  fragmented approach.

          8                 While alcohol and substance abusers

          9  nearly always manifest multiple health and

         10  psychiatric problems, treatment often addresses

         11  symptoms separately.

         12                 The preferred approach is to

         13  coordinate treatment, which provides not only

         14  medical psychiatric social services to the client,

         15  but which also addresses family functioning,

         16  housing, employment and other factors related to

         17  substance abuse.

         18                 All of the Department's new

         19  alcoholism and substance abuse program initiatives

         20  build on this idea, that comprehensive and

         21  coordinated treatment is what really works best.

         22                 Additionally, all of these new

         23  programs will have performance-based contracts

         24  holding them accountable to a variety of performance

         25  outcomes.
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          2                 I would now like to briefly summarize

          3  these programs. With the $9.5 million of additional

          4  City funds for substance abuse treatment, the

          5  Department will use 5.2 million to fund 22 programs

          6  in contract with the Department and three supported

          7  work programs in contract with the Department of

          8  Homeless Services.

          9                 The remaining $4.3 million will fund

         10  enhancements to one adolescent and seven adult

         11  substance abuse treatment programs at HHC. Each of

         12  these newly funded programs will take a more

         13  integrated approach to substance abuse treatment

         14  that has traditionally been taken. These programs

         15  will begin operating this fiscal year.

         16                 And last year I reported on the

         17  successful Cumberland Program. This year I can say

         18  that with $3.5 million in state money, the

         19  Department will create two new treatment programs,

         20  modeled after the Cumberland model, after the

         21  Cumberland Program, but tailored to TANF recipients

         22  who need treatment for substance abuse.

         23                 The goal of the program will be to

         24  treat clients' substance abuse and related problems

         25  so they can move from welfare to the workforce.
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          2                 One program will be at Elmhurst

          3  Hospital in Queens and is expected to be operational

          4  in the spring of 2000. The second program will be

          5  located in the Bronx and will begin by early Fiscal

          6  Year 2001. As the Council is aware, this model

          7  incorporates substance abuse treatment with medical

          8  mental health treatment, as well as a range of

          9  support services.

         10                 The Department will collaborate with

         11  the Department of Health during Fiscal Year 2000 on

         12  an application to take part in the State Incentives

         13  Cooperative Agreement or SICA Program. SICA, which

         14  is an initiative of the State Office of Alcohol and

         15  Substance Abuse Services is designed to assist

         16  communities to build and to expand a multi-system

         17  approach to drug and alcohol prevention among young

         18  people. The program will create partnerships among

         19  community groups that will work towards changing the

         20  conditions in communities that may lead to drug and

         21  alcohol use among young persons.

         22                 As the Council is aware, the Council

         23  is committed to making certain that public dollars

         24  for mental health services are spent as effectively

         25  as possible.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            175

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 One tool used by the Department to

          3  achieve this objective is performance-based

          4  contracting, an initiative which was begun in Fiscal

          5  Year 1998.

          6                 In Fiscal Year '99, we exceeded our

          7  goal of piloting performance-based contracts with

          8  Assertive Community Treatment teams and with

          9  clubhouses by also piloting performance-based

         10  contracts with 30 outpatient alcoholism clinic

         11  programs.

         12                 After the conclusion of the

         13  successful pilots in June, all of these programs

         14  began Fiscal Year 2000 with performance-based

         15  contracts in place.

         16                 The piloting of performance-based

         17  contracts for 22 mental health vocational program

         18  providers began in October of '99, with full

         19  implementation to begin in July of 2000.

         20                 This fall the Department consulted

         21  with providers to help us design outcome

         22  performance-based contracts with mental health

         23  clinical and community support programs, by far the

         24  largest cohort of programs in contract with the

         25  Department.
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          2                 We expect to pilot performance-based

          3  contract with all of these providers in Fiscal Year

          4  2001.

          5                 As the Department has been reporting,

          6  the early intervention program continues to expand

          7  at a remarkable rate. The number of children served

          8  by the program have been increased every year since

          9  the program's inception in 1993. In Fiscal Year '99

         10  referrals to the program rose to 13,621, compared to

         11  12,132 in the previous year, a 12 percent increase.

         12                 10,894 children were evaluated during

         13  FY '99, a 15 percent increase over the previous

         14  year. And additionally, 11,543 children had active

         15  service plans during Fiscal Year '99, an increase to

         16  the caseload of 26 percent.

         17                 Now, to cover the cost of serving the

         18  anticipated number of children in Fiscal Year 2000,

         19  as well as the State's periodic rate increases,

         20  funding to the program was increased by $12.7

         21  million in the current fiscal year.

         22                 The success of the program reflects

         23  in large measure program management's commitment to

         24  collaborating with families, providers, monitoring

         25  bodies and regulators to build a strong and credible
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          2  cohort of services in response to a vast need in the

          3  community.

          4                 The major initiatives in Fiscal Year

          5  '99 focus on program planning, quality assurance

          6  and strengthening consumer participation through the

          7  establishment of a family involvement committee.

          8                 Staff also participated in state

          9  training in the practical application of newly

         10  developed clinical guidelines on autism and other

         11  communication disorders. And recently I appointed a

         12  chair and co-chair to the local Early Intervention

         13  Coordinating Council, which serves as an advisory

         14  board to early intervention on program and policy

         15  issues.

         16                 This concludes my testimony, and I

         17  hope you will agree that many innovative changes and

         18  approaches are taking place, but given the new

         19  demands on the agency, as with Kendra's Law, the new

         20  dollars that are being presented at this time from

         21  the State, there are many challenges ahead to

         22  strengthen the mental hygiene delivery system.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Commissioner,

         25  there are a couple of questions I wanted to ask. One
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          2  is, on your page one of the testimony, about the

          3  employment initiative, and as you know we have been

          4  going around in circles about really finding

          5  meaningful employment for persons with mental

          6  illness, and I wondered whether you would lay out

          7  for us. What your new approach would be, where do

          8  you think that we can find meaningful employment for

          9  persons with mental illness? And as I have always

         10  said, both publicly and privately, I think that

         11  government is an employer of last resort. There are

         12  many city agencies that can use the skills and

         13  talent of the many persons that I have met diagnosed

         14  with mental illness, all of whom are maintaining

         15  themselves and have skills and talent that can be

         16  used, so if we are really going to provide

         17  meaningful employment, can you give us your master

         18  plan for that employment?

         19                 DR. COHEN: Well, I am pleased that we

         20  have been able with our reinvestment dollars to make

         21  a significant investment in employment initiatives

         22  for people with mental disabilities. You know, when

         23  we started out six years ago in this process, there

         24  were a whole host of clinical services that needed

         25  to be created to make sure that people could access
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          2  emergency services short of 911 for mental health

          3  providers, and we have been able to do that

          4  throughout the City, as well as certain community

          5  support programs.

          6                 Going forward we recognize that our

          7  consumers were speaking to us about housing and they

          8  were talking to us about employment, because in

          9  order to be truly mainstreamed and become part of

         10  those communities where they deserved and we were

         11  seeking to help get them reintegrated to, everyone

         12  needs a stable home, as well as a place to go during

         13  the day that would in some way begin to tap into

         14  what a person's life goals are, in consideration of

         15  what they had been and how a person can sort of go

         16  forward and achieve their potential.

         17                 So, over the course of the last

         18  several years, we have been able to fund a number of

         19  new models that create opportunities for consumers

         20  to participate in getting more job readiness skills,

         21  as well as to move into more competitive employment.

         22                 Some of these involve, you know, we

         23  moved from what had been the sheltered workshop

         24  model that had been used in the MRDD community, to a

         25  variety of initiatives that some of them are
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          2  transitional employment, others I will call, some of

          3  these models I will name affirmative business,

          4  enclave, assisted competitive employment. What it

          5  translates into is a variety of program options so

          6  that people can feel that they are making movement

          7  and progress toward regaining a foot in the

          8  community so they can very much again feel a sense

          9  of belonging to their community and feel productive

         10  and see how employers in the community recognize

         11  that people with mental disabilities generally make

         12  good employees, and a shift in the model from where

         13  we had put a lot of investment into job readiness

         14  training, and then eventually finding an employment

         15  slot to actually finding the employment slot early

         16  on and then providing coaching and supervision so

         17  that person can do well and benefit from that

         18  supervision and that model actually seems to be a

         19  more effective one than the amount of investment and

         20  time that was taken in making somebody ready,

         21  because when they still when they came to the

         22  workplace needed the support and peer support and

         23  supervisory support.

         24                 So, that is the model that we are

         25  using, and we have invested about seven percent of
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          2  the $41 million. I think it is actually more than $5

          3  million has been invested in employment services,

          4  and going forward I would expect that we will

          5  continue to make major investments in employment for

          6  our consumers.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Can you just

          8  describe for us what the Work Center Program that

          9  you will do in partnership with the state, what will

         10  it look like, and what is its ultimate goal?

         11                 DR. COHEN: Right. The Work Center

         12  Program will actually provide technical assistance

         13  and support to community-based organizations that

         14  now need to incorporate planning for helping their

         15  clients and consumers get more job training and move

         16  into the work place.

         17                 One component is the job bank that

         18  allows the agency's themselves to access information

         19  about availability of jobs, a clearing house on the

         20  models for successful employment strategies, and as

         21  well as training mental health providers to be more

         22  aware of those issues in creating a treatment plant

         23  for their clients so that where the person might be

         24  able to move into employment, whether competitively

         25  or in supportive employment, that will be a
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          2  significant component to the plan to help that

          3  individual recover.

          4                 So that it is a place where the

          5  mental health community itself will be able to turn

          6  to have the kind of expertise that will allow them

          7  to begin to not only develop models as well as to

          8  apply for funding and from foundations or federal

          9  and state, as well as City sources. So, we see this

         10  as an opportunity to have a real expertise in the

         11  City that is in the community that isn't part of

         12  government but working closely with government in a

         13  partnership to make sure that we are putting enough

         14  emphasis on these program objectives.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And then as I

         16  ask that I am thinking about benefits that persons

         17  with disabilities now receive and are there any

         18  barriers with employment cushioned by any benefits

         19  that they may have and will lose as a result of

         20  employment? Or is there provision for any hold

         21  overtime to make sure that they are successfully

         22  working on the job before benefits are taken away?

         23                 DR. COHEN: Well, this has always been

         24  critical to the lack of success the system has had

         25  historically because there were too many
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          2  governmental incentives, if you will, and

          3  disincentives that interfered with consumers taking

          4  chances because of the risk of losing their Medicaid

          5  or their disability support payments. So that in the

          6  last couple of years and now at long last there are

          7  bills that have passed both houses of congress that

          8  allow people to be able to purchase their Medicaid

          9  entitlements so that they don't lose their health

         10  insurance so that they are not taking such risks

         11  with their own well-being that they would avoid

         12  these program models. We are waiting for a final

         13  bill to be signed by the president, but it would

         14  appear that this disincentive has contributed

         15  significantly to why people with mental disabilities

         16  have not really availed themselves of these programs

         17  and why the programs have not been sensitive to the

         18  needs of our consumers.

         19                 So, we see this legislation as really

         20  providing a new incentive that we didn't have

         21  before, and it could make a significant difference.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And then for

         23  the New York New York Agreement, for the 15,000 new

         24  supportive housing units that will come to the City,

         25  can you just let us know based on each borough, if
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          2  there is a special allocation because of a waiting

          3  list for supportive housing, one, where it will be,

          4  and then the providers, are they the providers we

          5  now have and who have expertise? Are you looking for

          6  new providers and how will that occur? You and I

          7  recognize all of the problems with siting and you

          8  and I recognize that all of us want the mentally ill

          9  off the street. We just don't want them in the same

         10  block where we live.

         11                 Is there a new master plan in terms

         12  of educating and re-educating persons about where

         13  these units will be?

         14                 DR. COHEN: Well, we recognize that --

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: How will we

         16  break down the old barriers, that is what I am

         17  actually asking.

         18                 DR. COHEN: The New York New York II,

         19  which is 1,500 beds, you know, I would love for it

         20  to be 15,000, but we are going to have to --

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: We asked for

         22  10,000 and all I am getting is 1,500. I was just

         23  talking about the real need, so tell me what you get

         24  from what we really need, how you are going to use

         25  those?
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          2                 DR. COHEN: Well, we recognize that

          3  the pipeline for community bed development takes

          4  several years. So there is an allocation for

          5  scattered site rental apartment sites that will

          6  allow us to get some capacity in the system for our

          7  consumers to be able to have the housing that they

          8  need to take advantage of the program models that we

          9  are trying to offer them.

         10                 You know, your question to how to

         11  address the stigma and community siting is one that

         12  has been with us from the beginning. Fortunately we

         13  were able to get the 3,500 or so beds in the New

         14  York New York 1 sited, and targeted for those

         15  individuals who are at the very highest risk. This

         16  New York New York II will have the same eligibility

         17  criteria so that again we would be able to address

         18  the needs of people who are most, you know, have

         19  histories of homelessness, as well as severe mental

         20  illness.

         21                 I think that these initiatives now at

         22  the millennium are now being carried out differently

         23  from a decade ago because we have so many more

         24  community programs, as well as support, community

         25  support programs. It wasn't that long ago that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            186

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Fountain House was the only psychosocial club in the

          3  City, and now, as you know, there are more than 12.

          4  And we have a variety of other ways of supporting

          5  consumers and peer advocacy programs and the

          6  employment programs support the housing initiatives

          7  and vice versa. So, I think there is much more of an

          8  armamentarium of services that will make it easier

          9  for consumers to take advantage of the housing that

         10  we provide to them, and even have higher retention

         11  rates than the New York New York 1 initiative gave

         12  us.

         13                 What we have been lacking, and this

         14  speaks to Kendra's Law, which we will discuss on

         15  Thursday, is the case management and care

         16  coordination, because as we have been able to bring

         17  on line many more programs, nevertheless, very often

         18  since our clients need to participate in more than

         19  one program because of the multiple needs that they

         20  have, we need services to be very tightly

         21  coordinated, we need an overseer, we need people who

         22  are making sure that consumers don't fall out of the

         23  system, and all too often have difficulty navigating

         24  a system that has been very fragmented.

         25                 So, I think the answer to this
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          2  question is that over the next couple of years, if

          3  the funding comes forward from this state that will

          4  allow us to have sufficient case management and

          5  assertive community treatment, in conjunction with

          6  new housing units, along with a maintenance of a

          7  reinvestment program that has provided 300 new

          8  community-based programs, then we really at that

          9  time will have an opportunity to impact profoundly

         10  on the lives of people with serious mental illness.

         11                 I think until now everything has been

         12  unfortunately too piecemeal and it hasn't been

         13  integrated and coordinated, and that needs to be

         14  done differently in the future. We will talk about

         15  Kendra's Law and some of the opportunity that may

         16  finally offer us.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: That also

         18  leads me to the question of, are many mentally ill

         19  that are in the correctional facilities, and those

         20  that are in the homeless shelters at the moment, and

         21  whether under this plan, and I am going to ask you

         22  some questions about the New York City LINK Program,

         23  but last week was a new policy that was announced,

         24  especially for the homeless mentally ill, especially

         25  those in the street, and whether in fact we pick
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          2  them up from the streets, what then happens about

          3  treatment for them, who will do the evaluation of

          4  those persons and who will make sure that this is

          5  not just about cleaning the streets of the mentally

          6  ill because something happened, and we can't always

          7  say nothing will happen, but I think that reaction

          8  or kneejerk reaction to incidents that happen

          9  because of somebody who may be seen as mentally ill

         10  does not put together for me a coherent policy as

         11  how we deal with the homeless mentally ill,

         12  including those who are in the correction

         13  facilities. So, my follow-up question will be, how

         14  many of the individuals will be given medication,

         15  how soon will they be evaluated, who will prescribe

         16  medication for them, whether they are leaving the

         17  jail or whether you are picking them up off the

         18  street and putting them some place, how will we

         19  separate those who are truly chronically mentally

         20  ill, and how are we going to handle that? Do you

         21  have a plan, you know, and a policy getting

         22  announced following an incident, and I am not sure

         23  how we arrive at the decision?

         24                 And I am sure you are in the mix, so

         25  I would like to --
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          2                 DR. COHEN: With regard to the

          3  components of that initiative that will impact on

          4  people with mental disabilities, I can speak to

          5  that. I can tell you there are discussions taking

          6  place to look at how to make that an opportunity to

          7  link people with services that they need. I was

          8  reminded the other day that in 1985 Mayor Koch

          9  actually initiated the cold weather initiative,

         10  which called for when the weather reached 32 degrees

         11  Fahrenheit and homeless people would be brought off

         12  the street in consideration of the fact that in this

         13  very frigid winter we very often see that people

         14  exposed to the weather put their own safety and

         15  health at risk.

         16                 Furthermore, the Project Help was

         17  created at that time in response to the intention of

         18  government to try to recognize that we had an

         19  epidemic of mentally ill people because of the

         20  neglect of the community-based system for so many

         21  years, and an inpatient service was created at

         22  Bellevue Hospital and there was a state facility at

         23  Rockland that provided back-up, and there were more

         24  programming that took place for people with

         25  histories of homelessness, and mental illness, and I
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          2  think that was a positive development as things

          3  unfolded.

          4                 My review also led me to find that

          5  Mayor Dinkins in 1990 reviewed that policy on cold

          6  weather initiatives. So, this is in itself not

          7  something that with regard to homeless mentally ill

          8  that is a new policy, but because we have funded

          9  over the past six years a large number of outreach

         10  programs, I can't give you the exact number today,

         11  that would target the homeless population. We have

         12  programs that are in shelters as well as outreach

         13  teams that are intending to target the street

         14  homeless and begin to engage them in the kinds of

         15  services of treatment and support services they

         16  need.

         17                 So, my intention would be to see any

         18  initiative that would try to identify people on the

         19  street who are seriously mentally ill and obviously

         20  in need and not receiving services, to find that as

         21  an opportunity to launch a set of ways to figure out

         22  what we can do for them and how we can begin to

         23  re-engage them in services and the kinds of

         24  entitlements that they may need.

         25                 At this moment I don't have a
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          2  protocol to tell you that the City will follow, but

          3  in the coming days we will be participating with

          4  meetings that are being held by the Office of the

          5  Criminal Justice Coordinator to discuss the

          6  population that this agency is intending to serve

          7  and how we can address that.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Except that I

          9  recall that with Mayor Koch he called upon

         10  established not-for-profits, which were churches,

         11  synagogues, asking them in a humane way to do it, it

         12  was not necessarily a reaction to an incident, which

         13  also leads me to the mentally ill that consistently

         14  are in the jail, and we talk about New York City

         15  LINK, but I am not sure how well when somebody

         16  leaves the jail, how often they return to the jail

         17  because there is no follow-up and I would want to

         18  know how many case managers there are, when they

         19  leave the jail, how are they linked, how do we make

         20  sure that wherever they are linked that they

         21  continue to get services.  And if not, if you can

         22  tell me how often they are returned to jail because

         23  that is probably the best place.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before you do

         25  that, I want to make sure I -- I was going to wait
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          2  until you finished, but there was something that you

          3  said, Commissioner, and I want to make sure I

          4  thought I heard correctly.

          5                 I believe the Chair of the

          6  Subcommittee asked you a question about the

          7  Administration's policy, a new policy on removing

          8  the homeless from the streets of New York City. I

          9  believe that is the question. Did I hear you say --

         10  well, before I ask you what I thought I heard you

         11  say, let me ask you this: Can you give me, based

         12  upon the length of time you have been Commissioner

         13  of the Department of Mental Health, Mental

         14  Retardation and Alcoholism Services, that when you

         15  deal with the homeless population in the City of New

         16  York, of that population, what is the percentage in

         17  the years that you have been commissioner you would

         18  say have several problems that need to be addressed?

         19  For example, either mental health, mental

         20  retardation, alcoholism services, drug addiction; do

         21  you have a ball park number?

         22                 DR. COHEN: Our best estimate, like

         23  many studies nationally, there is a difference

         24  between those homeless who are sheltered and with

         25  families and those single adults who are living on
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          2  the street. So, there is a higher incidence of

          3  mental illness and chemical dependence of people who

          4  are living on the street, and those who are in

          5  shelters living with families.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But I think the

          7  policy that I believe the Councilperson is referring

          8  to does not address the homeless in the system, in

          9  the shelter. I think the question was about this new

         10  policy of removing homeless people from the streets

         11  of New York City, and I believe that the definition

         12  is that the streets are not for people to sleep and

         13  what have you.

         14                 Did I hear you say -- first of all,

         15  this policy, this new policy of the police going

         16  around and, at least the media reports, that they

         17  try to route them. But did I hear you say that your

         18  agency has no protocol in place once the homeless is

         19  either removed and there is contact between the

         20  police and that homeless person that -- did you say

         21  you did not have a protocol?

         22                 DR. COHEN: No, I certainly didn't

         23  intend to say that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What did you say?

         25                 DR. COHEN: What I am saying, you
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          2  know, we have several out reach teams right now that

          3  are on the street this evening that are reaching out

          4  to homeless mentally ill people and trying to engage

          5  them to bring them back in to extend services to

          6  them --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That is your

          8  agency, correct? This team is made up of people of

          9  your agency?

         10                 DR. COHEN: No, we have contracts with

         11  community-based organizations.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, follow what I

         13  am saying to you. Maybe I am putting on the wrong

         14  television and reading the wrong -- not the right

         15  newspaper.

         16                 The policy that I think, the most

         17  recent policy is about the Police Department

         18  removing anyone, in this case they are referred to

         19  homeless people, from the streets of New York City.

         20  They should not be sleeping in the streets,

         21  sidewalks are not for the purpose of sleeping. I

         22  think that is what the question was related to.

         23                 My question which I thought I heard

         24  you say is, I don't believe the Police Department is

         25  qualified to assess and evaluate the needs of
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          2  homeless people, especially if you are saying to me

          3  that many of those, what are not in the shelters but

          4  out in the streets or out being picked up, even a

          5  variety of services, among them they may be

          6  mentally, they may be, you know, alcohol, drugs. I

          7  think what I need to hear is what in this policy,

          8  what is the role of your agency, and how do you team

          9  and work with the Police Department once they come

         10  in contact? Because the original contact is not by

         11  the teams that I think you are saying are from your

         12  agency. I am not referring to those teams, I am

         13  referring to the policy that says from now on a

         14  police officer walking his beat, riding in a car,

         15  what have you, sees someone laying on the sidewalk,

         16  they are supposed to either help them, route them

         17  but get them off the street. I think that is what

         18  the question was about.

         19                 I didn't hear what your role and how

         20  you the professional agency works with the Police

         21  Department and this contact. I think that is what I

         22  want to hear.

         23                 DR. COHEN: We have historically

         24  worked with the Police Department. We have worked

         25  with Community Assistance Unit, we have had our --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner,

          3  please, listen to me. Listen to me.

          4                 Do you have a protocol which when the

          5  Mayor announced this new policy on picking up

          6  homeless people, is there a protocol? Forget about,

          7  community assistance is not the Police Department.

          8  Maybe I have been here too long, and wait for the

          9  Year 2000 I won't be around, but community

         10  assistance is not the Police Department, that is a

         11  component within the Mayor's Office.

         12                 I think what I want to hear is, what

         13  role does your agency play? The police is the lead

         14  agency, just the contact. But what happens after the

         15  contact, I believe it is your agency that should be

         16  taking the lead because you have the

         17  professionalism.

         18                 Now, if I am wrong, correct me. I

         19  just need to hear what is that protocol, what is the

         20  role you play, how do you coordinate with the Police

         21  Department. Please don't tell me about the community

         22  assistance unit, they are not the professional

         23  people within your agency.

         24                 DR. COHEN: Well, there are two ways

         25  that mental health professionals have made an
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          2  intervention here.

          3                 One is in the shelter itself. That is

          4  when individuals are brought to a shelter. There is

          5  a triage system in the shelter so that people who

          6  appear to be in need either because of substance

          7  abuse or mental illness will be identified as such,

          8  and will then be referred for an array of services

          9  that is available at the shelter system alone.

         10                 And the other locust of intervention

         11  would be in a hospital emergency room, where many

         12  mentally ill people in this initiative will be

         13  brought, where their health, physical health, as

         14  well as mental health, needs and issues will be

         15  evaluated, the need for a hospital-based care will

         16  be evaluated, or beginning outpatient care will be

         17  evaluated, so those are two ways that this

         18  initiative potentially can impact in identifying

         19  people who are on the street who are mentally ill

         20  and homeless.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If I may, and

         22  then I will turn it back to the chair.

         23                 Who keeps track? For example, I

         24  remember watching the Mayor in a press conference

         25  and I think it was during the long holiday weekend
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          2  where I believe in one day anywhere between 45

          3  individuals were picked up off the street by the

          4  Police Department. So, in one day, 45 individuals

          5  came in contact with the police and something

          6  happened to them. I hope they were not arrested. But

          7  from that contact point, what happened to them? Who

          8  is evaluating how many of those 45 went to a shelter

          9  and what is the follow-up? How many of those did not

         10  go to a shelter, but then was routed into the

         11  emergency room of the Health and Hospitals

         12  Corporation system, or I am assuming a voluntary

         13  hospital, how do we monitor to see that the

         14  effectiveness of this policy, this plan, which is to

         15  help the homeless is really being so that when the

         16  critics, when the advocates, when those who say it

         17  is wrong, that you can stand and say what we are

         18  doing in my professional opinion is the proper

         19  thing.

         20                 Now, you may disagree with me. I will

         21  see you in court. They are going to go to court with

         22  you, that I know. I keep hearing Norman Siegel say

         23  that. But those are the kind of questions I don't

         24  think we are really getting an answer to.

         25                 Now, if you are the lead agency, and
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          2  I don't mean the police. The police is the original

          3  contact. For once, who makes the evaluation, and

          4  then how do they get routed through? You are the

          5  commissioner, it is your agency, how do you then

          6  become the lead agency?

          7                 DR. COHEN: Okay, I would like to

          8  remind the Chair this is an MMR hearing on the

          9  Department's performance in Fiscal Year '99 --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I understand

         11  that.

         12                 DR. COHEN: And you are asking me

         13  about an initiative that started about a week ago,

         14  and an initiative that is not specifically --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You are

         16  absolutely right. I withdraw my question and ask the

         17  chair of the Subcommittee to withdraw her question,

         18  and at the proper oversight hearing on this new

         19  policy we will answer those questions. You are

         20  absolutely right.

         21                 DR. COHEN: And I don't say that in

         22  the spirit of being evasive --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no, no. Neal,

         24  when you are right you are right, and with all due

         25  respect to the Chair of the Subcommittee, this is an
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          2  MMR on last year. But I believe, and I want a joint

          3  hearing of both the Standing Committee and the

          4  Subcommittee to address this new policy, and then we

          5  will get the answers then.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Commissioner,

          7  you are right, but I was trying to tie in the New

          8  York City LINK Program, because many of these

          9  individuals I know will end up on Rikers Island

         10  because they were arrested. And if they get there

         11  because they are mentally ill, there must be

         12  somebody there who is going to evaluate them for

         13  their mental illness and that is where the LINK

         14  program takes over, and if you remember, my question

         15  was: Who will do the case management for them? Do

         16  you have adequate case managers to deal with it? And

         17  then how many of these individuals will be put on

         18  medication while they are in jail, do you think?

         19  Because you are an expert in the field. And so it

         20  ties into the MMR because you are going to ask us

         21  for money.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But if I may,

         23  because the Commissioner is correct. I don't believe

         24  this policy was implemented during the MMR period.

         25  Now, why don't you do this, let me say why don't you
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          2  do this: Why don't you go back to the same question

          3  of how they met the needs of those who were

          4  incarcerated at Rikers Island who may need mental

          5  services during the period that this MMR happens to

          6  be and stay away from a new policy.

          7                 We will deal with that at the proper

          8  time.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay. Then,

         10  Commissioner, can you tell me, on an annual basis

         11  how many persons are discharged from Rikers Island

         12  through the LINK program that then receives some

         13  mental health services?

         14                 Do you know the agencies to which

         15  they are referred so that they don't return to

         16  Rikers Island, but that they continue to get care?

         17  Can you let us know that?

         18                 DR. COHEN: Yes. The LINK Program is

         19  currently serving 1,000 plus individuals who were

         20  discharged from Rikers Island over the course of the

         21  calendar year.

         22                 Now, it is our estimate that there

         23  are many more, perhaps as many as 10,000 individuals

         24  with serious mental illness, who are coming from the

         25  correctional health facilities in the course of a
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          2  year. So, clearly and unfortunately this

          3  institutionalization where historically people with

          4  serious mental illness used to often stay in

          5  psychiatric hospital beds that were run by the State

          6  Office of Mental Health, sadly we are seeing people

          7  with serious mental illness end up in the

          8  correctional health system, and for whom their

          9  mental illness alone predisposes them even to

         10  quality of life crimes that are landing them in

         11  correctional health.

         12                 We do believe that linkage with

         13  community-based services and the necessary discharge

         14  planning that we can do to make those linkages

         15  effective will go a long way to improving their

         16  quality of life and keeping them away from

         17  correctional facilities.

         18                 Now, in this coming year we have with

         19  Council funding and with our reinvestment plan, we

         20  are going to expand the LINK program with another

         21  million dollars or so of funding.

         22                 We should have another thousand

         23  clients who will be able to be served through this

         24  program expansion. That is at the Brooklyn Borough

         25  of Detention, as well as the Bronx and the Queens
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          2  Borough houses. So that is a significant expansion.

          3                 On Thursday when we talk about

          4  Kendra's Law, we will be able to reference the $52

          5  million that the Governor now is proposing for case

          6  management and assertive community treatment. Many

          7  of the people who come out of our jails and prisons

          8  will be eligible for services under Kendra's Law,

          9  and I am hopeful that these case management

         10  initiatives will be able to be offered to people who

         11  are coming out of Rikers as well. So, it is possible

         12  that over the next two years we will be able to see

         13  a significant expansion in what historically has

         14  been a neglected area, the linkage of people who

         15  fall into the correctional health system with

         16  community-based care.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But if I may, I

         18  would like to keep the record straight and we are

         19  going to have a hearing on Kendra's Law, but let's

         20  make sure as of this moment in this fiscal year,

         21  both the City and the State fiscal year, there is

         22  not one dollar appropriated to implement Kendra's

         23  Law; is that correct?

         24                 When the Governor signed the bill,

         25  which should have commenced April 1 of their fiscal
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          2  year. And when, you know, all of this hoopla, and I

          3  said I am not going to put one dollar until I have

          4  an oversight hearing with the Subcommittee so that

          5  people know clearly we are putting up the money to

          6  implement a state mandate, yet not one cent is put

          7  into this budget, and even if we get $125 million,

          8  which is what the Governor is proposing, that is

          9  really in the next fiscal year; is that correct,

         10  sir? I just want to make sure we are straight.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: Yes,

         12  that is correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, fine.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Commissioner,

         15  you know, I keep going back to Rikers Island because

         16  I understand, or there are allegations that people

         17  with serious mental illness get dropped off some

         18  place at Queens Plaza in the middle of the night who

         19  I think recycles into the homeless mentally ill

         20  population, and I want to know whether that

         21  information came to your agency, whether that

         22  allegation has come to you, and if so, what would

         23  you be doing about it?

         24                 DR. COHEN: The length of stay of

         25  people in the correctional health system, as you
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          2  know, is very short. I mean, some people stay

          3  longer, but more than half of the Rikers Island

          4  residents stay less than one week. Many may only

          5  stay a couple of days. So, I am more comfortable

          6  with the improvement that we have made in

          7  identifying people with mental illness who are being

          8  served on Rikers Island, because when we look at the

          9  contract that we have with HHC for mental health

         10  services on Rikers Island, we see that there are

         11  more services that are being delivered for mentally

         12  ill people in the past year than we had previously

         13  seen in the correctional health system.

         14                 So, more and more we are identifying,

         15  there is a range of program models that are

         16  available in the correctional health system, and

         17  there is more attention being given to the needs of

         18  mentally ill inmates.

         19                 I am not sure if we are seeing more

         20  individuals who might have cycled through Rikers who

         21  were there for 24 hours, 72 hours, who don't really

         22  get identified as mentally ill, who don't have the

         23  opportunity to be part of the LINK program who may

         24  end up on the street. I can't speak to that. I don't

         25  have evidence for that. But knowing how different
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          2  the population is, and how the length of stay

          3  significantly impacts on the ability of discharge

          4  planning to get the job done, it may be that many of

          5  these individuals are recycling through at a very

          6  rapid pace and are not able to avail themselves of

          7  these program services.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay.

          9                 Let me just ask about OMRDD. There

         10  was an infusion of dollars this year from the state

         11  for expansion of residential services. Can you

         12  describe for us where the services will be? Have you

         13  come up with a plan based on a waiting list as to

         14  where the emphasis will be on providing services?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, because I

         16  want to be consistent with the Commissioner, since

         17  he said this is an MMR of last year, I want to make

         18  sure I understand that, because your question was

         19  that you got an infusion of new funds in this year,

         20  and if it is this year, you are not going to say

         21  this is not -- this is in consultation with this

         22  MMR?

         23                 DR. COHEN: I won't say that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You won't. I see,

         25  okay.
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          2                 DR. COHEN: I will say, however, that

          3  it is a state program, and the City's role is more

          4  advisory and to work with the community boards and

          5  work with the providers to make it possible that the

          6  clients are going to be accepted in the community.

          7                 Now, 1,500 of the first phase, which

          8  is 3,000 statewide, are in New York City. I have had

          9  discussions with the Office of Mental Retardation,

         10  Developmental Disabilities and they are looking for

         11  a wide distribution, because it is a program model

         12  that might have only four to six individuals living

         13  together. So, when you have that many units that are

         14  needed, it obviously needs to be in every borough,

         15  and very widely spread through so many communities.

         16  Mental retardation and developmental disability, for

         17  example, as you know, strikes every community and

         18  every sociodemographic, it cuts across

         19  sociodemographic categories.

         20                 So, providers were offered the

         21  opportunity to participate in the implementation of

         22  the New York State Cares Program. A number of

         23  contracts have been rendered by the State and there

         24  are now a couple of hundred that have been put on

         25  line with the expectation of that another several
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          2  hundred will come on line by the end of this Fiscal

          3  Year.

          4                 At this point the community board

          5  work, we haven't reached that phase yet. The City

          6  has offered to be very much involved with the state

          7  in sitting down with community boards and explaining

          8  that people with developmental disabilities are very

          9  much their neighbors and their sisters and brothers

         10  and that they make good neighbors, so we will

         11  participate with them on that initiative.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay.

         13                 Then my final question is going to be

         14  around early intervention program. I know that there

         15  is large numbers out there and I see the Assistant

         16  Commissioner with his hands folded there, as though

         17  he didn't think I was going to ask a question, to

         18  just let me know where you are with that, and how

         19  are we finding providers to begin with, and what are

         20  the requirements for a provider in early

         21  intervention?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELCAMPO: The

         23  state in this calendar year alone approved

         24  approximately 45 new providers here in New York

         25  City, which is a good thing because as the
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          2  Commissioner noted in his testimony, we continue to

          3  see an increase in the number of children being

          4  referred into the program from year to year.

          5                 Just for your information, on an

          6  average basis we are finding that we receive an

          7  1,300 referrals each and every month into the

          8  program, and as you know, Councilwoman, each of

          9  those referrals is entitled to, each child I should

         10  say was referred and is entitled to a full

         11  multi-disciplinary evaluation. We have found in

         12  operating the program over the last six years that

         13  approximately 90 percent of the children who are

         14  referred into the program are indeed found eligible

         15  upon its evaluation. So that we have a very large

         16  number of children to process through the program

         17  each month and every month.

         18                 The Office of Management and Budget

         19  authorized for us approximately 13 new early

         20  intervention official designees. These are new

         21  positions that we need in order to handle the number

         22  of children that are being referred into the

         23  program, and we will be going through a hiring

         24  process for those new positions very soon.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: I had raised
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          2  an issue before and I am still going to raise it now

          3  just for you to tell me what your experience is.

          4                 I have always been concerned about

          5  the evaluators end up being the providers, and

          6  whether they in fact can separate? Because they make

          7  money both ways, and it confuses me, especially for

          8  families who are really anxious and concerned about

          9  an infant who may be found to have some

         10  developmental delay, and then the youngster stays in

         11  the evaluation period for an extended time without

         12  receiving the service that they need. Are you now

         13  able to work closer with those agencies to make sure

         14  that the youngster and the families being given the

         15  kind of consultation and support that they need?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Right. I

         17  understand your concern, Councilwoman. However,

         18  there is nothing currently in the state regulation

         19  that prohibits a provider of early intervention

         20  services that does evaluations who also provides

         21  services.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: That is why I

         23  am concerned. I am concerned with foster care, they

         24  never get out.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Right. That
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          2  is one of the areas that we look at as part of our

          3  quality assurance protocol. We do, in doing our

          4  audits, look for in the family record a child's case

          5  record, some evidence that in fact that family was

          6  offered options in terms of evaluation sites, in

          7  terms of program service sites. In cases where we

          8  don't see that happening, agencies are cited for it

          9  and have to develop and submit for our approval a

         10  corrective action plan to make sure that the

         11  services are offered properly.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: I just want to

         13  say for my own sake, because I came from the field

         14  of early childhood, I recognize how important it is

         15  to identify at an early age that young children get

         16  moved forward, developmentally and educationally,

         17  and that is why I have that concern that they don't

         18  end up being the chicken and the egg.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner, let

         21  me perhaps get to some of the document on the MMR so

         22  we stay to the subject matter and not go somewhere

         23  else.

         24                 On page 103 in your Department, it

         25  talks about the indicators for major missions, and I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            212

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  note that in Fiscal Year '98, you had a total of 740

          3  actual contracts that you contracted out and then it

          4  breaks it down by borough.

          5                 Then in the Fiscal Year '99, your

          6  annual plan, or the annual plan gives a number of

          7  815, but yet it doesn't say how you are going to,

          8  and how you are going to divide those numbers. But

          9  if you notice that at the end of Fiscal Year '99,

         10  your total number was 790 contracted out agencies,

         11  and then again it appears of the number by boroughs.

         12                 Is there a reason why in the -- and

         13  then if you look at Fiscal Year 200 in the plan you

         14  are back to 815 again, but it doesn't say where they

         15  are going to be going to, and you went from 740 to

         16  790. I just need to know why is it that that -- I am

         17  assuming that you know where your needs are in the

         18  boroughs from the year before.

         19                 So, if you are planning, why would

         20  you not put, if it was possible, how many contracts

         21  will be in Brooklyn, how many contracts will be in

         22  Queens; is there a reason why that is omitted?

         23                 DR. COHEN: There are instances where

         24  there are Citywide programs that we don't select for

         25  a particular borough but the borough provider might
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          2  be in one borough or another, so we are not able to

          3  identify the borough in advance. And these programs

          4  also, in large measure we have our reinvestment

          5  dollars, which are done on a yearly basis of a

          6  reinvestment planning process, so we don't know the

          7  number our reinvestment dollars will have

          8  necessarily from year to year, so we think it is

          9  very risky to do it at the level of the borough

         10  because there are too many confounding issues that

         11  might change the balance.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, help me out,

         13  if you can. If in the ending of Fiscal Year '99 you

         14  had a total of 790 contracts, are you saying to me

         15  that in Brooklyn where it appears 152 contracts, not

         16  all of those contracts may be borough CBOs, but it

         17  might be a Citywide CBO; is that what you are saying

         18  to me?

         19                 DR. COHEN: It is more likely that it

         20  would be an agency that is in Brooklyn that would be

         21  serving Brooklyn and Staten Island or Brooklyn and

         22  Lower Manhattan, so there is variants, because you

         23  may have more than one borough being served.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, going back

         25  to the MMR, in Fiscal Year '98, page 219, in your
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          2  agency evaluations to be completed in Fiscal Year

          3  '98, you had a total of 341, and now these are

          4  contracts, correct, 341, or are these programs?

          5                 DR. COHEN: These are contracts.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. It says

          7  there that you then evaluate 249, which is 73

          8  percent.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: That

         10  is health, it is right below that one.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, I am sorry.

         12  Thank you. It is 341, 249 contracts that you

         13  evaluated, which gives you 73 percent. And you then

         14  have one here as unsatisfactory. Is this one a

         15  mistake also like First Deputy Commissioner, like

         16  you said with the Department of Health?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: Yes,

         18  from page 230 you are reading from, correct?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Say that again?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: Page

         21  230 of the Mayor's Management Plan.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am looking at

         23  page 219 of Fiscal Year '98 where it says agency

         24  procurement contract performance evaluation.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: He

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            215

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  is bringing the page. Let me see.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: My question is,

          4  is this a mistake or is this --

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: This

          6  is accurate.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: This is not a

          8  mistake, okay.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: I

         10  didn't check '98, I checked '99.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, let's go to

         12  then 1999. In 1999 you have a total of 310 contracts

         13  of which 287 you evaluated which is 93 percent.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL:

         15  Correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But 29 of them

         17  are unsatisfactory. Now, is this a mistake?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: Yes,

         19  it is. That should be needs improvement.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Should be what?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL:

         22  Needs improvement, which is another category. It

         23  might be something we are watching in an evaluation

         24  and ask for a corrective action plan, but it

         25  definitely is not unsatisfactory.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, how long do

          3  you carry them before you move them from need

          4  improvement to unsatisfactory and perhaps terminate

          5  the contract?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: It

          7  might vary according to how serious the needs

          8  improvement category is, but it would be our general

          9  plan to have a correction action plan during the

         10  next fiscal year to have them remove the needs

         11  improvement category.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Are any of these

         13  CBOs, particularly whether they are not

         14  unsatisfactory but needs improvement, which are 29,

         15  is this one that in '98 -- do I find it in this '99

         16  as one of those 29, or that you no longer find that

         17  group?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: I am

         19  informed that that particular agency is out of

         20  contract, it is terminated. The one for '98.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: '98. So the 29

         22  are not this one.

         23                 Now, this is for '99. You will be

         24  doing the 2000, is this at the end of the fiscal

         25  year?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, if I look at

          4  next year of the 29, will I also know the status of

          5  whether they are also part of the 2000? Or if you

          6  say corrective plan, I should not see these 29, if

          7  they did the corrective plan, correct?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL:

          9  Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: For

         12  the most part. There might be somewhere that it

         13  could be carried over, but for the most part.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But in carrying

         15  over -- see, one of the things I do believe, which

         16  is that evaluation is, I mean, why would we put

         17  money into the budget and CBOs constantly say they

         18  don't get enough money, or they don't meet -- they

         19  are not given the resources to meet the demand, and

         20  if some of them are having problems, I know that in

         21  my district, and I am sure that in Council Member

         22  Clark's district, we want to know who they are,

         23  because maybe we won't want them. Maybe we could

         24  find someone else to do a better job.

         25                 So, I suggest that maybe we should
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          2  put into place some kind of checks and balances

          3  where Council Members, whoever the 29 are, maybe we

          4  should know what this needs improvement is, because

          5  if it is a CBO that is in my district, I will help

          6  you talk to them and I will say to them shape up or

          7  ship out, okay?

          8                 You know something, I don't need

          9  second best, okay? I mean, if we set standards, and

         10  I heard you constantly set criterias and certain

         11  standards, then you know something, I can't afford

         12  that luxury, of just anybody. Because it's like you

         13  got a bed, be grateful. Well, no, I don't need to

         14  have a bed that has roaches all over the place, if I

         15  can get a bed that is well, with clean linen and the

         16  whole bit that somewhere else they may have it. And

         17  I don't want no more and no less in my district, I

         18  am sure, what they are getting upstate New York as

         19  an example.

         20                 Okay, Commissioner, let me go into

         21  this whole area of contracting out with HHC, if I

         22  may. And I want to make sure if the numbers I have

         23  are the same numbers you have.

         24                 Now, did you give them a copy? Why

         25  don't you do that. Do you have a copy of this?
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          2                 DR. COHEN: It is the--

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Department of

          4  Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism

          5  Services, HHC's program funded by DMH?

          6                 DR. COHEN: For Year 2000, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, is it fair to

          8  say, Commissioner, that the total grant agreement

          9  with HHC is $45,631,380? Is that correct?

         10                 DR. COHEN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And on top of

         12  that, you provide a subsidy. And the subsidy, is

         13  that an additional $13,176,300?

         14                 DR. COHEN: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So that the total

         16  contracting out by your agency with HHC is

         17  $58,807,680?

         18                 DR. COHEN: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now,

         20  Commissioner, these breakdowns of the dollar amount

         21  to these various acute care and diagnostic treatment

         22  centers that I have gone through varies in terms of

         23  the amount. Who decides how much money they get? Is

         24  that in collaboration with your agency based upon

         25  need? Or is that just HHC making that decision?
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          2                 DR. COHEN: That is a collaboration

          3  based upon need. Based on, you know, the program

          4  model, and the numbers of clients we would attempt

          5  to serve.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So that you have

          7  a role in this formula; is that fair to say?

          8                 DR. COHEN: Yes, we do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Can you explain

         10  to me then, this correctional health services in the

         11  mental health part, prison mental health, this is an

         12  additional 15,590,285 that goes to that agency from

         13  your agency, in addition to what DOH provides?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: No,

         15  it actually is included in the amount DOH provides

         16  in the master contract, but it is the mental health

         17  portion of it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So the number

         19  that we saw on the other document, so this number

         20  that you see of 259,305, this 15.5 million is in

         21  here?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: Yes,

         23  correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: How do you

         25  monitor, evaluate this contract so that the question
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          2  of the chair in terms of the services at Rikers

          3  Island, since we are paying HHC close to $16

          4  million, then her question is one which should be

          5  answered; who monitors that HHC provides the kinds

          6  of services that you could have contracted out to

          7  them to provide?

          8                 And this contract here is not St.

          9  Barnabas, correct? Or is this St. Barnabas?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: It

         11  is a similar pattern to the Department of Health. A

         12  large portion is subcontracted by HHC to St.

         13  Barnabas, and the balance is in the borough houses

         14  operated by HHC directly. So, it is really the same

         15  program pattern.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, who

         17  evaluates them?

         18                 DR. COHEN: We do. We have an Office

         19  of Program Review and Evaluation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: May I have the

         21  evaluations of Fiscal Year '96, '97, '98 and '99?

         22                 DR. COHEN: Sure.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, I notice

         24  that you have almost $3.7 million -- yes, that is

         25  HHC Corporate; what does that mean? The Corporation
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          2  of HHC gets 3.7 plus million? Is that what this

          3  says?

          4                 Look at page 11 from the same

          5  document that you have, and right underneath

          6  correctional health services for mental health

          7  disability and programs type, I have here facility

          8  HHC Corporate; what does that mean? Where does that

          9  money go? And in there it says disability as

         10  alcoholism, mental health, methadone I guess must be

         11  maintenance, substance abuse. Type of program it

         12  says AIDS counseling. What does FACES mean? I know

         13  what a face looks like but there must be a

         14  definition to that. Consumer advocate,

         15  administrative support, Family Court I guess must be

         16  mentoring or health services.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STILL: No,

         18  these programs on this page are programs operated by

         19  HHC under agreement of the Department that aren't

         20  allocated any particular facility, that are either

         21  done, for the most part done out of central office.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: See, if Council

         23  Member Clarke asked a question about advocacy, and

         24  now I see an appropriation of $30,000 for consumer

         25  advocate, which I am assuming is an individual hired
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          2  by HHC, then her question should be answered, and

          3  that is, how do you reach out?

          4                 Now, what does this consumer advocate

          5  do to earn this $30,000?

          6                 DR. COHEN: We chose in our state

          7  funding through community reinvestment to provide

          8  HHC with the capacity to create a consumer office so

          9  there would be advocacy given the large network of

         10  clients who are part of the HHC mental health

         11  services system, that just as we have consumer

         12  advocates in other sectors, that the public sector

         13  should have a consumer advocacy program that will

         14  encourage consumers to participate, to enter the

         15  work place, and you know, provide the kind of peer

         16  support that we have found to be very positive and

         17  very helpful. So, that $30,000 really reflects our

         18  investment in that office in HHC, which we think is

         19  a good investment.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And please help

         21  me with this "faces", what does that mean?

         22                 DR. COHEN: FACES is the name of an

         23  organization had taken the Choose to Diffuse

         24  Program, the anti-violence program. At one point I

         25  believe they had been affiliated with Maimonidies
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          2  Medical Center in the past, and it creates

          3  opportunities for youth who have been caught in

          4  trouble in the past to participate in a variety of

          5  role playing activities, peer support and work on

          6  using theater and drama to channel their energy and

          7  issues and problems. And FACES has been a program

          8  that has been now I think for the Choose to Diffuse

          9  Anti-Violence Campaign, I think it goes back about

         10  six years now, and we felt it has been successful as

         11  well. And now that has been operated by HHC but it

         12  not linked to one facility specifically.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And the contract

         14  with job development and administration job

         15  development RFP, what I need to know is perhaps, how

         16  does that tie in with the questions of the Chair in

         17  the other programs that she also talked about, job

         18  development and et cetera?

         19                 I mean, I just want to make sure that

         20  we are not duplicating. If the responsibility based

         21  upon state statute rests with your agency.

         22                 DR. COHEN: Yes, this is an innovative

         23  program model, because in our seeking to have the

         24  methadone programs in HHC transform themselves into

         25  model programs that would provide opportunities for
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          2  clients to move for those who can from methadone to

          3  abstinence, to be able to become more integrated

          4  into their communities, to improve job placement

          5  opportunities, we have contracted with HHC who have

          6  awarded these dollars to an organization that has a

          7  track record of providing job placement services and

          8  we expect to have 125 clients placed in job

          9  situations over the course of the year. I think it

         10  is an innovative model and that enhances the program

         11  services that are available at HHC in the methadone

         12  facilities.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I am assuming

         14  that in my request to have the evaluation that would

         15  also include corporate component, since we are

         16  really talking about a close to -- it is actually

         17  $3,786,000?

         18                 DR. COHEN: In total.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

         20                 So, again, in the total Department of

         21  Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism

         22  Services funding, that you have contracted out with

         23  HHC, it is $58,807,680, correct?

         24                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Any other
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          2  questions?

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: I didn't ask a

          4  question on alcoholism, and I know that we did, you

          5  did a special evaluative program. Is it now fully

          6  implemented, one? And if so, is it reflected in the

          7  MMR as to what that is?

          8                 I also know that the Assistant

          9  Commissioner left, is there somebody at the helm of

         10  alcoholism that has replaced Ernie Batson with whom

         11  I can interface if I need more questions on

         12  alcoholism services?

         13                 DR. COHEN: Yes. As you know, we have

         14  carried out a pilot study of alcoholism clinics over

         15  the course of several years, and it was concluded,

         16  and what we learned is that there is a relationship

         17  between the success in the outcome and the poly

         18  substance abuser, the individual who has chemical

         19  dependency on a multitude of substances. You know,

         20  as you might expect they are more difficult to

         21  retain in treatment, they are more difficult to show

         22  significant improvement, younger people are more

         23  difficult to retain in treatment, and the key

         24  ingredient to outcome seems to be retention. If you

         25  can actually motivate the individual to participate
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          2  in the treatment services and stay in treatment,

          3  then very much you can predict that they will show

          4  improvement from their participation.

          5                 We didn't find a relationship between

          6  motivation and readiness on the instruments we were

          7  using, and their 30 day and 90 day retention rate,

          8  so what we are doing as a result of that, though, is

          9  we are moving toward performance-based contracts

         10  with our alcoholism providers, we have piloted this

         11  already and in the coming year will be moving to

         12  full performance-based contracting. We started that

         13  this fiscal year.

         14                 And we would like our alcoholism

         15  programs to give more attention to the issue of

         16  employment. Because historically there hasn't been a

         17  focus, and that is the one area of our analysis that

         18  showed poorer response to treatment, and obviously

         19  if the agency doesn't really bring in specialists

         20  who have the skills to extend that job training to

         21  the clients, they are not going to see the change in

         22  readiness of individuals or their moving into the

         23  work sector.

         24                 That is becoming part of our

         25  performance-based contract, as well as we are

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            228

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  looking to find ways to fund these agencies to bring

          3  those resources on, and we are recruiting for

          4  associate commissioner of the Alcohol and Substance

          5  Abuse Bureau, for the time being Deputy Commissioner

          6  DelCampo is the person that you should feel free to

          7  contact.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: She is wearing

          9  all kinds of hats and caps.

         10                 Also, over the last three or four

         11  years the City Council has invested in programs for

         12  young people, both in alcoholism and in

         13  anti-violence and would like to have some report as

         14  to what in-roads we are making and where those

         15  monies have been invested so that my colleagues can

         16  know that after I fight for the money it is being

         17  placed in the right direction.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But picking that

         19  up, because I want to stay to the subject matter,

         20  let me just make sure, because we have expanded

         21  those programs, but we originally put in an

         22  appropriation of half of the funds last year. Now, I

         23  notice that in this year a request is being made of

         24  us, and that is, while the money was put into your

         25  agency, you want to contract out with DJJ at the new
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          2  facilities and if Spofford came back, yet my

          3  question is why -- and they want to contract out

          4  with a CBO, why can we not contract directly with a

          5  CBO since you do that for the most part? Why are we

          6  again doing like HHC, you are contracting out with

          7  DJJ, and then DJJ is going to contract out with

          8  CBOs; why are we not contracting directly?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELCAMPO: Because

         10  the case management component is going to utilize

         11  $200,000 of the allocation, is going to be tied in

         12  for case management detainees who will be leaving

         13  the facilities. We wanted it to be an agency that

         14  already has familiarity and a relationship with DJJ

         15  while at the same time also is a mental health

         16  provider. So what we are doing is, we are really

         17  doing this cooperatively with DJJ. We met with them

         18  and collaboratively wrote the scope of services for

         19  their negotiated acquisition. We are sitting on

         20  their committee because they want our expertise as

         21  the mental health agency for the city to participate

         22  in the selection of the awardee and it will be the

         23  Department of Mental Health that does all monitoring

         24  of the contract and it develops the performance

         25  indicators for that agency.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And I know

          3  that you say that when DJJ came before us to

          4  testify, prior to our giving the money, they said

          5  they wanted to do this and therefore they had some

          6  money, and the agreement was that they had to match

          7  whatever your Department was putting in because they

          8  had money in their own budget that they were going

          9  to initiate this before. I just want to know from

         10  you, did they fulfill that commitment?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELCAMPO: I know

         12  that in my last conversation with their First Deputy

         13  Doug Appel, that that was their intention initially.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Mr. Appel,

         15  yes. He has got to put the money in.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DELCAMPO: All

         17  right. The Department was going to make a larger

         18  allocation but that ended up being the accommodation

         19  with DJJ.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no, no. Let

         21  me make sure I understand what she said. And I guess

         22  this is the original. Is this the one I am referring

         23  to? Not the new appropriation of funds?

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: When DJJ came

         25  before us as part of Youth Committee, they said to
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          2  us they were going to initiate a mental health

          3  program.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: My question is

          5  the following: Since the Commissioner, when you ask

          6  a question it relates to this current year, he

          7  reminded us about last year and the MMR hearing, and

          8  I want to stay to the subject matter.

          9                 I am not referring to the new

         10  appropriation of funds. I am referring to last

         11  year's appropriation of funds, which was also for

         12  the purpose of case management. Is there a contract

         13  with DJJ on that appropriated funds, or did you

         14  contract it out directly?

         15                 DR. COHEN: No, there was no funding

         16  in that fiscal year.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: For case

         18  management.

         19                 DR. COHEN: Right. It is a new

         20  allocation.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The what?

         22                 DR. COHEN: A new allocation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The half a

         24  million we put in of which 200 to be used in this

         25  year?
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          2                 DR. COHEN: Correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I see.

          4                 DR. COHEN: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, let me make

          6  sure I understand this, because there again it is

          7  something new to me and I don't know what happened

          8  to youth services, I don't sit on there. But let me

          9  make sure.

         10                 And just once, Commissioner, just

         11  bear with me and while we are discussing this year I

         12  just want to make sure I understand because I am

         13  going to be watching that, with all due respect.

         14                 My colleague, who is the chair of the

         15  Subcommittee, who happens to be a member of Youth

         16  Services, indicated unbeknownst to me as Chairman of

         17  this Committee, she did come to me during budget

         18  time and she was pretty good in getting money into

         19  the budget. What I did not know was what was the

         20  commitment made by DJJ. When you and I met to go

         21  over this, I raised that question, and now she threw

         22  in a new caveat, which I need answers, because if

         23  not I am calling a kaboots (sic) on the

         24  appropriation of funds. And let me be clear, Council

         25  Member Clarke said that the Commissioner came -- I
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          2  am going to get to you, just let me finish my

          3  question -- the Commissioner came before the Youth

          4  Services Committee and said, if you take money out

          5  of that appropriation, in this case $200,000, we are

          6  going to match it. That was during the budget

          7  hearing, before the adoption, correct? We adopted

          8  it. We put our money in, of which of the half a

          9  million, 200,000 is going to DJJ. Did they match it?

         10                 DR. COHEN: We are not aware of that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES well, then I think

         12  we better get a clarification because we are going

         13  to be meeting pretty soon, aren't we? I want to make

         14  sure I understand this because it is something new

         15  that came to my attention.

         16                 We are going to be meeting pretty

         17  soon, right, Commissioner, to go over the whole

         18  budget? And I want an answer, because Council Member

         19  Clarke, who is the Chair of the Subcommittee under

         20  this Committee, who is fortunate to be a member of

         21  the Youth Services Committee, for the first time I

         22  heard publicly that whatever we did, she and this

         23  Committee, in the adoption of the budget of the Year

         24  2000, half a million dollars of the appropriation,

         25  200,000 will be contracted out through DJJ. What was
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          2  not discussed with me, nor I was aware of it even

          3  when we met in my office, was the question of the

          4  commitment by DJJ to match whatever we appropriated.

          5                 Now, I need to answer quickly before

          6  we sign off whether DJJ carried out on its

          7  commitment in the Youth Service Committee?

          8                 DR. COHEN: We will get back to you on

          9  that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         11                 Now, Council member, did you want to

         12  --

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Speak with

         14  Doug Appel, because that was an agreement that he

         15  would match what we could. Because originally that

         16  is not where we wanted the money. We wanted the

         17  money in the schools to be anti-violence money, and

         18  we agreed that many of those young people needed it,

         19  and so I am willing for the division but I want them

         20  to agree to their commitment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Tell Doug Appel,

         22  who used to be with OMB, who always used to cut the

         23  budget and he used to come here and always explain

         24  how and justify the cuts, and now he is over in DJJ,

         25  tell him that I said, Victor Robles, if he didn't
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          2  match the funds he is not going to get it. Because I

          3  just heard something that was unbeknownst to me, now

          4  she did her job and she put the money in the budget,

          5  but I am not releasing it until that commitment is

          6  carried out by DJJ.

          7                 So, when you talk to Doug Apple, also

          8  tell him, no tickey, no laundry. If they don't put a

          9  match of 200,000 from his agency to expand or to

         10  make it really meaningful, then he is not going to

         11  get and then we have to renegotiate a half a million

         12  dollars of how we want to spend it. Do you get the

         13  message? Thank you.

         14                 Any more questions?

         15                 Commissioner, thank you so much. You

         16  have been a gentleman, not by an act of congress,

         17  and I look forward to continuing this relationship

         18  with you and your agency, particularly HHC.

         19                 Do you want to have the closing

         20  words, Council Member?

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: No, I am fine.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: There is one

         23  person who has registered, and let me ask,

         24  Commissioner, if you would leave someone behind, if

         25  possible both from DOH and also from Mental Health.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            236

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 In the meantime, Joyce Goodman.

          3                 Ms. Goodman, do you want to identify

          4  yourself again for the record and then proceed with

          5  your testimony?

          6                 MS. GOODMAN: My name is Joyce

          7  Goodman. I come here today to represent not only

          8  myself but the hundreds of people who walk down and

          9  live on my block, on 109th Street, between Amsterdam

         10  and Broadway.

         11                 I am going here today to --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Hold on a minute.

         13  Who is here from DOH? Who is here from DOH? Good. Do

         14  me a favor, Sergeant-At-Arms, give this testimony to

         15  the young lady so that when she gets finished, I

         16  want an answer of what they are going to do.

         17                 MS. GOODMAN: Thank you.

         18                 I am talking about the Phase I of the

         19  comprehensive pest control initiative that was

         20  supposed to be implemented in my neighborhood and it

         21  was implemented. I did see a reduction in rats, and

         22  now I see no reduction.

         23                 I have lived in my building for four

         24  years. When I first moved there, I thought there was

         25  a drug problem on that block so I paid particular
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          2  attention to who was behind me when I entered my

          3  building. Now I have to pay attention to what is in

          4  front of me because there are so many rats, so many

          5  rats running from the apartment next to mine, to the

          6  street, that I can't get to my apartment without

          7  skipping over the rats, negotiating my way to my

          8  building where I pay $1,200 a month for rent.

          9                 This is not a poor person's issue

         10  exclusively in my case, but neighborhood is

         11  predominantly lower middle class, and transient

         12  students.

         13                 This is an outrage, a disgusting

         14  outrage. If there is a Public Health Committee, if

         15  there are public health officials that think that

         16  this problem is going to go away, they don't know

         17  about rat reproduction.

         18                 I am just appalled. I can't overstate

         19  this case.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say

         21  to be clear, I see both the First Deputy

         22  Commissioner is here and the young lady.

         23                 First, what I need to know, and so

         24  you will know what I am looking for, and I gave you

         25  a copy of her testimony: One -- I have to say
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          2  alleged for the moment because I don't know the

          3  facts -- one, is it true that that community is one

          4  of those communities that was targeted by this

          5  initiative? And two, it goes back to my question

          6  about if we knew when you came in, what did you do

          7  and maybe we could answer some of that. And three, I

          8  think we need to get, what is it you are going to

          9  do, particularly, and I will repeat, while I

         10  appreciate you took the time as you sat here, and I

         11  don't normally get parochial, but because you did I

         12  want you to address it, but my concern is Citywide,

         13  because it is not only in your neighborhood, there

         14  are those neighborhoods that perhaps are poor,

         15  middle, but they are entitled to the same kind of,

         16  and maybe the problem is even worse. So, while she

         17  is referring to a certain location in our community,

         18  she is really, my concern is whether this program is

         19  working or it is not, and that is what I want to

         20  answer.

         21                 Having said that, I am sorry, but I

         22  just wanted to make sure that the Commissioner heard

         23  that.

         24                 Do you want to finish with your

         25  testimony, Madam?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            239

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 MS. GOODMAN: Yes, please.

          3                 I have made numerous complaints about

          4  this, and I must say that I was encouraged to do

          5  nothing else. I wasn't brought into the process as a

          6  person to talk to. I requested numerous times over

          7  four years that I be allowed to be present and

          8  notified when the investigation of the building next

          9  to mine would be -- when would an investigation

         10  occur, can I meet the person coming to the

         11  apartment, and walk through the investigation with

         12  them so I can assist them. I was told no I can't do

         13  that. They can't notify me when an investigation is

         14  going to occur.

         15                 Now, recently I told, I implored

         16  them, please, I will take a day off from work, I

         17  will take two days off, let me be there, and

         18  recently I have seen and I have evidence to show I

         19  can say honestly that I was there for the

         20  investigation.

         21                 Now, to show you the difference

         22  between being there at the time of the investigation

         23  and showing them where the rats live, and not being

         24  there, I have the rodent inspection report that they

         25  were kind enough to give me after I implored them.
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          2                 Here is a rodent inspection report

          3  from one that I didn't attend, although I filed a

          4  complaint. It says "no rats. No cause for action."

          5                 In two weeks prior to that and two

          6  weeks post that, I attended the investigation and

          7  the reports show yes rats. Yes, a number of other

          8  problems, debris, garbage, water, these are the

          9  efforts I made on behalf of my neighborhood to take

         10  part in this initiative and I was really discouraged

         11  from doing that.

         12                 This is disgusting. That is how good

         13  the investigations are. Now, when I looked over the

         14  MMR, I saw how many investigations were conducted.

         15  What good is an investigation if it yields this kind

         16  of unsatisfactory result?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: In the testimony

         18  you gave me, does it include those other documents

         19  as well?

         20                 MS. GOODMAN: No, I want to include

         21  this.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well,

         23  Sergeant-At-Arms? Because I want the total package

         24  so that we can properly investigate it.

         25                 You know, I can't give you an answer,
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          2  you know, quick fix. And I also have to rely upon

          3  them to investigate and get back to me. What I ask

          4  also is to be sure that we keep this so that

          5  whatever we get we will personally make sure you get

          6  a copy of it, and then pursue it.

          7                 I encourage your neighbors, including

          8  you, that when they complain and they feel they are

          9  not getting the satisfactory respond that, one, you

         10  contact the Councilperson who represents your

         11  district.

         12                 MS. GOODMAN: That is Philip Reed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine. The

         14  Councilperson who represents your district, and

         15  second, that a copy be given to me as the Chairman

         16  of the Committee.

         17                 But I will look into this case, and

         18  that is the reason why you were here when I asked

         19  the Commissioner what I need to really see is when

         20  did they go in, what did they find, and then I can

         21  evaluate myself, okay?

         22                 MS. GOODMAN: Quickly, my

         23  recommendation is that the Department of Health make

         24  the complainant, make people like me enlist our

         25  help. We know when the rats are there, we know when
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          2  there are only three rats running across the street

          3  as opposed to no rats. We can see the difference,

          4  enlist our help. We would be delighted. Instead, it

          5  is really working against us. To get those reports I

          6  had to really beg. And that is the result of the

          7  investigation that I wanted, that I requested. I can

          8  only conclude that it is to protect the landlord

          9  who, for some reason, have priority.

         10                 This landlord that I am referring to

         11  at 244 West 109th Street, has a whole list of

         12  violations against her.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Madam, with all

         14  fairness, this is not the Housing and Buildings

         15  Committee, this is the Health Committee.

         16                 MS. GOODMAN: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I repeat, I

         18  will deal with the health issue.

         19                 And the allegation about favoritism

         20  over a landlord, I must tell you that if I ever can

         21  prove that to be the case, I will go after this

         22  agency, which is different from the Buildings

         23  Department.

         24                 So, may I suggest again, let me deal

         25  with the issue. This is the first time that it has
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          2  come to may attention. I do not know who you

          3  communicated with, who did you serve notice on, but

          4  now that you have done that, and, again, you have

          5  put the time out to use this quorum, we will follow

          6  through.

          7                 With respect to whether the agency

          8  can make you part of it, that is a legal question

          9  that I need to not only know what the legal

         10  interpretation is on their side, our side, and then

         11  we will let you know, or at least we will come to a

         12  conclusion of whether it is possible or not.

         13                 I can't answer your questions because

         14  I need people to do research for me because I am not

         15  a lawyer, so I don't know whether there is something

         16  in the law that when a complaint comes in there is

         17  such a thing as, you know, confidential information,

         18  and sometimes the complainant wants to be kept not

         19  public.

         20                 MS. GOODMAN: Confidential.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, I don't know

         22  if it is the landlords, or I am not defending the

         23  landlords, but let me look at the case and I assure

         24  you we will deal with that issue.

         25                 MS. GOODMAN: The only other issue I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            244

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  have is enforcement. I know they are very good with

          3  issuing violations, I don't see much in terms of --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, again, let

          5  me just say this: I encourage your participation and

          6  anyone else, not during an MMR hearing but rather

          7  during budget time.

          8                 I must tell you that this agency has

          9  suffered tremendously in budget cuts in previous

         10  years. We are now trying to not only restore, but

         11  even this is the first time in a long time where

         12  they have had enhancements to create new

         13  initiatives, like breast cancer, like others, so the

         14  real place is really, that question about the "why"

         15  must be addressed in the agency's budget when it

         16  comes to hearing, and like everything else, the

         17  squeaky wheel gets the oil. If you can get, I don't

         18  mean you, but if there is enough consensus of the

         19  five delegations of this Council and three of the

         20  five have the same thing, not just Manhattan

         21  Delegation, then this is the way that the budget and

         22  the appropriation tends to based upon priority. So,

         23  this is not the place for budgetary, but it is the

         24  place to evaluate whether the previous years that

         25  which they indicate they did that really is true,
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          2  and that we will look into.

          3                 MS. GOODMAN: Well they did make many

          4  -- I am sure that the number of inspections they

          5  conducted as it states in the MMR, they are very,

          6  very good about making investigations, as far as I

          7  can see.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, I think the

          9  program is not just about investigations, the

         10  program was to address a serious problem the City

         11  had, and this Administration put all of its

         12  resources into the rodent program. Investigation is

         13  one thing and I need to see what was the outcome of

         14  the investigation.

         15                 MS. GOODMAN: Well, I believe it says

         16  45 percent of the landlords remediated the

         17  violation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But if they

         19  don't, they have the right to pursue it and even

         20  administratively impose fines against the landlord,

         21  because I don't think it is about hiding the

         22  landlord, if there is a violation, and that I don't

         23  know at all, but when it comes to rodents it is like

         24  building codes, it is like a C, it is one of the

         25  highest violations, and I don't think they can go to
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          2  sleep on that. And again, I don't know, but if I

          3  find that is the case, I will assure you that I will

          4  pursue that.

          5                 MS. GOODMAN: Okay, thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you for

          8  coming and testifying.

          9                 Seeing no other business before this

         10  Committee, I adjourn this hearing.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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